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Financial Highlights

BITsE R

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—Eo=E —E-—oF —E-—F —E-FEFE —ZE-hF
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBL
Revenue Wiz
— Semiconductor distribution —FBEHH 634.3 1,012.7 1,190.4 1,259.2 1,602.4
— Consumer product and product —HEBEEEMRERRE
sourcing business B 24.7 29.0 471 74.9 88.5
— Venture capital — g% - - - - -
- Others —Hfh 1.0 0.7 37 32 7.9
660.0 1,042.4 1,241.2 1,337.3 1,698.8
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, BFIE - B e B
depreciation, amortisation and ENRIEEEIBEA
non-cash items A (EE)
— Corporate — A (26.9) (26.6) (33.9) (33.8) (26.0)
— Venture capital — A% (18.9) 11.3 (19.4) (16.0) (28.1)
— Semiconductor distribution —FBEHH 102.8 285.2 354.7 192.1 154.5
— Consumer product and product —HEREMNERR
sourcing business BB (15.1) (6.9) (16. (25.0) (20.4)
- Others —Hfh (2.0) 6.4) (13. (7.4) (10.1)
39.9 256.6 2714 109.9 69.9
Depreciation and amortisation e R s (3.0) (3.5) (3.6) (4.8) 4.3)
Profit for the year attributable to FEAEEE AR A
— Owners of the Company —ARREEBA 40.7 231.0 269.8 93.5 57.3
- Non-controlling interests —FEPERR iR - - (0.3) 2.7) 2.1)
40.7 231.0 269.5 90.8 55.2
Dividend BB
— Proposed final — A 9.1 36.3 27.3 22.7 18.2
Dividend per share (HK cents) TR (BIL)
— Proposed final —ZEEAH 1.0 4.0 3.0 25 2.0
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Financial Highlights
B E A

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZBRD=f T--fF T CZZTF IT-hF
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEATL BEBT BEBT BEBL
Total assets BEHRE 1,753.6 1,745.5 1,586.6 1,393.8 1,317.0
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDARS 1,627.9 1,637.1 1,440.2 1,198.4 1,132.5
Total equity G 1,613.3 1,622.0 1,425.0 1,181.0 1,115.6
Borrowings and lease liabilities ERkAEEE 20.1 7.6 1.6 104.5 76.5
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRELIER 121.4 152.2 1243 87.7 106.0
Financial assets at fair value BiREREATEBTE
through profit or loss (included in ZEBMEEGIARE
current assets) EE) 11.9 28.4 48.2 79.8 117.6
133.3 180.6 172.5 167.5 223.6
Total debt to total equity ERFEREER AR
b 1.2% 0.5% 0.1% 9% 7%
Current assets to current liabilities MEEERREEE L
t & 164.3% 239% 176% 176% 215%
Cash and cash equivalents and BRRekERREIER
financial assets at fair value through ~ Fi&EBIEZFRAFEE
profit or loss (included in current PRz & REE GIA
assets) per share (HK$) mREEE) (BT) 0.15 0.20 0.19 0.18 0.25
Total equity per share (HK$) FicERBE (ET) 1.78 1.79 1.57 1.30 1.23
Revenue to property, plant and WEsEYE - BE &
equipment and right-of-use assets (x) R {& A RIEREEE
L (15) 19.0 35.0 38.3 37.8 42.9
Revenue to inventories (x) Y B & b 2K (f%) 41.6 233 36.8 16.2 27.3
Revenue to trade receivables (x) Weas BARE U B SR
L (15) 72.4 121.2 35.6 16.9 23.9
Revenue to trade payables, deposits Wz ERFE( & 5 8RN »
received and accrued expenses (x) Bl e RIEER
L (15) 28.9 43.7 43.4 30.8 35.3
Revenue to borrowings (x) U BELAE AR L 2 () 33.6 162.0 N/A 13.7 235
i A
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HAIRMAN'S
ATEMENT
E % BB




Dr. So Yuk Kwan #8518+
Chairman /&

Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to present the annual
results of AV Concept Holdings Limited (“AV Concept” or the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (the “year under review").

During the year under review, we found ourselves navigating a particularly
challenging and volatile operating landscape. The headline inflation rate in
the United States declined but stayed high, prompting the Federal Reserve
to persistently increase interest rates. Europe grappled with its own financial
systemic risks and geopolitical instability, leading the European Central Bank
to also raise interest rates to combat inflationary pressures. Furthermore, the
Ukrainian-Russian conflict showed little signs of resolution, sparking energy
and supply chain crises that wreaked havoc in markets across the globe.
Amid these complexities, the COVID-19 pandemic remained an unpredictable
variable, with sporadic local outbreaks and new variants posing consistent
challenges. As countries worldwide enter a challenging phase of economic
readjustment, the International Monetary Fund predicts a decrease in global
economic growth from 3.4% in 2022 to 2.8% in 2023. This slowdown is
anticipated to be particularly significant in advanced economies, with growth
expected to decelerate from 2.7% in 2022 to a mere 1.3% in 2023. In light
of these circumstances, the Group’s performance for the year under review
revealed a revenue of approximately HK$660.0 million (2022: HK$1,042.4
million). The profit attributable to the Company’s owners amounted to
approximately HK$40.7 million (2022: HK$231.0 million), with the gross profit
around HK$4.3 million (2022: HK$37.8 million).

AAZREREEFEMARMBPEIRZAV Concept Holdings Limited ([AV
Concept) Sk [ARR]) REMBAR (GBI AEE)BEE-_Z=_=4F=A
=t+—BUEFE(RBEFE]) 22FEE -

PIEFER « LERBERAEMRE - ZEEBBIREZADARDE - 5
REBMEEY - BN SR AESRIERR K E&BUAERNFIEENE - B
MRITRHEMEBHBIRE T - NSRBI ABENTR - wEBUARK
SIERBLIR R HEEEREE TEMIE - MR ARBITEE R - DB
LB RNEENEERS  KAES —ETARERKE - BESEIERA
WE M AEFER  BRESESHEMTER - 2IEEIRRIEN2022F 1
3.4% N/EE2023F#2.8% + HA - BELEEAILRNE TR KL R
FA o 2022 M92.7% &R ZE2023FM1.3%  BEAFEEAN - AEESSGK
25 #9/5660,000,000/8 7T (ZE =4 : 1,042,400,000/87T) » NAGHEA A
FE(535 F 49/540,700,00008 7T (—F = — 4 : 231,000,000 7T) - EXNL5
4,300,000/ 7T (= F = —4 : 37,800,000/ 7T) °
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Chairman’s Statement

As global economic headwinds persist, there is a spreading slump in the
electronics demand from not just consumers, but also businesses, making the
investment climate increasingly unpredictable. Additionally, the oversupply of
microchips has led to swelling inventories and a drop in chip prices, quickening
the downturn in the semiconductor market for this year. Gartner Inc., an
international research and consulting firm, further forecasts a bleak short-
term future for the semiconductor market. By 2023, the global semiconductor
revenue is projected to plummet from US$599.6 billion in 2022 to US$532.0
billion, marking a decline of 11.3%. The report also highlights that recent
trade tensions have accelerated the de-globalization trend, giving rise to
technological nationalism. Governments around the world are proactively
building self-reliant semiconductor and electronic supply chains, which casts a
long shadow over the recovery prospects of the semiconductor market.

Furthermore, in the wake of the pandemic, consumption and sales patterns
are gradually adjusting to a new norm. Despite the reopening of borders,
digital consumption is poised to be one of the key growth trends moving
forward. Our Group has been proactively investing in e-commerce, with
a firm commitment to develop a more diverse array of high-quality, tech-
savvy consumer products, and to introduce more premium brand partners
to align with emerging consumer market trends. A particular emphasis is
placed on the e-commerce market of Southeast Asia, which remains at the
heart of our growth strategy. Throughout the year under review, we fortified
our marketing and sales operations in Indonesia, offering a wider range of
products tailored to local requirements. In collaboration with local e-commerce
platforms, we aim to boost our market share in consumer product and
product sourcing business, capitalizing on the huge commercial opportunities
in the Southeast Asian market.

Looking ahead, the global economy faces headwinds including surging
inflation, tightening monetary policies, and financial strains, which are likely
to dampen growth in the short term. The risks of an economic downturn and
a hard landing are on the rise. Leveraging our years of experience, we are
acutely aware of the uncertainties and challenges in the market. In response,
we will persistently evaluate and recalibrate the Group’s business strategies
with prudence, ensuring agility in adapting to market fluctuations and
capitalizing on opportunities. Furthermore, with an open mind and a proactive
stance, we are dedicated to fortifying internal management, enhancing
efficiency, and bolstering competitiveness. Our goal is to reward the trust and
support of our shareholders with reasonable returns.

Lastly, 1 would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the Board, the
management team and all our staff for their exceptional efforts, enthusiasm
and commitment to the Group. | also want to share my appreciation for our
shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for their unflagging
trust and support.

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong
23 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS EKOERAIR

The following sets out the financial highlights for the year ended 31 March  [TxX&n#EE—E-—=—E=-A=-+—HIIEEZH%
2023, with the comparative figures for the corresponding financial year of B B —F - - EH A SR ST -

=

2022.
2023 2022
—EC-=HE —E-F
HK$'million HKS$ ‘million
BEAT AEETT
Revenue by segment 1755 55E) 752 War
Semiconductor distribution FEEE S 634.3 1,012.7
Consumer product and product sourcing business SHBEMNERRBER 24.7 29.0
Venture capital 2ll3% (13.9) 15.4
Others Hith 1.0 0.7
646.1 1,057.8
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, BFIE - FIE - TE - B RIFIELIER
amortisation and non-cash items B FlL (EHE)
Corporate NCT (26.9) (26.6)
Venture capital % (18.9) 11.3
Semiconductor distribution FEae g 102.8 285.2
Consumer product and product sourcing business SHEBREEMNERIRBER (15.1) (6.9)
Others Efth (2.0) (6.4)
39.9 256.6
Depreciation and amortisation HTE R B
Corporate NCT (0.2) 0.1)
Venture capital =1E% (0.7) (1.2)
Semiconductor distribution HERE G (2.1) 2.1
Consumer product and product sourcing business TEBEREE m R E MR - (0.1)
Total depreciation and amortisation Yres MK B R (3.0) (3.5)
Profit before interest and tax FrF B I8 A& A 40.7 236.0
Interest expenses FEFAEZ (0.5) -
Bank interest income RITHBUA 0.6 -
Profit before tax ERT AT A 40.8 236.0
Income tax Frig®t (0.1) (5.0)
Profit for the year attributable to owners RNATEB AERFRRT]
of the Company 40.7 231.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at 2022, while major economies were gradually recovering
from the pandemic and showing signs of improvement, certain challenges
intensified inflationary pressures. These challenges included labor shortages,
supply chain constraints, and the ongoing conflict between Russia and
Ukraine. To address the rapid inflation and rebalance the overall demand in
the financial markets, major European and American economies implemented
tighter monetary policies and aggressively increased interest rates through
multiple rounds of adjustments. Notably, the U.S. Federal Reserve took the
lead in accelerating the pace of raising the federal funds rate. Throughout
2022, they raised interest rates consecutively for seven times. This move had a
global impact, amplifying financing costs and debt pressures across the world.
Unfortunately, several unfavourable factors persisted and hindered economic
growth. Geopolitical tensions remained unresolved, high inflation persisted,
and monetary policy tightened further. Moreover, Europe and the United
States faced financial structural risks, and global supply chains required more
time to recover.

During the year under review, the Group faced significant macroeconomic
challenges, resulting in a decline in segment revenue. The Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$646.1 million, representing a decrease of 38.9% compared
to the previous year (2022: HK$1,057.8 million). Among which, the
semiconductor distribution business generated a turnover of HK$634.3 million
(2022: HK$1,012.7 million). The consumer product and product sourcing
business recorded a revenue of HK$24.7 million (2022: HK$29.0 million). The
venture capital business experienced a loss of HK$13.9 million (2022: a profit
of HK$15.4 million). Lastly, the internet social media business reported a
revenue of HK$1.0 million (2022: HK$0.7 million).

Semiconductor Distribution Business

Gartner, an international research and consulting company, conducted a
survey highlighting the challenges that the global semiconductor market
faced in 2022. In early 2022, semiconductor manufacturers faced delays in
delivering semiconductors due to equipment shortages, while rising costs
hampered electronic equipment production in multiple industries. The second
half of 2022 witnessed additional challenges, including high global inflation,
aggressive interest rate hikes by the U.S. Federal Reserve, increased energy
costs, and strict COVID-19 lockdown measures in mainland China and Hong
Kong. These factors disrupted supply chains across different regions. Gartner's
analysis revealed that the uncertain economic environment prompted
consumers to reduce spending, leading to a decline in demand for personal
computers and smartphones. Simultaneously, companies began cutting
expenditures in response to the risk of a global economic recession, impacting
the growth of the semiconductor market.

During the year under review, the consumer semiconductor market faced
significant challenges due to a decline in global demand for smartphones.
According to the data compiled by the International Data Corporation (“IDC"),
a leading market research organization, global smartphone sales experienced
a sharp drop in 2022. Sales declined by 11.3% compared to the previous
year, with total sales reaching 1.21 billion units. This decline was primarily
attributed to factors such as inflation and an uncertain economic outlook.

BEENWN D

LR

OE_—Z - —F - LIBLEREBHES ™
BRI 2B - HEEBADRER - HERSR - N
EHRSEERK  HMBIRRE S - BEE ELFRE
RENZBBERRLAGSRTENERTR - K
SEREE  ETERINE - Hih - XEBBREER
([RBEERER]) MR EFBARE SRR TE - R
T _FREELANE  REEER  MEERE
HWERMEXANEEEN - WEERBEFHE  BE
et BE¥BREE BEoritERRR 2
BREEERFREESTANEER  HelEEER -

EEFERN BERBCEKENE  A&E
DEL E¥FER646,100,0008 T (=B - —F
1,057,800,000/87 L) * T[%38.9% o HA &g
T TESR1S 4 ¥58634,300,0008 T (— T = —4F :
1,012,700,000/870) + JHEBLEE M E MR X5
15Uk #524,700,000/8 L (ZF = =4 : 29,000,000/%
J0) 0 AR ETEER1SE1813,900,0008 T (=2 ==
1 515,400,000/ 7T) & G B A R B 8%
15422£1,000,00078 7L (—Z = —4F : 700,000/87L) °

YERDHEER

BRI AR AlGartnerAER L - — T4
PHIEEMSABREERE — S —F1 %
FEBAEERRNRERR  SRFEBREIMNTE -
PEON AR ERRS ZEMENETREEERLD - =
S oFTHF  RHRBRSD - EREBHEBEIN
B BERACAR ESR - B R BB TRGERN T
BEHEEESETFEE et EEEE -
GartnerD T + TRABBAS BIRIB(R(F H B B
DI HEAE B FRATRIEE T -
R - EARAR DAY UEE 2 BCERR
MR - EEEERGFELEEMBNIERER -

CEFEEAN  BEYEEMSIHRERERTFES
KTBE o s AT BRI EER AT ([IDC]) 8948
P SR RNBETFRIEERFRAL 2RI TE
11.3%E12. 1886 » JYBRNER REER ST -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWROMN

The IDC mobile phone quarterly tracking report revealed a year-on-year
decrease in global smartphone shipments throughout each quarter of 2022. In
the first and second quarter, global smartphone shipments decreased by 8.9%
and 8.7% respectively. In the third quarter, global smartphone shipments fell
by 9.7% compared to the previous year, reaching 301,900,000 units. This
decline represented the largest drop ever recorded in the third quarter. The
fourth quarter of the same year witnessed even more substantial challenges,
with global smartphone shipments totalling approximately 300,300,000 units.
This figure marked an 18.3% year-on-year decline, representing the largest
single-quarter decline in history.

In 2022, much of the world emerged from the shadow of the pandemic and
began to transition towards a sense of normalcy. In Mainland China, the
strict pandemic prevention and control measures started to ease in December
2022. However, the local economy and consumer spending levels, which
had been largely paralyzed in the past, still required time to fully recover. The
overall recovery of the consumer market for semiconductor-related products
encountered obstacles due to the dampened sentiments towards non-
essential consumption.

During the year under review, the Group’s semiconductor distribution
business recorded a revenue of HK$634.3 million (2022: HK$1,012.7 million)
which came mainly from its Singapore subsidiary that focuses on Southeast
Asian countries such as India, Malaysia and Vietnam. Memory chips are the
main product sold to the Singapore market followed by thin film transistor
liquid crystal displays and panels which are widely used in LCD televisions. Due
to the prevailing market conditions of excessive customer electronics supply,
the inventory of semiconductor components experienced a significant surge.
Consequently, this has contributed to a decline in the Group’s gross profit
during the year under review.

During the year under review, the revenue of the Group’s joint venture AVP
Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (“AVPEL Group”) was not included
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. It recorded a revenue of
HK$19,270 million (2022: HK$26,279 million). Compared to the previous
year, the Group’s share of profit in AVPEL Group decreased, mainly due to
a decline in revenue for AVPEL Group during the year under review. AVPEL
Group’s main customers are China’s major mobile phone manufacturers
and component suppliers. AVPEL Group primarily engages in distribution of
Samsung Electronics including CMOS image sensors and multi-layer packaged
chips.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Consumer Product and Product Sourcing Business

The overall operation of the Group’s consumer product and product sourcing
business is mainly managed by one of its subsidiaries, AVC Technology
(International) Limited, which distributes a wide range of electronic products,
ranging from small home appliances to the latest fashionable technology
gadgets, with a view to improving the customers’ quality of life and cater for
their needs. The consumer product and product sourcing business targets at
various markets including Hong Kong, Singapore, Thailand and Indonesia.

During the year under review, the Group’s consumer product and product
sourcing business recorded a revenue of HK$24.7 million (2022: HK$29.0
million). The consumer retail market in Hong Kong faced ongoing challenges
throughout the year. The pandemic situation persisted, leading to the
implementation of strict social distancing measures for the majority of 2022.
Furthermore, the Hong Kong consumer retail market continued to be severely
affected by restrictions on international shipping and the closure or limited
operation of major cross-border ports with Mainland China.

In the Southeast Asian market, the sharing economy, e-commerce, the
reopening of borders, the recovery of online travel platforms, and the
increased demand for digital services have been driving the rapid growth
of digital economic activities in the region. According to a report titled
"Purchasing and Payment Methods in Southeast Asia in 2022: New
Opportunities, Connections, and Risks” by global payment platform 2C2P and
the Merchant Risk Council, the pandemic has accelerated industry digitization,
and Southeast Asia is projected to surpass the $300 billion mark by 2026.

The “2022 Southeast Asia Digital Economy Report,” jointly compiled by
Google, Singapore’s Temasek Holdings, and Bain Strategy Consulting, further
emphasizes the growth potential of the digital economy in the region. It
predicts that the gross merchandise value (“GMV") of the six major Southeast
Asian economies, including Indonesia, Malaysia, the Philippines, Singapore,
Thailand and Vietnam, will reach $200 billion in 2022, representing a 20%
year-on-year increase. The report also anticipates steady growth in the
Southeast Asian digital economy, with the GMV projected to account for
14% of consumer payments in the region by 2026, a 133% increase from
2021. Moreover, the report highlights that the digital economy’s growth rate
in Southeast Asia will be twice that of the region’s GDP, potentially reaching a
staggering $1 trillion by 2030 as online shopping becomes the norm.

Following the accelerated digitalization triggered by the pandemic, the rate of
digital adoption has normalized in recent years. Major digital manufacturers
are now shifting their focus from acquiring new customers to deepening
engagement with existing customers to enhance usage and value. The
ongoing expansion of e-commerce activities in the region maintains an
optimistic outlook for the overall consumer electronics market. Steady growth
is expected in Southeast Asian e-commerce activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWROMN

In response to these trends, the Group will continue to effectively deploy and
leverage resources related to the consumer product and product sourcing
business. This strategic approach aims to prepare for the post-pandemic
recovery and the revival of the local consumer market, serving a broader
range of users both offline and online while delivering high-quality and
reliable services.

Internet Social Media Business

During the year under review, revenue from 830 Media Limited was HK$1.0
million (2022: HK$0.7 million), mainly contributed by 830 Lab Limited (“830
Lab").

830 Lab is dedicated to helping its clients to promote their brands and
businesses online. 830 Lab offers not only web design and development
services, but also online content creation services including filming,
photography and post-production.

The Group will continue to review and deploy its existing brand resources,
and draw on its experience in operational strategy to manage the Internet
social media business. The Group will pay close attention to the latest industry
developments.

Venture Capital Business

During the year under review, the Group’s venture capital business recorded
a loss of HK$13.9 million (2022: a profit of HK$15.4 million), mainly due to
fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
net, interest income on listed bond investments, and dividend income from
listed equity investments in the current year. As of 31 March 2023, listed
and unlisted equity investments, listed bond investments, over-the-counter
equity investment and key management insurance contracts were held at a
fair market value of HK$38.2 million (31 March 2022: HK$53.9 million) by the
Group. During the year under review, the Group’s venture capital business
recorded a fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, net of HK$14.1 million (2022: fair value gain of HK$14.6 million).

The venture capital business has always contributed considerable income for
the Group. The ultimate objective for these investments is to make capital
gains on investee’s equity listings or, in some circumstances, prior to listing.

On 31 March 2023, the Group’s major strategic investments included
investments in Tooniplay Co., Ltd. and Urban City Joint Stock Company.
Tooniplay Co., Ltd. is a Korean-based mobile game developer, and Urban City
Joint Stock Company is a Vietnamese e-commerce company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Prospect

The global economy continues to face uncertainties in 2023 due to challenges
witnessed in 2022, such as rising inflation, aggressive interest rate hikes
by central banks, and geopolitical tensions. These factors have resulted in
significant volatility and adjustments across various asset classes, further
exacerbating the challenges within the overall economic landscape. With
inflation remains high, and the financial industry’s outlook continues to raise
concerns, these factors contribute to the possibility of a slowdown in the
global economic growth.

The “April 2023 World Economic Outlook” report from the International
Monetary Fund predicts a drop in global economic growth rate from 3.4%
in 2022 to 2.8% in 2023. Notably, developed economies are expected to
experience a more pronounced slowdown, with their growth rate projected
to decline from 2.7% in 2022 to 1.3% in 2023. The United Nations also
anticipates low global economic growth in 2023. According to the United
Nations “World Economic Situation and Prospects for Mid-Term 2023" report,
the prospects for a strong recovery in the global economy are dim amid rising
inflation, interest rates, and increasing uncertainties.

Furthermore, the persistence of trade protectionism and the lingering
impacts of the ongoing pandemic have yet to be fully resolved. The fiscal
and monetary policies implemented by various countries, especially major
economies, in response to the pandemic have introduced further uncertainty
to the political and economic environment, thus posing challenges to the
global economic growth momentum.

The global semiconductor industry is expected to face challenges in the
macroeconomic environment. According to the World Semiconductor Trade
Statistics Organization, it is projected that the global semiconductor market
will experience a year-on-year decline of 4.1%, reaching approximately
US$557 billion in 2023. This marks the first negative growth in four years.
However, despite this short-term decline, the long-term prospects for the
semiconductor industry remain strong, and there is generally optimistic
sentiment regarding the revenue growth of semiconductor.

Despite being a vital component of the global interconnected economy and
supporting various industries’ application development, the semiconductor
industry must proactively pursue diversified growth strategies and adapt
flexibly to meet ever-changing market demands. By embracing these
challenges, the industry can position itself for continued success in the
dynamic and interconnected global marketplace.

The Group remains committed to prioritizing the development of its core
business in semiconductor distribution. It will diligently monitor the latest
industry trends, consolidate and expand its existing operations, and remain
attentive to emerging opportunities within the industry. By doing so, the
Group aims to identify and pursue new avenues for business growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWROMN

Meanwhile, the outbreak of the pandemic resulted in a significant surge in
growth for the e-commerce and digital financial industries. Even after the
initial wave of the pandemic subsided, these sectors continued to witness
steady development. The change in consumer behaviour during the pandemic
led to a notable shift towards online shopping, prompting the e-commerce
industry and its related digital payment and financial services to further
mature and expand.

Southeast Asia has emerged as a crucial market for e-commerce, attracting
the attention of Chinese consumer electronics companies seeking overseas
expansion. According to the “White Paper on Export of Home Appliances
and 3C Products” published by Meta, Southeast Asia is increasingly becoming
a focal point for these companies. Among consumer products, high-value
categories such as household appliances, computers, and accessories are
expected to present significant opportunities in the cross-border electronic
product market this year. Additionally, consumer electronics companies
offering diversified lifestyle categories, including fashion and other related
segments, are likely to stimulate multi-level consumer demand.

With its extensive experience and accumulated resources in the consumer
product business, serving as an agent for a wide range of electronic products,
small home appliances, and cutting-edge technology products, the Group is
well-equipped to capitalize on the opportunities presented by e-commerce
development. Further, the Group has dedicated significant efforts towards
expanding its e-commerce presence in Southeast Asia over the past few
years, particularly in Indonesia, through its associated companies. As a result,
the operational foundation gradually stabilized. We are optimistic that these
endeavours will yield substantial advantages for the Group’s consumer
product and product sourcing business in the foreseeable future.

The global and local macroeconomic landscape remains fraught with
challenges that are increasingly complex and unpredictable. Structural issues
within the macroeconomy, the ongoing impact of the pandemic, and the
escalating concerns surrounding climate change have all contributed to a
deteriorating outlook for global economic growth. In response to this evolving
environment, the Group is committed to investing significant resources in
addressing these challenges with agility and scalability across its people,
operations, and technology.

Relying on prudent development strategies and industry leadership, the Group
will meet every challenge and strive to achieve stable growth — consolidating
its market position, maintaining its competitive advantages, and remaining
steadfast in delivering reasonable returns to shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total debt position and the gearing ratio as at 31 March 2023 are shown as
follows:

EEENWR DN

REE SR BEIR
R-ZB- == A=+ AZEBRERRRAEE
AEELENT

2023 2022

—E-=HF —EF

HK$'million HK$'million

BEABT BEBT

Cash and cash equivalents RekERBELEE 121.4 152.2
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRBEEATEBIEZEREE GT

(included in current assets) ARBEE) 11.9 28.4

133.3 180.6

Borrowings and lease liabilities BRAEEEE 20.1 7.6

Total equity EiRER 1,613.3 1,622.0

Total debt to total equity B RR s (AR v tE 1.2% 0.5%

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents (i.e. cash and
bank balances and deposits with other financial institutions) of HK$121.4
million (31 March 2022: HK$152.2 million), while the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (included in current assets) amounted to
HK$11.9 million (31 March 2022: HK$28.4 million). The equity investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included a balanced
mix of fixed income, equity and alternative investments and such amount
represented the cash reserves held for the Group’s medium to long term
business development and would form an integral part of the Group’'s
treasury.

The total debt to total equity ratio as at 31 March 2023 was 1.2% (31
March 2022: 0.5%), while the Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2023 was
HK$1,613.3 million (31 March 2022: HK$1,622.0 million), with the total
balances of cash and cash equivalents, and equity investments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (included in current assets) as at 31
March 2023 of HK$133.3 million (31 March 2022: HK$180.6 million).
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BEEN N DT

The working capital position of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 March

AEEZE2BBESNRADAERR R_F-_=F=

2023, the liquidity ratio was 164% (2022: 239%). R=+—8 RBESLER164% (ZT -4 :
239%) °

2023 2022

—E:-=F T

HKS$’million HK$ million

BEAT BEETT

Current assets MENEE 206.6 258.6
Current liabilities mBaE (125.7) (108.4)
Net current assets MEEEFE 80.9 150.2
Current assets to current liabilities BEEERSAE R 164% 239%

Management is confident that the Group follows a prudent policy in  EEERE @ AEBKRBEEBCREEETENKE

managing its treasury position, and maintains a high level of liquidity to ensure
that the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities for
the business.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group recorded financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$38.2 million (31 March 2022:
HK$53.9 million). For a detailed breakdown of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, please refer to note 9 in the consolidated statement of
financial position. For the performance during the year and future prospects
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, please refer to the
section “Business Review — Venture Capital Business” on page 14 of this
annual report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain of the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have
been pledged to secure the bank facilities granted to the Group.

COMMITMENT

Details of the commitment of the Group are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed a total of approximately 138 (31
March 2022: approximately 137) full-time employees. The Group recruits and
promotes individuals based on merit and their development potentials for
the positions offered. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
their performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. Discretionary
bonuses may granted based on the Group'’s and individual’s performances.

18 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 43k

ﬂ?ﬁ?%%—gmibéi L/\EE1%Z'K$. b%@BﬁHTTETE%
BigREE -

BEARE

R-ZE-_=ZFZA=+—8 KEEBRBEBIEZR
RAFEMEY R SR EEX38,200,00087T (ZF
——#H#=F=+—H :53,900,000/87) - EFEB
BaRAVTEBIRECRHEERMA  F2HmRAE
BIRREWGEO - BB BEREATEEBEIEREZ®
BMEERFAZERBEEARA R  BL2HAFHRE 14
Bl¥BEE - AIRER]—f -

BEEMH
AEEETEBBSRATHAENE L SREARDIE
ISR T AEEMRITRE -

AiE
R ERIE B HNRA SRR 39 -

=]

MRZZEZ=F=A=+—H8 TEBESHEHAL138
Z(ZE-—F=ZA=+—8:H1378)=HEE -
AEEDRBEEIZNERETIRBMN L2 EREN
MIEARREEAKRS - HIEE H2RET KRB
EMBERZHSKEMET - AEENTSEAEE
Kie B EARBIE L EARERIISTEA -



PROFILE OF
DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EENEREEERRE




Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So"”), aged 73, is the founder, Chairman, Chief
Executive Offer and Executive Director of the Company. Dr. So is the father
of Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, all being Executive
Directors of the Company. In the early 1980’s, he founded AV Concept
Limited. Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and
business development to the Company. Dr. So has over 47 years of experience
in the electronics industry. Under his leadership, AV Concept achieved
remarkable results in the sales and marketing of semiconductors contributing
to the appointment by Samsung Electronics as its distributor since 1982.
In 1989, AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. was established to develop its
electronic business in Singapore, South-east Asia countries and subsequently
expanded to the market in the People’s Republic of China through vertical
integration in early 90's. In April 1996, AV Concept Holdings Limited listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group
continuously received numerous awards, including Samsung Electronics’s “Best
Performance Award” in recognition of the excellent sales and marketing
performance as well as contribution to cultivate strong customers relationship
in the semiconductors market.

Dr. So holds an honorary degree, Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the International American University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of East Asia (now
known as University of Macau) and he is also a Fellow Member of the British
Institute of Management. Presently, he is the Executive Vice Chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
Limited (“HKEIA") and the Chairman of Education Foundation of HKEIA.
Dr. So is also the Vice President of The Hong Kong Semiconductor Industry
Council. Further, Dr. So is a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and the Honorary Chairman of Advisory Committee (Industry) of
Cooperative Education Centre of City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (“Mr. Kevin So"”), aged 37, is the Chief Operation
Officer and Executive Director of the Company responsible for operation of
the Group and AVC Technology (International) Limited, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Kevin So joined the Group in 2011 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November 2015.
Mr. Kevin So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major in Management)
from Bentley College in United States of America in May 2008 and a Master
of Business Administration degree from Bentley University in United States
of America in February 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kevin So had
pursued a career in corporate finance in an international financial institution.
Mr. Kevin So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny,
an Executive Director of the Company.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (“Mr. Sunny So"”), aged 35, is the Executive Director
of the Company, chief executive officer of 830 Lab Limited, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which is principally engaged in
internet social media business. Mr. Sunny So joined the Group in 2011 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November 2015.
Mr. Sunny So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major in Graphic
Design) from Northeastern University in United States of America in January
2011. Mr. Sunny So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr. Kevin So,
an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui"”), pPhp, sBs, Jp, aged 85, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company Since 1996. Dr. Lui is an established
industrialist serving as the Honorary Chairman of the HKEIA and the Honorary
President of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the
founder chairman of Hong Kong Shandong Business Association, Honorary
President of Federation of HK Shandong Community Organisations Limited.
Adviser Prof. of Shandong University. He was elected to the First, Second and
Third Legislative Council of the HKSAR in 1998, 2000 and 2004 respectively.
Dr. Lui was also member of the tenth and eleventh National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Member of standing
Shandong Provincial Committee of C.P.P.C.C., Advisory board member of
the Hong Kong International Arbitration Center, President of The Hong Kong
Association for the Advancement of Science and Technology and Advisor of
Hong Kong Affairs. He is the managing director of Keystone Electronics Co.,
Limited. Besides, he is currently an independent non-executive director of L.K.
Technology Holdings Limited and Gold Peak Technology Group Ltd. (both
companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Dr. Lui
obtained a master’s degree in Applied Science from the University of New
South Wales in Australia and a PhD from the University of Saskatchewan in
Canada. He completed the “Hong Kong Senior Staff Course No. 1, 1984". He
is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (“Mr. Chapman”), aged 74, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2000. He
was Executive Director of the HKEIA and Managing Director of the HKEIA's
subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd.
from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Prior to joining the HKEIA, Mr.
Chapman worked for 12 years as Economics Editor at the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and for 8 years as Business Editor in a local English-
language newspaper.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund (“Mr. Lai"”), aged 57, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2019. Mr. Lai obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering from Imperial College London in 1987.
He is a qualified accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales. Mr. Lai has over 30 years of experience in finance and
treasury management. Mr. Lai started his career in 1987 with Ernst & Young
in London where he qualified as a Chartered Accountant. In 1993, Mr. Lai
transferred to Ernst & Young in Hong Kong as a manager in their audit
services and was responsible for various large company audits and IPO’s in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). In 1996, Mr.
Lai joined the Company as the Group Financial Controller. Mr. Lai was the
Chief Financial Officer and the Executive Director of the Company from 2003
to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Lai acted as the Chief Executive Officer of
AV BreconRidge Limited and the President of BreconRidge Manufacturing
Solutions (Asia) Limited. In 2008, Mr. Lai started his own consultancy services
and worked on projects for various PRC companies and charities. Mr. Lai
joined Vertex Services Limited (a member of HMTX Industries LLC) as the Chief
Financial Officer since 2011 and continued to serve to present. He has overall
responsibility for the finance, treasury and risk management functions of
Vertex Services Limited and its related companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hang (“Mr. Chan"), aged 46, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 2015.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in accounting and auditing, and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group consist of the marketing and distribution of electronic
components, the design, development and sale of consumer products and
product sourcing business, venture capital investment, and internet social
media business.

Further discussion and analysis of business review as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 18
of this annual report. The above discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the Company, as assisted by the audit committee of the
Company, oversees the Group's internal control and risk management system,
and conducts periodic reviews of such system to ensure good corporate
governance practice. The supervision process and outcome of the latest
review is set out in more detail in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control” in corporate governance report in this annual report. The
following is a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group. The management of the Company meets periodically to discuss these
risks, and where appropriate, will monitor the situation closely and adopt any
necessary risk mitigation measures.

Industry risk

The sale and distribution of electronic components and design, development
and sales of consumer product and product sourcing business are sensitive
to technology change. The industry is also subject to rapidly changing
market trends and intense competition amongst different players. This may
materially and adversely affect the Group's business performance. To maintain
competitiveness, the management of the Company will meet regularly to
update the technology change and the industry environment.

Economy risk

The performance of the Group is affected by the overall economy growth,
especially in the electronic components market. If the economy slows down,
it is highly likely that the demand for electronic components may be reduced.
Any continued economic slowdown or recession may result in a decrease in
sales, and may lead to a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and
results of operations.
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Financial risk

Credit risk

To minimise credit risk, the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure
there is follow-up action to recover overdue debts. The Group also reviews
the recoverable amount of trade receivables by the simplified approach for
impairment at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Board therefore
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which
it deems adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of cash flow fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates related
primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. It does not currently has any interest rate hedging policy, but
closely monitors its exposure to interest rate risk due to changes in market
rates and will consider hedging changes should the need arise.

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The management of the Company monitors the changes
of securities prices and may change the investment portfolio held if needed.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Compliance with the laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. During the year under review, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group during
the year under review.
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Relationship with employees, clients, suppliers and other
stakeholders

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on the
support from its key stakeholders, including employees, clients, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. During the year under review, there
were no material and significant disputes between the Group and its key
stakeholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 89 to 195 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
(2022: HK$0.04) per share for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Monday, 4 September 2023, will be payable on
Wednesday, 27 September 2023 to shareholders whose names appear on the
registrar of members of the Company on Monday, 11 September 2023. Based
on 908,663,302 shares in issue as of the date of this report, the total dividend
will amount to approximately HK$9.1 million.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled on Monday, 4
September 2023. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 30 August 2023 to Monday, 4 September 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29 August 2023.

In order to determine the list of shareholders who are entitled to receive the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company’s
register of members will be closed from Friday, 8 September 2023 to Monday,
11 September 2023, both days inclusive. Shareholders are reminded that
in order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 7 September 2023.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Avrticles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$443,885,000 (2022: HK$467,317,000).
The share premium of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the shareholders provided that immediately following the
distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

MBEREE

TX#HIAEERFHRE D NELERTBRERZ &I
hERRFEZEAMEEANBERBERS -

RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 March
HZ=A=1—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=% e S —T=—F —TZEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAEL T T TET
REVENUE e 660,008 1,042,449 1,241,160 1,337,326 1,698,796
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB ATRF 40,841 236,034 276,718 92,462 55,607
Income tax FriSH (123) (5,013) (7,192) (1,711) @14)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 40,718 231,021 269,526 90,751 55,193
Attributable to: AT ALIE
Owners of the Company ZAVNGIE 2SN 40,718 231,021 269,788 93,443 57,278
Non-controlling interests MR - - (262) (2,692) (2,085)
40,718 231,021 269,526 90,751 55,193
Assets and liabilities EEREE
As at 31 March
R=ZBA=1+-B
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=F ZE-CF —E-—F —ECEF —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAEL FET FEx FET
TOTAL ASSETS BEMGE 1,753,589 1,745,464 1,586,615 1,393,820 1,317,018
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfEEH (140,253) (123,426) (161,606) (212,823) (201,425)
1,613,336 1,622,038 1,425,009 1,180,997 1,115,593
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, PhD, SBS, JP

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman

Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, PhD, SBS, JP,
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman, and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund, confirming
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 19 to 22 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, and approved by the Board of Directors (the “Board”), as
authorised by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s
affairs. No Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including medical and
retirement benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from basic salary, Executive
Directors and employees are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking
into account factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and
individual's performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees, including the
Directors, the subsidiaries have adopted share option schemes. The schemes
enable the eligible persons to obtain an ownership interest in the subsidiaries
and thus will motivate them to optimise their continuing contributions to the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which any of the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
the Listing Rules, are as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company and associated
corporation
(@) Interests in shares of the Company

EERNRS RSNz ER

BEESHHMERRRNFAMERNARRIEAHE R
BIFTRI M EREAREXBBEA 2R S - ©HEX
AR EEAEEEGE A

EERBSTRAERKS R EER G
p 1

RZZB-=ZF=ZA=1+—H ARAEZMRRSTH
ABRARA RS EBEEE (TERESF KIS KD
(TBHREIEEN ) EXVER) 2 B85 KRR
BRRAMREES KA EEHIE3IS2E 2 R EE TR
Tz B MATResk 2 2 - SR E EMRBIFTEL T
BITAEFETESFRSNZETA([EEFR]) A
BITHE AR R R T

RAERXTRRBBEERG 2F2

(a) RAERARGzESE

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares of the interest in the
Name of Director and chief executive  and capacity Company issued shares
BRTRDER
EERBSTHRABHR ERtERSH ARAREBEREE BHBED
Dr. So Corporate interest 521,851,468 63.16%
BRE L NGl
Beneficial owner 52,058,400
E=BAA (Note)
(f5E)

Note: These shares include (i) 410,507,602 shares of the Company held by B.K.S.
Company Limited (“BKS"); (i) 111,343,866 shares of the Company held by
Jade Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”); and (i) 52,058,400 shares of the
Company held by Dr. So as beneficial owner. Dr. So is deemed to be interested
in 521,851,468 shares of the Company by virtue of his interests in BKS and
Jade Concept, the particulars are more fully described in the section headed
“Interests of Substantial Shareholders” below.
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(b)

Interests in underlying shares of associated corporation of the
Company
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(b) REQATEBCEEEBR G 2 &

Approximate

Number of percentage of

ordinary shares of interest in

Name of Director Nature of interest Name of associated associated

and chief executive and capacity associated corporations corporations corporations

HEEE MBS

EERESTRABESR ERMERSH HECEE AR LEREE BOE D

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny Beneficial owner 830 Lab Limited (“830 Lab") 220,000 (Note) 30.98%
("Mr. Sunny So”) ExBBA (K3

WERRE

Note: These underlying shares in 830 Lab, a subsidiary of the Company, represent
interest in the share options granted to Mr. Sunny So pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by 830 Lab.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company and
a subsidiary of the Company are separately disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had registered any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and in the share option schemes
disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

FfsE : 830 Lab(RAB—MMEARR) 2 % EFHREM M E
MRIE830 LabFfi SRk < BB RMERT IR AR L5 4
Z R R

FRRARTRARE — M B2 MR
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2023, the following substantial shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

FERRZER

RZE-_=F=ZA=+—H U FEBRR(KRT]
EZRERTRASRIN RARQERD T HEIRE
BHE RS EPIE33616 2 REBTRE ZELMAT
FC8EZ 5%k A FHESS ¢

Long position in the shares of the Company RAEARRGDZEFR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of shareholder Nature of capacity shares held issued shares
ERITROER
BRRERE S g ki1 FEROEE BRNEDE
BKS Beneficial owner 410,507,602 (Note 1) 45.18%
E=BEAA (B5ET)
Jade Concept Beneficial owner 111,343,866 (Note 2) 12.25%
E=EAA (f5E2)
Madam Yeung Kit Ling (“Madam Yeung"”) Interest of spouse 573,909,868 (Note 3) 63.16%
52% 1t ([HizL]) [y o s (f3E3)
Notes: BRE -
1. BKS is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to be 1. BKSEHEIE T EREA - RIEFFRIAE KD - IS+

interested in 410,507,602 shares of the Company held by BKS.

2. Jade Concept is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to
be interested in 111,343,866 shares of the Company held by Jade Concept.

3. As Madam Yeung is the spouse of Dr. So, by virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by BKS and Jade Concept in which Dr. So
has interest, and 52,058,400 shares held by Dr. So as beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Company has not been
notified by any person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out above) having interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or which are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements of the
Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Company operate share option
schemes (the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operation. Further details of the Schemes are disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting to
HK$358,000 (2022: HK$320,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 44% of the Group's total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
11%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year accounted
for approximately 96% of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 87%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than those businesses of which the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or
the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares were held by the public during the year ended 31 March 2023
and as at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year, and each of the independent non-executive
directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of one year.

Directors’ Report
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None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with any member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existing during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, an indemnity
provision was in force. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 36 to 46 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of financial assistance to, and
(where applicable) guarantee given for the loan facilities granted to, affiliated
companies of the Company, exceeds 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07 (1) of the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirement
of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial
position of the affiliated companies (with attributable interest of the Group in
the affiliated companies) as at the latest applicable date is set out below:

BEEREERRBFAS LEENEFERNEEIT
AR B AR BAREE AR —F AR LM BARE
CEERERRIN MRIEEH ©

EEEWN
FRBHE AT R ES WAL AR EANS
£ 2 ERRITBAL -

BEERTRERX

VR4 [ PO RN AR LB - 5 — TSR ST A o
AATERBEFENAEERIEE EERIRR
R -

RER
AAREEEHRZENE  BRAFREICAES
467 -

BELTRAE13.2KEEZEKE

MRIBZ=F=A=+—H AR ABBRRESEZ
AL ER) MEERE TR ERI ZERZ
REEB ETARF14.07(WIRAREZEEL R Z
8% o RFFA FTRBIE13.226 7 HE - NEiTER
BH - BEARZAHFMBRAR (BEANEERE
BAR R EGER) BT

Group's

Combined statement attributable

of financial position interest

EORBARR R AEBELER

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH&T FAT

Non-current assets FEREEE 161,705 121,279
Current assets MENEE 6,525,646 4,894,235
Current liabilities mEAE (4,981,638) (3,736,229)
Non-current liabilities JEmEEE (2,937) (2,203)
1,702,776 1,277,082

Share capital A& A 180,000 135,000
Reserves 15 1,522,776 1,142,082
1,702,776 1,277,082
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance its transparency and corporate value. The Group believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework between the Board and the
shareholders so as to enhancing shareholders’ interest and value as a whole.
The Board continually reviews and improves its corporate governance practices
to ensure the Company keeps abreast of the expectation of shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”).

The purpose of this report is to provide Shareholders with information on
the major principles and corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has applied the
major principles and complied with the code provisions, except for the code
provision C.2.1, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the
Company’s corporate governance practices will be described in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board should assure responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company and its subsidiaries affairs.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation of the
Group's business objectives and strategies. Matters reserved for the Board
are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finance and risk
management. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group directed by leadership of the Executive Directors. To
this end, the senior management has to implement, manage and monitor
the business plans, internal controls and corporate governance practices
developed by the Board.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

As at 31 March 2023, the Board comprised three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs
to be independent. Having the INEDs in the Board ensure that independent
judgment is exercised and that a proper balance of power is maintained
for full and effective control of the Group and its executive management.
The Directors believe that the existing Board composition reflects the
Company's respect for high standards of business conduct commonly
adopted by multinational enterprises. The INEDs perform an important role in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
(which include an assessment of the skills, knowledge and experience of the
existing Directors and suitable candidates) and for formulating procedures for
appointment of its own members and for nominating them for election by
the Shareholders on the first appointment and thereafter at regular intervals
through the retirement by rotation process pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for specific term and has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year, which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than one month’s notice in writing. All the Directors
are subjected to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with Article 114 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Dr. Lui and Mr. Lai will retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. They
are being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ") of the
Company are held by Dr. So.

Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and business
development to the Company. Dr. So is the founder of the Group and has
over 47 years of experience in the electronic industry.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the
CEO in the same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In addition, under
the supervision of the Board which is comprised of three Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to protect the
interests of the Group and its shareholders.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Chairman determines
that the Board is provided with direction and sufficient consultation for the
Directors in effectively discharging their responsibilities for different aspects of
the business.

The CEO, supported by senior management, are responsible for implementation
of corporate goals, business strategies and policies resolved by the Board from
time to time. The CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of
the Group's operations and development.

Save as Dr. So, the Chairman and the CEQ, is the father of Mr. Kevin So, the
Chief Operation Officer, and Mr. Sunny So, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.
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Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at about quarterly interval. The
senior management of the Group from time to time reports to the Directors
information on the activities and development of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The attendance record of regular four board meetings held during the year is
set out below:

EEEEE

ERRRAREANETERT R - AEEZER
ERETKAEFHERMAREXRH A RER
HERL o 1o - EERMBEAEEZ —PER - AR
BERSEATEREABLIEEER

FRABRTZHAEREFEER 2 HELHEAIIN
T

Attendance/ BEHE

Name of Directors Number of meetings EZEHH BITRY™
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and BERHELT

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 (EEFRITEAER) 4/4
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer) 4/4  BREIES A (EHEAE) 4/4
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny 4/4 BRELEAE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHTEE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp 4/4  BEPAZEIEL o php - sBS AL 4/4
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 4/4  Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 4/4
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 4/4  FRIBFEAE 4/4
Board Committees EELES

As at the date of the report, there were four Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee in operation and each one of
them was established with specific terms of references to assist the Board
discharging its responsibilities and maintaining proper internal controls and to
promote good corporate governance as a whole.

Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee comprises of three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Lai Yat Hung
Edmund and the other members include, Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sgs, Jp and
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include (i) to discuss with the
external auditor before the audit commence, the nature and scope of the
audit and confirm their independence and objectivity; (ii) to review the
Group's financial information before submission to the Board; (iii) to review
the Group’s financial reporting system and the effectiveness of the audit
process with internal control procedure; (iv) to review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
internal audit function; and (v) to review external auditor’s management letter
and the relationship with the Group.
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In accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year to review the interim results and the
final results of the Company.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2022. The Audit Committee had also
reviewed and discussed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
is set out below.
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Attendance/ eRELE
Name of Audit Committee Members Number of meetings BRZEEREHR BITIRE
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund (Chairman) 22 BERBEHE(ER) 22
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp 22 BEAEEL - phD - sBs - ATHT 2/2
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman’t 4 2/2
Remuneration Committee FMEER

As at 31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee comprises of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp, and the other members include Mr.
Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund. One Remuneration
Committee meeting was held during the year to consider the salary
adjustment of the Directors and all members had attended the meeting.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing
the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as
well as remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. No Director or any of his associates shall be involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee normally meets once a
year and at other times as required.
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The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year is set out below.

FRBITZHFMEZEEER 2 HFELEHIIWT -

Attendance/ gabE

Name of Remuneration Committee Members Number of meetings HHEZEESHEHKS BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp BRREEE L » phD - sBS - AT+

(Chairman) 11 (/%) 1/1

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman%t 4 m

Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171 B&REREAE 11

Nomination Committee

As at 31 March 2023, the Nomination Committee comprises of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and the other members include Dr. Lui Ming
Wah, php, sBs, Jp, and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO.

The Nomination Committee meeting held at least once a year and additional
meeting may be held as required. During the year, the Nomination Committee
held a meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting held during the
year is set out below:
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Attendance/ o2EEE
Name of Nomination Committee Members Number of meetings REZEBHEHSR HBITIRE
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (Chairman) 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?t & (/&) 11
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, Php, sBs, Jp 171 BEFEE L php - osBS  ATME 11
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171 RRBEAE 11
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy and the Company believes
that the implementation of this policy will help improve the functioning of
the Board and its corporate governance. Diversity of board members can be
achieved by considering various factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skill, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee considers
whether the proposed Director satisfies the diversity of Directors or not while
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become a member of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will regularly review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives.

As at the date of the report, the Board consists of 6 male directors with
different professional backgrounds. The Board is working hard to achieve
gender diversity in the coming future. The Nomination Committee believes
that the existing Board provides the required professional skills, experience
and guidance for the Company’s operations and management in terms of
the Company’s relevant business operations. The Nomination Committee will
continue to review the Board diversity policy from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Committee

As at 31 March 2023, the Corporate Governance Committee comprises
of three Independent Non-executive Directors. The Corporate Governance
Committee is chaired by Dr. Lui Ming Wabh, php, sBs, Jp, and the other members
included Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund.

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for developing
and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee meeting held at least once a year.
During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a meeting and
reviewed the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

The attendance record of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held
during the year is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of meetings

Name of Corporate Governance Committee
Members

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, JP

(Chairman) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 171
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board reviews the Group’s risk management and internal control
system from time to time and will take any necessary and appropriate action
to maintain an adequate risk management and internal control system
to safeguard Shareholders’ interests. An internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent establishment
is in charge for overall review on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system and will be discussed annually with the Audit
Committee.

During the financial year under review, the internal audit function had
arranged to conduct reviews over the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system to provide reasonable assurance
on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the established
corporate objectives, safeguarding Group's assets, providing reliable financial
reporting, and complying with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the risk management and
internal control system of the Group has been functioned and adequately and
no material internal control aspects of any significant problems were noted.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
POLICY

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
probity, openness, and accountability. A Whistleblowing Policy is in place to
create a system for the employees and those who deal with the Company
(e.g. business partners and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties. Designated email accounts and other channels have
been set up for this purpose. The identity of each whistleblower and all
information provided in connection with a whistleblowing report will be
treated with the strictest confidence. All whistleblowing cases will be reported
to the chairman and members of Audit Committee.

To uphold the Group’s zero tolerance towards all forms of corruption,
bribery and extortion and to provide guidance to employees on how to avoid
corruption, bribery and extortion in the course of their work, the Company
also adopts the Code of Business Ethics which reflects the Company’s
stance and policies against corruption, and sets out the basic standard of
conduct expected of all employees, the Company’s policies on acceptance
of advantages and entertainment, and declaration of conflict of interest by
employees in connection with their positions or official duties.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent auditor during
the year, is set out as follows:
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Services rendered FriR R I% Fee paid/payable
et ENER

HK$'000

FHETT

Audit of financial statements BRI BHRE 2,150

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

With the assistance of the Finance Department which is under the supervision
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Directors ensure the preparation and
publication of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in a timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and
accounting standards. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

A statement by the Company’s auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 81 to 88 of this report.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company established a dedicated investor relations section in order
to provide timely information to the investors as well as Shareholders and
institutional investors. The Company also conducts a meeting with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time and to maintain updated information
opened to the public regarding recent development of the Company. Relevant
information of investor relations is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and their opinions are
valuable to the Company. The Shareholders are encouraged to participate
in general meetings or to appoint proxies or corporate representatives to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. The Shareholders are encouraged to raise their enquiries
on the operations, corporate governance, corporate strategy and further
development of the Company during the meeting by way of shareholders’
rights. The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure
that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The Board members, appropriate
senior executives and external auditor will attend annual general meetings to
answer Shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
In accordance with Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any one
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company.

Putting forward proposals by Shareholders at general
meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to propose
relevant resolutions may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting forward enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of the Company’s
information, to the extent such information can be made available to the
public. Shareholders may at any time make enquiry in respect of the Company
in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the
numbers and email address provided on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy in providing
a communication platform to the Shareholders of the Company with
information about the Company and enabling them to engage actively with
the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy shall be directed to the
company secretary of the Company or the Board of Directors of the Company.
Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meeting shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation and all corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese version to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding, including
but not limited to interim reports, annual reports, results announcements,
notice of general meeting, circulars, and associated explanatory documents,
other announcements and monthly return on movements in the
Company'’s securities for each month and next day disclosure returns in
relation to the Company, which are available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated memorandum of
association (“New Association”) after approved by its shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on 2 September 2022. The New Association
of the Company is available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ABOUT THE REPORT

With the diverse and globalised business development, environmental, social
and governance (the “ESG") is increasingly important to one’s sustainable
development. The Group recognises the importance of integrating ESG
into business operations and strategic management. To monitor its ESG
performance and management, the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) is one of the tools to review and disclose its
performance for comprehensive governance.

All'in one mind, the Group believes that creating sustainable business
operations helps achieve a long-lasting and stable development.

Reporting Boundary

The Report covers the Group’s main businesses, including semiconductor
distribution, consumer product and product sourcing business, venture capital
and internet social media business, in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. The Group’s
policies, management approaches and key performance indicators (“KPIs")
are included in the Report whilst environmental data is further restricted to
the operations in Hong Kong office and warehouse. The scope of this year's
report remains consistent with that of last year.

Strive for the best, the Group will review the coverage and performance of
the Report and extend the scope of disclosures when applicable.

Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in the
Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Four principles, including materiality,
consistency, balance and quantitative, have formed the backbone of the
Report.

Reporting Principles The Group’s Application
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Materiality The Group communicates with different stakeholders to understand their expectations and needs
to identify the material issues. Through various forms of communication, including interviews with
different stakeholders, the Group clarifies the focus of its ESG work for the reporting year and in
the future.
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Consistency

B BEETREFNEENRS  SERERESFEIARNERE - HERERTHEES -

Unless otherwise specified, the Group has adopted the same methodologies.
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Balance The Report is prepared in a fair and impartial manner that discloses both positive and negative
impacts of or towards its operations.
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Quantitative When feasible, the Group quantifies its performance to enhance the management and disclosure.
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48 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 43k



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

For further information on the Group’s corporate governance practices, please
refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual report.

Opinion and Feedback

In order to have a continual improvement, the Group values opinion and
feedback from both internal and external parties. If you have any comments
or inquiries on the Report or other ESG matters, please do not hesitate to
contact us by emailing to ir.dept@avconcept.com.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

To obtain comprehensive management for sustainable development, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for overseeing the overall
ESG performance and determining the policies and strategic decisions.
It is supported by the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”) in monitoring the
implementation of policies and targets. With the establishment of the
Taskforce, which is composed of core members from different departments,
and participation of departments and divisions, the Group is carrying out an
efficient ESG management process.

ESG Taskforce
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relevant policies according to ESG's performance
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* Report to the Board regularly
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¢ Evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms

¢ Examine and evaluate the Group’s performances in different aspects, adjust
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e Collect relevant information and data for the preparation of the Report
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Departments
and divisions
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e Support the establishment
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relevant policies
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¢ Encourage employees in
the relevant departments to
participate in the activities that
promote ESG's performance
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To ensure the effectiveness and implementation of management approach,
the Taskforce undertakes regular check in relation to its sustainability
operations. If there is unusual issue discovered, the Taskforce will consolidate
information and communicate with relevant departments and divisions to get
their feedback. At the same time, the Taskforce will then report to the Board
for the consideration of ESG risks and opportunities incurred and decision
making for the ESG risk management. The Group’s board will adjust relevant
policies according to specific ESG performance and real situations.
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Striving for the best, the Group will review the governance structure regularly
and establish sustainability related strategy, targets and other issues under the
oversight of the Board, when appropriate. Although the Group does not have
a specific sustainable development policy in the reporting year, the Group has
incorporated the concept of sustainable development into its existing relevant
policies to promote sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Continual communication with both internal and external stakeholders helps
solid development of the Group's sustainability operations in the future. The
Group strives to understand the expectations and needs of stakeholders, and
hence integrate their feedbacks into considerations of sustainability strategies
and management approaches. With the help of these stakeholders, the
Group is stepping towards effective governance and enhancing the business
operations and achieving win-win cooperation with relevant stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has communicated with
both internal and external stakeholders via various communication channels.
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Stakeholders Group Engagement Channels
50 &4 Bl SHEEE
Employees J Appraisals
=] BRE]
° Trainings
=l
o Internal memorandum
M ED A8
Investors o Financial reports
wREE g
o Annual general meetings
RERFERE
o Corporate website
NS
o Direct communication
Eh{ uﬂ
Customers o Direct communication
NS BEEA
o Emails
BEH
o Complaint hotlines
REFEAR
Suppliers & business partners o Business meetings
HEE MR ERT Ea
o Audit Reports
FEatmE
Government & other regulatory authorities o Statutory filings and notification
BT A E A B B 1 EEFEAMEM
o Regulatory or voluntary disclosures
EENEREKE
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Stakeholders Group
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Engagement Channels

B EAR SHEEE
Community o Community activities
Zad HEES
o Donations
5

Materiality Assessment

In the consideration of stakeholders’ feedbacks, business nature and
operational performance, the Group has determined the material issues with
regard to the aspects stated in the ESG Reporting Guide. The results of the
Group's assessment of ESG materiality issues for 2023 are as follows:

BEEME
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Aspects Material issues
s BEEEH
Emissions Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions

BERR

Use of resources

BREM

Environment and natural resources
IRERBEAER

Employment

(]

Health and safety
RERMZ S

Development and training
RS

BERE(DEEREE D BN
Air pollutants

RRSEY

Waste management
REEIE

Energy management
BERERE
Water management
FKERE

Air quality
=REE

Recruitment and promotion

HREEFIE FH

Compensation and dismissal

N R R

Benefits and welfares

BRAMEFS

Working hours and rest periods

T VER TR A

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
Ztle - FERENRIER

Safety measures

Z2IE

Employee health management
BTREER

Development and training
R KA
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Aspects Material issues
Eil EEEH
Labour standard o Prevention of child and forced labour
B TR b5 1FE T Rogh|s5 T
Supply chain management o Supply chain management
HEEER HrEnEEne
Product responsibility o Customer privacy protection
EmAE B RELRE
o Quiality management
gegl
o Intellectual property (“IP") rights
T EERE ([HEBERED
o Protection of privacy
FEALIRE
Anti-corruption o Internal control
RES BB I
Community investment o Community participation
HE®RE HE2H

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

The Group understands the importance of protecting the environment to
the sustainable development of the Group and society, follows closely the
green development strategies of the relevant business development regions,
continuously improves its environmental management measures, and actively
addresses the challenges and seizes the opportunities associated with the
risks of climate change. Therefore, the Group strives to minimize the possible
impact of its business operations on the ecological environment and natural
resources by incorporating environmental protection practices into its daily
operations and management methods. With the stringent management and
compliance with relevant regulatory requirements, including the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal
Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance and relevant laws and regulations, the
Group did not aware of any violation with regard to environmental laws and
ordinance during the year ended 31 March 2023.

To strengthen the review of the Group’s own environmental management, the
Group has set environmental target in relation to water conservation in this
reporting year, of which will be shown in the part of water usage. The Group
will start the discussion and formulation of environmental targets in relation to
carbon and energy reduction and waste minimisation in the future to promote
the Group’s further sustainable development in environmental management.
At the same time, the Group will establish specific environmental policies in
the future, when appropriate, for comprehensive management. The Group
will also implement the environmental management aspects of the existing
policies in the Group’s operational management process.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Carbon Emissions

The Group is well aware of the country’s green development policy and
actively cooperates with the country’s carbon-neutral carbon reduction
target, and strives to achieve sustainable development of its own business.
The Group recognises its environmental impacts from the carbon and air
pollutants emissions. Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the Group’s
carbon emissions and air pollutants are mainly generated from the use of
the Group’s private cars and electricity within the Group. The Group will
make corresponding adjustments to the relevant emission reduction targets
in accordance with its future business needs. To reduce the corresponding
environmental impacts, various reduction measures have been adopted
when complying with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and other relevant
laws and regulations, especially in the area of electricity and vehicle use. At
the same time, the Group advocates environmentally friendly operations by
encouraging the involvement of employees.

Employees’ behaviours

RIR - B RERRE

i Bk R

7«!&%@5%%11%{3%%@%%&&% » FEIREC A B R AYHK
RAREXE R ABNERAFEFOARFEER -
ZIS;E(@wﬁzx'JﬁEmﬂﬁﬁﬁ RYBETERIRRS
2  ANAEENEBIEE - REBORFBRMER
AARMEEREBAEELFKENEBMAEEANED
B KREMRERKNEHFTE - HARBEAETEE
THEITHERE - RRIHRNRETE  RfIEE
SFARRIBRPDAIGED) R EARBERERE - 5RE
TR7E/WT3HE|E& LHEREENMEMERLE - [

C AEEBBERBET2HE - EHRRFREE -

Equipment enhancement

BETH RBRE
o Put up energy saving reminder labels next to switchers ° Progressively replace light bulbs with light-emitting diodes
and in prominent locations; (LED);
R ERERMENGES T FAE AR —REE (LED) BRE B
o Switch off idling devices and office equipment when it is ° Install energy efficient lightings and cooling systems;
not needed; LEERERAT R AN KA
EAHER - MARBERBENPNARE
o Divide office area into different light zones and deploy

o Encourage adjusting or switching off air-conditioners with

natural light as much as possible;

regard to the temperature and situation in office; HHAZEHE S D AT RERARMNBEFEA AN
SEVRBR A ERREMIE R AN
° Keep doors and windows closed when air conditioning

Encourage the use of online or teleconference; and

HENERER A ERSHE

Arrange for the last employee to check and turn off all
unneeded air conditioning, lighting and office equipment
before leaving the office.

L ERIE— %ﬁIE%%%AE
EWzER - RPAMPDRE -

IREWRIFAPTE TR

equipment is running;

ERREETR  REFEBE

Set the temperature of air-conditioners no under 25
degrees Celsius;

R AR R EETMER25T

Arrange cleaning regularly of dust screens for air
conditioning and ventilation equipment; and

FEHZHE R ABRREBONES - &

Replace old and highly polluting vehicles with more
environmentally friendly and higher emission standards
models.

FEAERR  EodiREn SR g EMSAREN
B
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB - B RERRS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the total GHG emissions reached
83.20 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent with an intensity of 0.60 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent/employee. As a result of the Group’s use of more
energy-efficient and environmentally friendly private cars, the Group’s direct
carbon emissions have dropped by 4.04%.The emissions from purchased
electricity and other indirect emissions are increased by 12.82%.

HE-Z-_ZF-A=+—HLE  BEREIHRE
EiEFIS3 20 A LIRE E - 38/E A0.608 — A1t
REE/EE - AREEERTELHERROALR
B OEENEERBEENE TR T4.04% - MINES
A A0 R BE R A BEE I A0 T 12.82% ©

Year ended Year ended

GHG Emissions Unit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

BZE HE

—EZZ=F ket

=A=+-—H =A=+—H

BERBHNE By LLEFEE IFFE

Scope 1 Direct GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 40.34 42.04
HENHEERAERBHNE MRt EE

Scope 2 Indirect GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 26.73 30.09
HE2HEAERBHNE MR LIEE

Scope 3 Other indirect GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 16.13 7.90
HEBHEMEEEEREBENE WE—RLIEE

Total GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 83.20 80.03
RERBEHENE WE—E(CIRE S

GHG emissions intensity tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/employee 0.60 0.58

BERBHINERE

M—_StiRER ES

Climate Change

The Group is aware of the climate risks that greenhouse gas emissions
may pose to itself. Acute physical risks such as severe rainstorms, frequent
typhoons and hurricanes may have an adverse impact on the transportation
processes managed by the Group’s supply chain, such as flooding and
damage to electronic products. In addition, chronic physical risks, such as a
gradual increase in global temperatures, may lead to an increase in electricity
demand and operating costs in the Group’s future operations due to increase
demand for cooling. The Group is also exposed to transition risks. For
example, the Group’s consumers may choose less climate-damaging electronic
products as the concept of green development takes hold in terms of market
risks.

To address the risks that may be brought about by climate change, the Group
has strengthened its climate risk management system referring to four core
elements of the framework from Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Governance

The Group’s ESG Taskforce is responsible for identifying risks and
opportunities arising from climate change, incorporating physical and
transition risks factors related to climate change into the Group’s risk
assessment process, and assisting the Board of Directors, which sets policies,
to monitor the implementation of relevant policies and targets, thereby
mitigating the impact of climate change on its business operation and
strengthening the Group's resilience to climate change.

Risk Management

The Group's industry is exposed to market risks and environmental risks due
to climate change. The Group attaches importance to relevant climate risk
assessment and incorporates climate risk management into its daily operation
management system. At the same time, the Group will closely monitor
changes in environmental policies, strengthen environmental management
and promote green and low-carbon development of the Group.

Metrics and Targets

The Group has set targets for improving water efficiency in this reporting
year. In the future, the Group will continue to enhance the disclosure of
environment-related information and increase the protection of investors’
right to know.

The Group actively responds to the challenges and opportunities brought by
climate risks, maintains risk awareness in its operations, allocates resources
to support the implementation of relevant policies and targets, and realizes
effective climate risk management.

Air Pollutants

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the air pollutants emissions increased
due to more accurate calculations for fuller disclosure. The emissions of
sulphur oxides, nitrogen oxides and particulate matters, against the same
period were 0.22 kg, 11.33 kg and 0.83 kg respectively.

RIR - B RERRE

=)

AEENRS - e RERTHENMEABERHIRIKE
femRen RIS - HE@NIJ*;MMEFEE’JE‘%?HK
MiEERRAZRMAARSE AR R EBIE - Wi

%UEBZ”%%%?%%*@EQE&%%DE’F“E’J,\m il
HMERREB(CHEXRBELNTE  EBREEHRIK
B IEERE S

B B EE

$Elﬁﬁﬁfﬂ’7ﬁ¥dﬂb‘/\7r T B T 10 e 70 355 L B F1ER
@ e $‘§lmfﬁﬁ*ﬁf%ﬁ’]ﬂﬂ%ﬂk?ﬂﬁ I #%
Eﬂ%ﬂ I@ZW\EI = ﬁ*éi%% ;LEP ° HH‘I $E

ES E’U%ﬁ’i@fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ‘@ °

HERENMBR

AEBEDRE TIREKEREENEER - EAREF
BA - R REBBFHEMBRBABEMRNOE
B ReEREEBNABERE -

$E.Fﬁfﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁtl‘ﬁ%%E’\J%%ﬁ%@é?@ CEEE
FREFRRES  PEERIFHEEBEEMNMERNE
W BERAUNRFERBER -

ERITEY
HEZZ-_=F=-A=1+—HILFE =852V

PUEIN - ERETT T ERENF ENERE 2 mAH
B o B[E—RHIEL - 8RR - AeYRENY

MR B A0.22F 52 ~ 11.33F 572 F10.83F 5% °

Year ended Year ended

Air Pollutants Emissions Unit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

BE-Z-=F ®BE_T-_—F

=A=+—H =—A=+—H

=R R B ILFE IEFE

Sulphur oxides kg 0.22 0.23
Hma by =

Nitrogen oxides kg 11.33 9.91
REY) Fr

Particulate matters kg 0.83 0.73
TR T
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RIB - B RERRS

Waste Generation

With the increasing concerns on waste generation and handling, the
Group is committed to minimising its waste generation and corresponding
environmental impacts. On the basis of the Waste Disposal Ordinance and
other significant regulatory requirements, the Group has implemented a series
of measures to reduce the waste generated and lengthen the product cycle
with the purpose of avoiding wastage. Although the Group does not have a
clear waste reduction target in this reporting year, it has built and continuously
improved a waste reduction support system and taken a series of measures
to achieve waste reduction at source and waste diversion. Meanwhile, an
administrative employee is appointed on facilitating the recycling procedures as
well as management and transportation of non-recyclable products.

Supporting systems

BRERYEE

EELEEMELREENBRET - REBER R
PEMELRERNRIRZE - RIBCEMRE IEH)
MEMEBAREERE  AEERN—RIEERDRE
BYEL  EREMBH BRRE - #ALXHESF
EAASE S ERENEZRERF  BRRY
W NE T EBERYBE RS  WRR— R #H i
BERRBRENEZRYEL - R - Ef T —B1TR
A BB B (2 U2 A B A AT | YR G e B SR AE
o

Environmental Awareness

BERS RRER
o Adopt separation method; ° Implement source separation and instruct employees to
KRS ERE separate recyclable waste paper from other waste paper;

Purchase cartridges, stationery and paper in bulk or based
on necessity;
B SRIR T AT R - SCEFIAROR

Prioritise the purchase and use of reusable and refillable
products;

BEBEMER R EEERMA BRANER |

Use electronic documents for internal communication;

EREFCRETRENER

EIREDE - 18R 8 T r B ERE AR RS 48
Put up waste reduction and recycling signage and notice in
prominent locations;

RAEERE - REA BREME R RRMET

Encourage on-demand and dual-sided use of paper;
SENRFB AR - WHEREEmEAFA

Encourage bringing lunchboxes or reusable food container for
takeaway; and

SRETTERREEEARMBTFINE &

Encourage the use of reusable tableware.

SEEAATEREERER -

o Replace sing-use tableware with reusable products;
RAEREAERRE —RIEEA .
o Provide recycling bins; and

REEWAE - &

o Provide recycling bins; and Prioritise the purchase of eco-
friendly products, such as paper products with Forest
Stewardship Council certification.

BEBERRER  fINESRNERZESRENM
e

The Group's operations are mainly in the office sector, so the amount of
hazardous waste generated, such as batteries, is negligible. However, the
Group is aware of the need to properly dispose of such hazardous waste
to reduce the environmental hazards. The Group also disposes of different
hazardous wastes appropriately according to their disposal methods. For
example, batteries generated from offices should be put into designated
recycling bins and recycled by the corresponding recyclers. Also, As stipulated
in the relevant laws and regulations, the Group will hire qualified chemical
waste collector or contact responsible parties to collect and handle waste if
generated.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group consumed a total of 2.35
tonnes of paper, for the use of office paper and printing publication, with a
increase of 45.06% compared to last year's consumption. The corresponding
intensity is 0.017 tonnes/employee. The reason for consuming more printing
publication is the need to print more annual reports and circular for different
stakeholders to understand the business development of the company as the
Group's business grows.

RIR - B RERRE

BE-_Z-=F=ZA=+—HILFE  "EBHLER
72.35MBAKAR - AR R ARSRANEN R AR Y) - BEF
KB EIE NN T 45.06% © HEEM®E /B ET0.017
W o SHFESE ZENRIH AR A R E 2R E B XIS H 1
K BEORESFERENGERS - UETRAL
BOHEERARNEREESBR -

Year ended Year ended

Non-hazardous Waste Generation Unit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

BZE HE

—EBZ=HF —E-=F

=A=+-H =A=+—H

BEBREYES By LLFE IEFE

Office paper consumption tonnes 1.59 1.25
MABHRIBEHE 198

Printing publication consumption tonnes 0.76 0.37
Nl Wi g

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 2.35 1.62
BmEREEDES A

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee 0.017 0.012

BEEENEE mEEE

Energy Consumption

The Group recognises the environmental impacts of its operation from the
use of energy. For the scope of the Group’s operations for this reporting
year, the Group is mainly involved in the consumption of gasoline for private
vehicles and the use of resources for the purchase of electricity. To minimise
the environmental impacts and improve the energy efficiency, the Group has
implemented a series of measures which apply to all employees to maximise
the outcomes. For energy-related measures, please refer to the “Carbon
Emissions” section.

RETRUH 7%
AEBEBRIEELNERBRERHRREGMT
E o PAREFEAREXBHENS - RS R
AEEH VBN LBEMERNER - REER
PHIRBENFELRSERAE - AEEDERE &
FIEARATA & TV - ARAREMIESHKR
BRIERAAREE - B2 R —& -
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RIB - B RERRS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, energy consumption total 215.53
kWh with an intensity of 1.56 kWh/employee. Compared to last year, there
is a 6.43% reduction in the total energy consumption due to less use of
electricity.

BHE-_Z-_ZF-A=+—HILFE  ®REREL
514215529 F R - BB IWEREREER
1,561.80FFLFF o ERXF AL - HRAEERD - 8
BEIRBRERA T76.43% ©

Year ended Year ended

Energy Consumption Unit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

BZE HE

—EB=HF - —F

=A=+—H =A=+—H

RERHFEE B ILEE IEFE

Petrol kWh in’000s 146.98 153.18
b FEFFL R

Purchased electricity kWh in’000s 68.54 77.15
SNEE ) FEFFL

Total energy consumption kWh in'000s 215.52 230.33
BEIRAEFES FEF F

Energy consumption intensity kWh in'000s/employee 1.56 1.68

B ERERE FETER1EE

Water Usage

The Group's water supply mainly comes from the municipal water supply, so
there is no problem of seeking water. It strives to conserve the scarce water
resources in daily operation through complying with relevant regulatory
requirements. While water is mainly consumed for cleaning and sanitation of
workplace, the Group has imposed measures to enhance the water efficiency
in line with monitoring approaches.

Education

KEfEA
AEEMNHKEZREWRHEK - B AFEERK
BUKRERERE - BERBEEP S NBRETHBEE
BEESRREOMRAIKER - KEREEFHNIIE
SBRRERMEENRE - AEBSREER AR
BB MR = KR o

¢ Advocate the virtue and concept of
water conservation

BE (B &% KBRS

O Promotion e Put up water saving notice in prominent

Controlling THEKBESE

BN

.o = locations
Tﬁﬁij PAS S\ 2 g B paran H =
RPFAEZIRE R EIKER

e Install water saving devices
Emas S EiKEE

e Conduct regular maintenance and repair

of water tap, water pipelines and water

storage

TEHREMEEKEER - BKEEN

K
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group consumed a total of
147.00 cubic metres of water resources. Compared to last year, there is a
32.35% decrease in consumption as a result of implementing work-from
home measures during the outbreaks.

RIR - B RERRE

BHE-_T-ZF=ZA=+—RHIEFE ' AEBEBFEKX
BRI K - BRTERIGHMER T ERITER
Bk ASEETIEEBMRD - FKEHREFIEL
TFET732.35% « AEEBE T -_=BHFEXRE
BEEL - BB IZRE2025FEHRICEREER D
5% °

Year ended Year ended

Water Consumption Unit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

BE HE

—EBZ=HF —E-=F

=ZA=+—H =A=+—H

FkE By LLFEE IEFE

Total water consumption cubic metres 147.00 217.31

BFEKE K

Water consumption intensity cubic metres/employee 1.07 1.59

FKEBTE SR BE

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands that its business operation has contributed to certain
levels of environmental impacts. It is committed to conserving the natural
resources and surrounding environment for sustainable development. With
the ultimate goal of environmental protection, the Group’s ESG Taskforce
strives to identify the aspects affected, thereby different departments and
divisions formulating monitoring and management measures. According to
the nature of the Group’s business and operational needs, the Group more
often uses private cars for business purpose, and the greater impact on the
environment and natural resource impact is the impact on air quality.

RREBRER
AEEPARERBEEHRITEN —ERENTE -
AEEBNNREBRERMEBREUNER A A
TR - MIRERES/SZKRER  AEENRE g
REARTIE A NHEEXZENTTE » Fit TR
EBPIAN D ER I E BRI B IR I b - IRIR BRI
EMEEFR  SELEEMALEKE - HREMNANR
BRNFZETANCHERESNTE -

Environmental impact

Corresponding measures

RIERE HRFEIEIE
Air quality: Use air purifying equipment or other equipment to ensure
EREE indoor ventilation as well as regular cleaning and maintenance

Outdoor air quality could be worsened by air pollutants
emitted while using the company owned vehicles. Also, poor
air conditioning systems or airflow could affect the indoor air
quality in the workplace.

EINERE R R AR B ER I RAE RS R AR E
Z o AN BENEREARARBIEGTE TIFZMNER

of air conditioning systems. Replace more environmentally
friendly air conditioning equipment when appropriate. Also,
employees are encouraged to use public transportation to
reduce emissions and environmental impacts by private cars
within the Group.

ERERH R BRI R ERRZ ORAN R ELNE
HEBRN - EHEATRROTARE - A5 - ALEEE
BTEAARRBTA  WAERLASEHRE REREES
g -
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RIB - B RERRS

Climate Change

Severe rainstorms, frequent typhoons and hurricanes, rising sea levels and
other events have significantly evidenced the increasing importance of
imposing climate-related mitigation and reduction plans. The Group realises
the eagerness of monitoring and mitigating climate-related issues. To keep up
with the world, the Group will formulate action plans for the establishment
of climate-related policy, and hence determine the issues and implement
corresponding actions.

PEOPLE-ORIENTED WORKPLACE

Employee is the crucial factor for sustainable business development. The
Group values its talents as the most important asset and strives to maintain
a fair and stable working environment. It is committed to providing people
oriented management that allow employees fully perform their talents and
potentials. At the same time, the Group is adhered to the employment
related regulatory requirements, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance, Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and Employee
Compensation Ordinance, to lay the basis for providing safe and healthy
employment systems.

With the implementation of comprehensive management approaches, the
Group is not aware of any violations in aspects of employment, labour system
and occupational health and safety during the year ended 31 March 2023.
The Group will try its best to maintain the high standards of operations by
providing fair and appropriate working environment for employees.

Employment System

The Group attaches the protection of employees in accordance with the
policies and measures established based on the regulatory requirements
in Hong Kong. At the same time, the Employee Handbook has clearly
stipulated the internal requirements and procedures as well as stated the
relevant arrangements, such as working hours and leave arrangements, in
the employment contract. The Group is committed to creating an equal
and harmonious employment atmosphere and a safe and healthy working
environment for our employees.
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Recruitment and dismissal

R e

Remuneration and retention

MR BT

RIR - B RERRE

Recruitments are carried out via legal channels under the oversight of the Human
Resources and Administration Department. Selection is made based on the past
performance, personal attributes, job experiences and career aspirations of applicants
with a detailed recruitment review process conducted by the Human Resources and
Administration Department.

BREEANEBRENEE TBBEEEEBET - RERBSANBERR - HAKE -
TN B ETIE - WHANBRNTREPFIETAANBEEERER -

To prevent misuse of child labour, the Human Resources and Administration
Department conducts a detailed checking of applicants’ identification documents to
verify their eligibility for work and validity of the documents. If there is child labour
discovered, the Group will handle it according to the mechanisms and regulations, such
as stop the interview immediately and contact relevant authority.

ROIEERET - ABTHEHERFEN T HIRAEET T RS - RE M
B TEERFI X E R - NBIMET - NEE IR RIRTEEIE - 8= 1k
WX EEEEER -

Employees may be dismissed without notice in the event of criminal offense, fraud,
dishonesty or behaviour detrimental to the Group’s reputation. At the same time, if
there is no improvement despite efforts or chances given, termination may be made
with notice. All decisions have to be made based on legitimate, legal grounds and
regulatory requirements.

ETHAER SEE A TILMESRT - BFFRAHETR - FEAEETRERIEEN
1R MTEBA - BEINSRAESISERSEIRENESE N - UMERFHEE
Wiz MIELEBAARE - IARTEBUEENRS/EHNERIKBENEEZH -

To attract potentials and retain talents, the Group provides a competitive remuneration
package with reference to market benchmarks. Employees are offered with Medical
Insurance Scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and other benefits for improving
their working incentives and retaining the valuable employees.

REBENFEEAT  AEEZ2ETSEERFEAARF IOFNGE - RETIR
HERRRE  REMERESFTEIFEMETN - UAEMMN TESBNEEEE
EMET -

To further improve the sense of belonging, the Group has organised various leisure
activities for its employees. Activities, such as Christmas and birthday parties, have been
held to create a positive and harmonious workplace.

RE—FRESHBR  ARERETENRT ZHEKEEE - fINEFLRE A RIK
- EEEBRAGE TERER o

Employee Performance Appraisal is conducted annually to understand their working
ability, contributions and efforts. Position or remuneration package may be adjusted
based on the results. Department head will complete the Manpower Movement Form
fairly and reasonably. Lastly, adjustment will be confirmed and approved by Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer.

BFETRBETERGHE - UBREE T ITIERE - ERFS ) o« Bu s FmiiFs
RGRBERETAE - FFIEEEQATEEMERANERFBABRR - KEHEE
RE RATBHBEBAZ ©
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R - S RERHRE

Working hours and rest periods

TR EAMBREY

Diversity, equal opportunities and
anti-discrimination

Zrft - FERENRER

In order to protect its employees, the Group has clearly indicated the working hours in
the Employee Handbook. If there is any overtime work, it has to be on a voluntary basis
with compensation in accordance with the compensation leave scheme. The Group
holds zero tolerance to forced labour and will handle violation cases regarding the
relevant regulatory requirements, such as carrying out investigation and contacting the
relevant authority.

RTREEL  AEBECAEE TFMF AR IIERRE « B E@k TE - ©%A
B ERE W IRRAEERRETEETHE - AEBYURHISE TTABTARE
[ - $BENEREE EREMETRE - MFREAES LR AT -

With the goal of promoting the concept of work-life balance, employees are offered
with paid and unpaid leaves under the five-day working arrangement. Examination
leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave and various rest periods are available for all
employees as well as 14 weeks of maternity leave for females and 5 days of paternity
leave for male employees.

REETEEAETENED BT EARRTERETOHRHNELRY - 78
BETHRZZERAR BER ER - B0F  BEREENSEKRSER  EETA
EXVBER  BHBETIRAIZX5KEER -

The Group advocates a diverse, fair and inclusive workplace. All forms of discrimination
due to cultural background, religion, gender, race, marital status, family status, political
affiliation and other factors are not allowed. If there are any discrimination incidents,
employees are encouraged to report to the Human Resources and Administration
Department for investigation and handling.

REEEZBZ T RFMBENTESH - TAFEXEES - RE - R - &
W~ IR~ REMOR ~ BURBAZEEZMETERFZRARAR o AR EE
SEETRANERRITHERE AR SRR -
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group employed a total of 138
employees, of which 57 are female and 81 are male. All current employees
are employed with full-time contracts that located in Hong Kong, Mainland

China and Southeast Asia.

Number of employees by gender
RUERIEIDE T A

c | Male
emale EEI:|\$
>
pegis 81
57

Number of employees by geographical region

i@ s 5 BT A
12
Southeast
Asia
REIE

126

Hong Kong and
Mainland China
R RTER

RIB - B RERARS

BE-_Z-=F=ZA=+—HILFE  KAEBHHLE
F138%E T EfprE57A » BIHSTIA - FTARIMT
BTHNUEHARZERES - PEIAMAMERT

Number of employees by age group
RFERARIZI D BT AR
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Number of employees by employment level

ZREERRIE DB TAH
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management
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25
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employees .

25
PHET

75

Frontline
employees
GIE =

Junior
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Turnover rate by gender
11 B 81> skt R

32%

22%

Male Female

i goq

Turnover rate by geographical region
1R B9 Tk b K

28%

8%

Hong Kong and Mainland China Southeast Asia
EBRTEAM RETE

Turnover rate by age group
REREI DKL

24%

31%

22%
17%

0% 0%
20-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-70 Above 70
years old years old years old years old years old years old
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group prioritises the safety of its employees in business development and
daily operations. To safeguard their safety and health, the Group has strictly
complied with Hong Kong's Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
Chapter 509 and the Fire Services Ordinance and other legal regulations,
and established and updated internal regulations including the Employee
Handbook, Staff Development Sponsorship Policy and Procedures, etc.
Also, our company pays attention to and continuously improves employee
communication and feedback mechanism. Our company expects all
employees to follow and observe all safety regulations and precautions at all
times, and report any observations of unsafe conditions to Human Resources
and Administration Department.

As stipulated in the Employee Handbook and no smoking policy, the Group
has adopted measures and manuals on minimising risks and raising safety
awareness in daily operations to effectively protect the health and life safety
rights of employees.

Safety Training

Our company raises employees’ awareness of safety precautions by promoting
safety precautions knowledge. The Group arranges rescue, fire and
evacuation drills from time to time to remind the importance of maintaining a
safe workplace as well as to ensure sufficient knowledge and skills in handling
unfortunate events.

Physical and Mental Health

Our company is committed to protecting the rights of employees’ lives and
ensuring their physical and mental health in the workplace. The company
takes active measures to prevent work-related accidents and minimize
personal injuries in case of accidents. In the event of work-related injury,
employees are compensated in accordance with the laws and regulations.
The Group will also carry out investigation and improvement measures to
prevent recurrence of accidents. Also, employees are provided with sick leave
for timely diagnoses of illness and disease if there are symptoms of influenza
or other contagious diseases, as well as prevent spreading of illness in the
workplace. The Group provides its employees with extensive health care
coverage for employees with illness and injury.

Additionally, our group also values the mental health of employees. We
regularly organises activities on encouraging a healthy and work-life balance
lifestyle as well as put up safety banners and warning signs for an accident-
free working environment.

COVID-19 Prevention and Control

Since the outbreak of the epidemic, the Group has been building a secure
line of defence for the prevention and control of the epidemic to ensure the
safety of employees. The Group has implemented prevention measures, such
as temperature screening before entering, frequent disinfection of workplace
and providing disinfection products to ensure the health and safety of staff on
duty.

RIR - B RERRE
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2 o RREBAMNLZENEE  AEERBETEE
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Bad Weather Special Arrangements

Our company also has a well-developed risk management system for
employees working under adverse weather conditions to ensure the safety of
our staff. For example, staff need to cease their work and take shelter until
Black Rainstorm Warning Signal is cancelled and whether conditions permit
during working outdoors.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group is not aware of any
violations of relevant regulatory requirements. Regarding the comprehensive
management and monitoring of daily operations, the Group did not receive
any work-related injuries and fatalities in the past three years. With the
commitment to protecting our employees, the Group will continue to
promote more comprehensive and standardized employee health and safety
management as well as improve its data collection systems to enhance the
data availability.

Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the construction and development of
a talent pipeline. It has its own set of Staff Development Sponsorship Policies
and Procedures to provide different trainings and development opportunities
regularly. Also, the Group encourages its employees to continuously improve
their professional skills and knowledge by providing professional training
courses. The employees will be offered with different leave arrangements in
accordance with the Staff Development Sponsorship Scheme and the nature
of the programmes.

BLERR TSR HE
AEBEOAERS ARG TIENEIRY T &
HREREERS  UWBREREMIANZE - fl1 - &
EEEMELERENS  EIZERIETHETSK
HERER AAEREENESEERIUETAEXRR
R - BEIA BelEBPINIIE -

BE_Z-_=F=-A=1+—HLLFE  TEEXER
FRERBBEERTHERL EEREEREER
MEEFE  RBT=FA KBV REETERAT
%t%ﬂ AEERNNREET  BHEHRDES

CEECHETRERLZSER W xSHEUBK
E? AR BRI -

BREET

AEEREERATBENER  HHE - ExTENE
TEEREERRMEN - EHRETREIIFER
o 1o AEESEE TRBRMHEFEEIRE
RAEERFT B EZREM A - 210 unJI\E%%'z?é B
TH#RER TERED B LR EERETRE
HAZeHk -

Newly joined employees o Organise new staff orientation; and
FABET ZHITE TABE - Rk
° Provide trainings coverings corporate culture, business processes, job requirements and
specific job knowledge, etc.
RECREREXE - EHRE - MUZKEARBRECAZS T maE -
Existing employees ° Focus on their career development with the profession-oriented trainings;
REET BBAFETERAEN - EFRMMRBEERE
° Set up Staff Development Sponsorship Scheme for full-time employees who completed
three full years of service, to encourage participating seminars, courses and professional
examinations; and
REBR=_FOHRBE IR TERENE  SBOM2EFNE  RENEE
ZH R
o In addition to general staff, some junior and senior management staff regularly

participate in the company’s supply chain management training activities, including
Purchasing System & Logistic System training, Logistic System Demo training, Intranet
System training, Company’s Internal System Payment Request training and Catalogue

Centre System training.
BT —mRETHN #D
ERERSTYR R GEE
N RFEE
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group actively provided internal
training activities to its employees in different positions for improving their
professional skills and being more familiar with the company’s operation

model. The Group’s staff development and training KPIs are as follows.

Employee
Number
EEHE
Total 138
B
By gender Male 81
RIERIE S S
Female 57
7t
By type Full-time 138
RiERE S g
Part-time 0
R
By rank General 75
R RE 5 —f
Junior level management 25
NRERE
Middle level management 25
HRERE
Senior level management 13
BRERE

BE_Z_=_F=-A=1T—HILFE F*&EEERH
TNREBAIH B TIRUEAFEFINES) - PRI HEER
BEYEABARNELEN - AEBEME THEMF
FIRBRERER (BRAEMUER) T

Training
employee
number

ZilEE
B

36
16
20

36

Training
rate
EFI=
26%
44%
56%
100%
0%
0%
33%
61%

6%

Training
hours

SR
(NBF)

55
20
35

55

"

42

Average
number
of training
hours
¥4
3 BE R
(/NEF)
0.40
0.25
0.61
0.40
0.00
0.00
0.44

1.68

0.15
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ETHICAL OPERATIONS

The group values fair and honest business operation for its long-term
sustainable development. It values and continuously develops a fair and
trustworthy relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to work with partners for shared responsibility and sustainability.

The Group maintains business integrity by implementing strict management
and ongoing controls. It is not aware of any violations related to supply chain
management, product responsibility and anti-corruption during the year
ended 31 March 2023. The Group will conduct an investigation and treat
any cases of unethical behavior or non-compliance in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations.

Supply Chain Management

The Group places a strong emphasis on the upkeep and administration of an
environmentally and socially responsible supply chain with the implementation
of sustainability policies. The Group emphasizes win-win cooperation with
suppliers and has a comprehensive process for identifying key suppliers,
working together with partners for joint responsibility development.

Collection Assessment

e #HA

e Seek potential suppliers
based on market demand

e Conduct performance
assessment based on a list

e Compare the trade terms

ARBEERAFHENEBES - UBREHHE
B - AREEGRY THEREHER  FF BT
MEMIFDEZHNRFREHEEE - BaERHHR
FIASERET  BERAFEN -

AN ERB E HE R AR Y B IR AN 4 A I SR M rE TS
BE - HEZ-_ZF-ZA=ZF+—HIFE L&£H
HEEEEE  ERETNREHR ARG ERTM
BRITA - ASBEBBEHRISNERMIFENLH
RUEEER IS -

HEREE
AEBFFERRENMHEEENHERGEENE
2 WER T R ERRER - AEERFEMER
MERAE WA A2 EMBEREERRHEE
B EAERHARAEE TS HREE -

Selection Evaluation

BiZ +HE

e Carry out evaluation on the

and consumer needs.
ERMSNERENERS
SREVE N pER -

e Receive quotation from
suppliers.

RS ERE R RE

N

of criteria.
RIBE—RIIREETER
P ¢

N

including price, Minimum Order
Quantity, payment method,
warranty, production time and
logistic etc.

HERESER - BEBE &
ERIBHE - IR - RE
15X~ £EREMYRS

Based on the assessment result,
select suppliers that fulfill all
requirements.

RV EAER - BEFAaME
ESREVBLER -
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quality in accordance with a
variety of criteria on a strict
and continuous basis.
FHERBHIRR S BIEEY
BRETIE

e Conduct visits and
engagement regularly to
ensure the products fit for
the sales plan/customers.
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According to the existing supply chain management system, the Group now
has six suppliers from Guangdong, which should ensure their compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations. When the Group choose suppliers, it will
consider whether they obtain relevant ISO certifications. In order to guarantee
that the Group’s products are supplied with quality and are operated in
accordance with corporate social responsibility, five of the Group’s suppliers
have received I1SO 9001 Quality Management System certification, and three
of them have received BSCI certification. Some of the Group’s suppliers have
ISO14001 environmental management system certification as well, which
helps to increase consumers’ trust in the environmental risk management
practices linked with products or services.

At the same time, the Group has implemented a stringent supply chain
management system to manage and evaluate suppliers’ performance
regularly by complete score-based audit reports to monitor nine aspects
of suppliers including management responsibility, management system
maintenance, product design, supplier management, preservation product,
incoming material inspection, production process control, inspection & testing
management and control of nonconforming products. Suppliers have a
matching score ratio for each of the nine areas of supplier behavior through
the scoring system for suppliers in these nine sections. Each component
provided by the supplier has a scoring ratio that is separated into four levels:
A (score ratio > 90%), B (score ratio 80-89%), C (score ratio 60-79%), and
D (score ratio < 60%). When a supplier’s score ratio falls to a C or lower, the
Group requests that the supplier make improvements within 7 working days
of receiving the audit report and submit any necessary documentation, such as
an improvement and corrective action plan.

In addition to the dynamic management of the supply chain based on
the scoring system, the Group has established a dedicated supply chain
management team to conduct regular interviews with suppliers and
contractors, implement mitigation measures after conducting potential
and formal environmental and social risk assessments in all segments of
the supply chain. The Group has basic requirements for suppliers to have
legal compliance and corresponding technical equipment, and has obtained
information on the quantity of production and testing equipment owned
by existing suppliers. To maintain high standards of materials, the Group
also applies the procedures of assessment and evaluation during selection.
Based on the assessment and selection result, lists of suppliers and backup
suppliers are in place for procurement and maintaining the stability and
quality of products. For example, in the selection of products, the Group will
choose products of suppliers that meet Hong Kong safety standards or have
CE certification in the EU. In order to strengthen suppliers’ assessment of
environmental and social factors, the quality and green product management
system and related certificates, and the suppliers’ management and
supervision system for raw materials used in product manufacturing are
included in the Group's assessment of suppliers” annual audit reports.

RIR - B RERRE
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At the same time, the Group keeps communicating with suppliers and
backup suppliers for immediate response when there are incidents occurred.
In addition, the Group maintains a clean and cooperative relationship with
its suppliers to ensure a clean and healthy business environment. With the
commitment of maintaining the supply chain in a fair and equal manner,
employees who are in close relationships with its potential suppliers are not
allowed to take part in the selection and procurement procedures.

To minimize the impact on the environment, the Group takes environmental
considerations into account when purchasing high quality products. The
Group evaluates the performance of its suppliers in green procurement
in their scored-based audit reports to encourage them to use more
environmentally friendly products and services every year. The Group will
rate the electronic products provided by suppliers in terms of whether they
are designed according to green product technical standards, whether they
have green product certification, whether the raw material suppliers are
green suppliers and suppliers can effectively identify their quality risk levels,
and whether they can provide RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances)
test reports for the components involved in the relevant products. The Group
will sign environmental protection agreements with suppliers and require
them to provide testing reports on relevant electronic products and update
their reports annually. In addition, the Group will require suppliers to provide
environmental test reports on raw materials to ensure that the electronic
products provided are more conducive to human health and environmental
protection.

Product Responsibility

Customer satisfaction is essential in evaluating the products and services
quality. The Group highly attaches the quality of its products in all respects.
On the basis of regulatory requirements, the Group has established a series of
measures and restrictions to maintain the standards.

Procurement o

BREB ENHRTETEERE -

RIES - NEEEHREE L ERHERRTER  UE
A M EIELRIE - 5N - AEBEHEER
RIFZRIOEERE  BRLE—EARZNERED
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REgE -

BTRIERENVTE  AEBERESREERR
EEREAER - AEBEHEROFN D AEZBRES
AHEESAERBORE  SBMMEFERESRR
RIFBIERMRT - AEEBREBEHEHREHOET
EmEATHEETIR - RRRREECE RIS
ERF - REAAREBEMRRE  RYHHERRES
RReHrERARFEREREERENEERNE
ERBKE - UNEBERAHERT AT RHIR
FHEMERBI(RoHS) BT E - AEE R R B
EREREDH - EROMREAREFERORR
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HARREMRFEREE R
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Conduct quality checks before distribution.

° Ensure compliance with the Supplier Code of Conduct on maintaining the high
standards of products purchased.
HRETHERT AL UEHMEEERNSRE -

Quality management °
EEEHE

Adopt quality plan designated for each project that indicates requirements for quality
control, inspection and testing, and relevant issues in the production.

RARSEBEBHRENEENE  KRPHEEEH BRI ZRKAREEFH

*E Eﬁ fEle8 o

° Score the parts of whether the products supplied by suppliers have clear IQC (Incoming
Quality Control) sampling protocols and RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances)
test reports, as well as traceability of possessed materials in their annual audit reports.
EFEFETHREPIOHEEMHENERES AGEMNESmEZESI(IQC)ME N
FEFIRoHS (B EEME RS B RE - ARPAEEMEIRATEPIE -

° Examine the quality-related system and policy regularly to ensure the effectiveness and
efficiency of management approaches.

FHIREE SHRBFRRMBEE - UREREEFENEBIERE -
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BiERA

IP rights
AR ERE
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Comply with relevant laws and regulations including the Personal Dara (Privacy)
Ordinance as well as internal policies to ensure the information collected would be used
only for the authorised purposes and accessible by designated personnel only.
BTRBERERBEAEAER LR R - RABEE @ BRAIKNENENER
REERN - WEEHETASTSM -

Collect and keep all data and information confidential and secure.
W R E PR B M E MR E M 2t -

Prohibit the use or provision of data to third parties without authorisation.

BRI RERAEE A AE =T B R BUE -

Equip security features together with backup services in the computers that require
password to access to further protect the data collected.

FTEBIKEREBEND RBRERELUE  FEFH A TFIUAE —SREMBENE
%t o

Information Technology Department has set up obstruction between office and
commercial net to prevent data leakage or unauthorised use.

BB AR A= ME R B 2 RRE D AME - DAR F 858 58 s AR SR
=8

Stipulate the protection of the Group and third-party’s IP rights in the Information
Security Policy.
EEMLZ2HRPRTERERETE =T ME AN BERE -

Prohibit the duplication, installation or use of software which is in violation of its
copyright or license conditions.

ZEIPREHI ~ TR S & IR EL AR K AT AT R AR R A

To ensure the compliance with internal regulations, employee who violates the
restriction will be subjected to disciplinary action.
RERETABRE - BREFIHETHZILRED

Notify manufacturers if there is illegal or unauthorised use of hardware and/or software
discovered.

BASLER AN B IR A SRS KR R RN, M

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there are no sold products recalled by
the Group for safety and health reasons. Also, the Group received about 100
Cases of complaints on the products, that do not bring significant impacts
to its operation. If there is complaint received, the Group will communicate
with customer to understand the issue and compensate, if needed, based
on the result of the investigation. At the same time, the Group scores and
requires the suppliers to handle and control non-conforming products, has a
system for identifying and differentiating non-conforming products, and has a
procedure for re-examining and testing non-conforming items that have been
reworked or repaired in the Factory Audit Report in order to reduce the export
of substandard products to the market and consumers. The Group will strive
its best to maintain the highest standards of the products provided.

BHEZZ-=F=A=+—HILFE  A&EBELFHE
2 MERREAMQEEAE S HHER © I &R
SEBEARO—BREHRERNERS  WEAEEE
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Anti-corruption

The Group upholds high standards of maintaining a fair, ethical and
honest workplace with integrity as one of its philosophies of sustainable
development. The Group’s Board has established and implemented internal
rules of Anti—Fraud & Anti-Bribery Policy in the Employee Handbook referring
to Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, which is applicable to the Group, its Third
Party Representatives, and all directors, officers, and employees of the Group,
including temporary or contract workers. Executive Directors of the Company
are responsible for ensuring the effective implementation and in particular,
the monitoring and investigation of any material fraudulent or bribery
activities committed within the Group. As stipulated in the internal policy, the
Group holds zero tolerance for all forms of unethical and corruptive practices,
including but not limited bribery, fraud, money laundering and extortion. Any
Group employees who violate this policy may be subject to disciplinary action,
which may eventually lead to termination of employment and/or individual
civil or criminal penalties.

Additionally, the Group has adopted the Code of Conducts that addresses
restrictions and information on conflicts of interests, privacy, confidentiality of
information, etc. Unless receiving permission by the Chief Operations Officer
on a case-by-case basis, employees are prohibited to provide, solicit or accept
anything of considerable value from or to employees, clients, suppliers or
other stakeholders. If there is any suspicious case, employees should report
to the relevant personnel or department, such as management, department
head, Human Resources and Administrative Department, for further
investigation and handling. To protect whistleblowers, the Group will treat
relevant complaints as confidential as possible and will not permit any form of
retaliation against any employee for making a good faith report of an actual
or suspected violation of this policy. In order to ensure that the reported
incident is true and valid, the responsible staff will record and investigate
the accuracy and precision of receipts, expenditures and other provided
documents according to its robust financial and accounting control system
which is subject to regular review and audit. If related reports are true, the
Group will send them to the relevant regulatory authorities and terminate the
employment of the employees involved in accordance with the corresponding
regulatory and disciplinary requirements.

In order to ensure the Group's sustainable and high standard of operation, the
Group has implemented integrity and ethics education for various members.
As a result, during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not receive
any corrupt cases brought against itself or its employees. During the reporting
period, the Group conducted anti-corruption training and education to
enhance the integrity awareness of its staff. The employees of the Group
should regularly undergo education on the dangers of fraud and bribery
that the organization faces, as well as on how to comply with the laws,
regulations, and standards of conduct that are pertinent to their line of work.
For any third-party representatives, the Group is committed to promoting anti-
fraud and anti-bribery practices among them. During the reporting period, 7
general employees and 4 junior management employees had anti-corruption
training through internal materials.
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To ensure the long-term efficient operation of the internal system, the
Group will continue to promote integrity culture, revise and improve various
institutional regulations, and strengthen their enforcement. This will be done
in accordance with the Group’s business and integrity governance. The Group
will also keep enhancing its system for managing risks and internal controls
in order to increase the awareness of workers and suppliers at all levels to
carry out their obligations and responsibilities through enriching the form and
content of anti-corruption training.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to creating a harmonious and beautiful social
environment, promoting community development and fostering social
stability, and continuously supporting the disadvantaged groups to improve
their living standards. Apart from the business development, the Group
also values community improvement through funding for local educational
institutions and non-profit charitable organizations to carry out the spirit of
public welfare.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has made a total of
HKD358,000 donations towards the local charities with the focus of
supporting the development of future generation and further learning of
needy.

Recognizing the importance of education in creating scientific knowledge
and material wealth for society, the Group donated certain funds to local
universities and vocational training institutions during the reporting period.

In addition to the community investment and public services, the group
actively supports sustainable development. We allocate a dedicated portion of
funds into a bank’s sustainable development fixed deposit, which is used to
contribute to community and environmental initiatives.

At the same time, the Group focuses on the inspiration of people towards
social welfare concerns. It encourages its employees to contribute to
community welfare with the belief of “life affects life”. As part of strategic
development, the Group embraces human capital intro social management
strategies for sustaining the human resources supply and market.

Growing up together, the Group will perpetually support the community
development together with its business improvement. The Group has
been carrying out the social spirit of public welfare, actively taking up the
responsibility given by the country and the times, and continuously giving
back to the society with sincerity in future.

RIR - B RERRE

RERABRGORISIEE - ARERBEEED
BORXL - ERTMBCE B RBIERE - WINRMITA
B - ERRIBESENEBMFRZERAETT - KE
EEETE g AR ERMAMENRE  AEE
BEREHFINEAMNAR o2 8 TNHENE
BRLENEH  NEITHMANRBMET

HERE

REBRNNAENBERFOLFRT - SRR
R EIBE - URHEIFHD RN ELEKE -
BT EBBERIN AEBEEREBEDENHEH
WAL ESAMRES LRSS BITASER
14 o

BE_ZT_=F=A=1+—BILFE  XEERLH
REWIBHIBIE 7358,0008 7T AR —REY
FREERNAFOEECZBEREN

EHREHE - ARERBIHE R AL SEIERS
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R - S RERHRE

ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE BMIXANEE a8 RERBEESIRA

Category
gl

BRa
Content Section in the report
AES HEAKED

A1 Emissions

23567

A1.2

A1.3

A1.6

The followings that relate to exhaust gas and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

BRERREREEN - MR THNEET A ERESEEMNESE

4

(@ B R

(b) EFTHETABEATENBERERRRD -

Types of emissions and respective emissions data (tonne) Air Pollutants
HERUIE SR R AR B HE P Bk (WE) - =R
Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions Carbon Emissions

(in tonne) and (if applicable) intensity (per unit of output)
B (EEN) MaREE (SE2) REREHHE () K (ER)ZE M\ BREEK
BAEL) ©

Total hazardous waste generated (in tonne) and (if applicable) intensity Waste Generation

(per employee)

FESBEEZEYAS () R(MER)BE (BES) - REEMEL

Total non-hazardous waste generated (in tonne) and (if applicable) Waste Generation

intensity (per employee)

FESJ|EEZEYAS () & (Em) BE (n#Em) - REEWESE

Descriptions of steps taken to mitigate emissions and results ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSERVATION

P AR BRI B B AR PRERER B 2258 RIBRE

Descriptions of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled Waste Generation

and descriptions of steps taken to mitigate waste disposal

M ERIEEEREEEEYN A - RIBIUAREFTEREE 5 - EEYIES
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Category
E

Content
A

Section in the report

HREARNED

A2: Use of Resources

BERER

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other

raw materials

BRERER(BIEER « K REMREME) EBCE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or
oil) in total ('000 kWh) and intensity (per unit of output)
RERBID M EE R SRR (INE ) - REESoR) BFEE (TR &
HE(BELED) -

Water consumption (tonnes) in total and intensity (per unit of output)
Bk E (W) RmE (BEAEL) -

Descriptions of measures taken to improve energy use efficiency and
results

st AR BT IR o PR s P R ER B0 4 e B A

Descriptions of issues (if any) in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, the
water efficiency targets and the steps taken to achieve such targets
HMAESKEVE S MEeK T EFAENRE (F) - KU B EUARRER
BB RATERER A AR

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonne)
SR mPTABREME R EE (BE) -

A3: Environment and Natural Resources

BRERARER

A3.1

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

BEEITAHRBERAARERERERZENRE

Descriptions of the significant impacts of business activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
M EBESHHIRERARAERNEAZERERNER B AT ENTT
g o

Energy Consumption
BERHEMEE

Water Usage

ke

Energy Consumption
BEREMEE

Water Usage

FEKE

N/A

Environment and Natural
Resources

RIERRARER
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R - S RERHRE

Category Content Section in the report
s AE BEAKED

A4: Climate Change
KREL

Policies on identifying and responding to significant climate-related matters
that have and may have an impact on the issuer

BRI M EH DR ARG HBRITAEEF ENEARKRABEENRE -

A4 Descriptions of significant climate-related matters and that have and may Climate Change

have an impact on the issuer and responses
MM B R R HRITAEEZENSRREEEEEREE RIzE1t

B1: Employment
U=

The followings that relate to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, leaves, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
T BRI R BEREA  TERE - RE - FTEKe 2
1t~ RIBARIA S E 5538 KA ey
(@ BE: &
(b) EFHETABERZEERERLRMIHER -
B1.1 Total number of employees by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time or Employment System
part-time), age group and region

IR ERER (N2 REERE) - FiRA &S D mES B - REHE

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and region Employment System

B - FiARI MR DHESIRKLLE o REHIE
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RIE - B RERHRE

Category Content
E AE

Section in the report

HREARNED

B2: Occupational Health and Safety

BERRHEZE
The followings that relate to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

NTEBRHZ 2 TIERERREREREBE NI
(@ BE: &
(b) BETHBEITAGSRTENHEBEELMAOINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in each of the last 3 years
(including the reporting year)
BEZFEFRTITHHOABRLE (BIEEREE)

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
HIGEEATIEAS -

B2.3 Descriptions of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and

how they are implemented and monitored
PRV BB SR (R R B 2 2465 - A SMBRAIT MBI 0 »

B3: Development and Training
R KIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Descriptions of relevant training activities

BRRIMEE BT TIERE N A B R EENBR « HtIEIIES -

B3.1 The percentage of employee received trainings by gender and employee
level (e.g. senior management and mid-level management)

BURIREERR (R ERERTREER ASNRIEERSLL -

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category

RIERIMEEERRIBD - BREETKRE TR -

Occupational Health and Safety
BERERETD

Occupational Health and Safety
BERERET D

Occupational Health and Safety

BxEepize

Development and Training
R B
Development and Training

B R B
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RIB - B RERRS

Category Content
s AE

Section in the report

BEAKED

B4: Employment Standards

TR
The followings that relate to preventing child and forced labour:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
LA BN IEE T ok og b5 THY
(@ X R
(b) BETFEHBITAGSRLENHEBEELAOINER -

B4.1 Descriptions of measures adopted to review recruitment practices to avoid
child and forced labour
GBI E AR EAR R E T RIEHIZT -

B4.2 Descriptions of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

R IR R B R R G RIS TR 2258

B5: Management of Supply Chain

HrEsEEE
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain
ERHEENRE M S RMBEBUR

B5.1 Number of suppliers by region
i@ S D EERHE -

B5.2 Descriptions of practices of supplier engagement and number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented
HMBRREREEENEN - MEARITERENNHEREE -

B5.3 Descriptions of the practices for identifying environmental and social
risks at each stage of the supply chain and related implementation and
monitoring methods
B RABR R E G AR RE Mt 2 RRAED] - A SRMEAARITR
BERFE -

B5.4 Descriptions of practices to promote the use of environment-friendly

products and services when selecting suppliers, and related implementation
and monitoring methods

FEBRGE HIER IR0 2 MIRREm M ARISEVED] - LARABRITIT B
BE -
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Supply Chain Management
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Supply Chain Management
HEHER

Supply Chain Management
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Category

E

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - B RERHRE

Content
A

Section in the report

HREARNED

B6: Product Liability and Quality of Services

EmEFE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

The followings that relate to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters pertaining products and services provided and remedial
methods:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

UTERMRHERMREORFEELZSE BES  REREEEARE

HOTEM -
@ BE R
() MFHEITABEAYENEBMERRAAOER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons
EERDEXEMAHT AL ERRIEAMANKNBE AL -

Number of product/service-related complaints received and how they are
dealt with
BN Em LIRS EORFE B AREE X -

Descriptions of practices of intellectual property right maintenance and
protection

Tt B e o o AR B AR R B A ROIE B -

Descriptions of quality assurance process and product recall procedures
HUE SARE B2 N E m O AR -

Descriptions of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how
they are implemented and monitored
U B EERMRE RALBEE - URARERITRER X
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - S RERHRE

Category Content Section in the report
s AE BEAKED

B7: Anti-corruption

-

RES

The followings that relate to prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering:

(@  the policies; and
(b)  (compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
IATEREPIEEER - 91R - HRFRORRER
(@ X R
(b) BETHBITAGSRLENHEBEELAOINER -
B7.1 Number of closed corruption lawsuits filed against the issuer or its Anti-corruption
employees during the Reporting Period, and the outcomes of the cases
RERPANE BT A EEREWEBENESFHFARENEE RFLR RES
&
B7.2 Descriptions of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, and Anti-corruption
how they are implemented and monitored

Py e e R AR E R - URAERERITRER X - RES

B7.3 Descriptions of anti-corruption trainings provided to the chairman and staff ~ Anti-corruption
A ESR LB TRENRESH - R&5

B8: Community Investment

HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests
B ESERE RSB RFENMBREER TS EELE R
mmﬁkﬂi °

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental matters, labour ~ COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
needs, health, culture and sports)
EFEREE (FInHE c REEE  BTHK - 27K SULRESF) - MEERE

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area (e.g. capital and time) COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
FEIHEMBABER(MES KER) - MEERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

e

Ernst & Young RXKETHER B Tel E3%: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place, BRHRE Fax {EH: +852 2868 4432
EY& i 979 King's Road, HE2iEI79% ey.com
¥ | Quarry Bay, Hong Kong AEH—RE271E

To the shareholders of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AV Concept
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 89 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

B A2 B E RS

AEEITER

RRET FAAREBERMANERAE - BRMATAAN
HRGA M BHRRER/EENFIA © IhFFANHA I
FE M BHRREML AT RS —0EE - MK
MTERUFFERTRHEER - RANETBES
Al BE IR T P & IR R DA L BB E SR A o

BB BT AN REER AL F A7 & IR BAIE
B F—EPTMEE - BRABLEEENEE -
At - HAWEFT TERBRRITEREE R MEES
B 75 Rk 3R KR AR R Y R B M) BT A T AR A0 72
Fr o ARV EHIZF (B4R R IE T FIRMAITH
B HERSEMYHEMGEVBRRNETERL
PRMHRERE -

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
EREFTEIR

Estimation of fair values of investment properties

REMELFEEME

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately HK$125
million, with the corresponding fair value changes recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The valuation process
is inherently subjective, and dependent on estimation of adjusted
unit price. The Group has engaged independent valuers to value
the investment properties at the end of the reporting period.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures about fair values of investment properties are included
in notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIZ-=F=A=+t—H BEXERJAFEEFENREDE
#)%#125,000,000/8 7T * MR FEEZEENERS BamR NHE
R o MERFASBEGIEN - WAKBMEFEHESEMAERS -
BEEEEZEBYAEMNBEHRERSRREDEETRH
1

TEEFHERAEARBRARENELFEENREEREN
ARE TSR3 R13

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RN ET MG EERETSER

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuers engaged by the Group. We also
obtained valuation reports prepared by the independent valuers,
understood the work of the independent valuers and evaluated
its work by assessing the relevance, completeness and accuracy
of the data used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
major assumptions and methodologies adopted in the valuation
by checking to the price of similar properties. We also involved
our internal valuation experts to assist us in evaluating the major
assumptions and methodologies of the valuation of certain
investment properties held by the Group.

BMEFE ESEEZENBUGHEMILTHE  HENRSE
RARREEE - BHMITERF B HEMBHOGHERS X
TR AEMN TE - WERFERIEHERMAENBERS
1HRE - EERER  FHEBLMAEMOTE  AREZEUADE
MBS - ARHEAERANEZMER L IE © HFITRE) 8 B
EER GG EEEMSETREVENTIEBRRLMES
& o
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B AZ B EN RS

Key audit matter

BARESEE

Provision against inventories

FERME

As at 31 March 2023, the net inventories balance of the Group
amounted to HK$16 million.

The Group is engaged in the marketing and distribution of
electronic components and design, development and sale of
consumer products, which are subject to changing market
demands and market competition. Management judgement is
required for assessing the appropriate level of inventory provision
in light of the current challenging business environment.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of the provision and the balance of inventories are
included in notes 3, 6 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

o Ea =g

RZEBE-_=%=A=+—HB  &&§ RO E 2

16,000,000/ 7T ©

ﬁ%@%%ﬁ%mﬁmm%ﬁf B 0\ BN B B R
MERYE - ETBEFBRRTERIVE - ERAHEHE
SHRES . BEERHAnR B 2 Bk BB 28 -

ITEEHE LA ARBETERERER I EEENENEG

B ERERMIEES ~ 65%20 -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RPN FT O EERAREFTSEH

We understood and evaluated the basis which management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories by considering
the stock ageing as at 31 March 2023 and the subsequent
sales after year ended 31 March 2023. We also compared the
carrying amount of the inventories, on a sample basis, to their
net realisable value through review of sales of the inventories
subsequent to the year end.

BRMEBBERN T _=F=A=+—HHEFRELEZE
T_=F- A=t HULEFEERNIREE TMI%@E@%
%Mﬁﬁ? S BT REE - B2 B BERFERRNE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter

FARENEE

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

FEd B 5 ARk e EL At PR KRR IR (B R

As at 31 March 2023, the Group recorded gross trade and other
receivables of HK$47 million and HK$47 million, respectively, and
provision for impairment of HK$38 million and HK$11 million,
respectively.

The provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
estimated by management through the application of judgement
and use of highly subjective assumptions, including the Group's
historical credit loss experience, identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of default, loss given default, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

Management engaged an independent valuer to value certain
impairment of trade and other receivables assessment at the end
of the reporting period.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of the trade receivables and their provision for
impairment are included in notes 3, 6, 18, 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R-E-_=F=-A=+—H  E5EISEEKEZERX
H h FEULFRIB 42%5847,000,0007% 7T %2 47,000,000 7T K ol (B 88
38,000,00078 7T % 11,000,000/ 7T °

BT EE B BT R R R SR R R SERR
HEEERERERE  BF BEEEEEHRER B
BIERE  EHEOBE  ROBRXE - UREBAKEZE
Z  BREERRRYARE B2 8RR RATRRENZ
FHET E 0 -

ERECRE—RBUGEMEBREHRNE TRKESRAL
H A UG IRR EETT A E

T2 HERAEFTARBRRKE ZRAREREREZHE
BN FAMBERRIMGES 618 21%22 °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANF O EERREFTSEE

We enquired management of the Group to understand the
Group’s process for estimating the provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables. We evaluated the methodologies,
inputs and assumptions, including judgement made by the
management of the Group in identifying credit-impaired
trade and other receivables, used by the Group in calculating
the impairment. We also assessed whether the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is properly supported
by available forward-looking information, the debtors’ ageing
analysis, settlement record and history of bad debt.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent valuers engaged by the Group. We have also
obtained valuation reports prepared by the independent valuer,
understood the work of the independent valuer and evaluated
its work by assessing the relevance, completeness and accuracy
of the data used as inputs for the valuation. We also involved
our internal valuation experts to assist us in evaluating the major
assumptions and methodologies of the valuation of certain
impairment of trade and other receivables.

HMAE BEREEEE  ATHE SEEMGFEEESRRR
Hi BB RERENRRE - ZfHE SRERAFERER
FrERZTE BAERRR B BESEEEERBEGME
ER B FEWE 5 Bk e B b R TR I (Rt 2 HU T - TRAFITNE
BRIBUS Z AR IEE R - BUSRAZ R DT - MBS NIR AR
e EKRE SRR R EMEKFRIBRERERELRIEE X

f o

RMENE BESEZENBUGEMEEBE  HithEE
HEREEE - HAIMERGBILAEMGROGERS R T #
B GERNTE - WEBFERELERAENEEEEH
B - STERAER - SHEBILMEMA TE - HATRESHEARGE
BRI ERHEE T RN E 2R R BRI ER 2 R&
RAGETTE °
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

N

Year ended 31 March 2023 HE=—T==F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EC-=8 —E -4
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BaaE FERT FAT
REVENUE = 5 660,008 1,042,449
Cost of sales 8H & AR (655,725) (1,004,696)
Gross profit E7 4,283 37,753
Other income and gains EAUA KU 55 5 31,305 12,564
Changes in fair value of investment properties & ¥%E A F(EBE 2 EEF) 13 (13,056) 7,415
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEER (16,579) (10,172)
Administrative expenses THE H (58,652) (61,450)
Impairment of financial assets, net TRMEBEZRME  FH 6 (10,421) (33,021)
BEBRRATEENERZ

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets PHEEZATEE

at fair value through profit or loss, net Wz (B518) « F%8 (14,120) 14,639
Other expenses, net HEMEA - 55 6 (931) (313)
Finance costs BhE KA 7 (461) (87)
Share of profits and losses of: DEE AN R EHE

Joint ventures BEE 123,783 272,128

Associates /NG (4,310) (3,422)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR T 6 40,841 236,034
Income tax FTiS#s 9 (123) (5,013)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE RAREE AEGEFERRT

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 40,718 231,021
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY RRBEEANEEZRET 11
Basic BN HK4.48 cent HK25.42 cent

4.4854L 25.4274L
Diluted e HK4.48 cent HK25.42 cent
4487 25.42;7541l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EWAR

Year ended 31 March 2023 #Z=T==F=A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 40,718 231,021
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2wl A
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be SRR EN D EEER 2
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  EAth 2 EU A (E518)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign REGINER RS E A 2 [E N 58
operations (3,986) 2,353
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) BREZBEAEENIEEEEZ
THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT Hih2mEBA (BB RERHM
OR LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND 2EBA S (EE) - MERBE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (3,986) 2,353
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR RARFERARGEFAZEBALE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY 36,732 233,374
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ESAR AR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E -4
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BiaE FBT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB RERENAR
and right-of-use assets EREEE 12 34,693 29,743
Investment properties B 13 124,828 136,665
Goodwill (EES 15 -
Other intangible assets ,H\fﬂl,@iﬁ?ﬁﬁ 16 3,485 3,485
Investments in joint ventures NEEREZIRE 17 1,355,041 1,266,363
Investments in associates E’\Hﬁfé.-f’& AIZIRE 18 - 4,310
Financial assets at fair value through FRBEmEATEBNEREZS
profit or loss BUEE 19 26,277 25,482
Prepayments and deposits TBRFIBERIES 22 2,714 20,777
Total non-current assets EmBEERE 1,547,038 1,486,825
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 15,856 44,797
Trade receivables FEWCE ZERR 21 9,116 8,599
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE{fZUB - & R EH b fE
WokaE 22 48,262 24,628
Financial assets at fair value through BREREAFEBIERZ
profit or loss EREE 19 11,946 28,385
Tax recoverable AU EI R IR = 2
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREER 23 121,371 152,228
Total current assets mENEERRE 206,551 258,639
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R IR R

31 March2023 —ZE==F=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET T3
CURRENT LIABILITIES piah=
Trade payables, deposits received and FETE SRR - EYORE RIE
accrued expenses T EH 24 22,854 23,848
Contract liabilities AHEE 25 3,387 20,559
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 342 698
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BRI TE SR 26 19,618 6,435
Tax payable JEIBETE 1,541 4,789
Financial guarantee obligation MISHEREE 27 77,959 52,032
Total current liabilities mEN B FEEEE 125,701 108,361
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 80,850 150,278
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEERABERE 1,627,888 1,637,103
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 140 490
Deferred tax liabilities FELERIRAE 28 14,412 14,575
Total non-current liabilities JERB B ELRTE 14,552 15,065
Net assets AESE 1,613,336 1,622,038
EQUITY i
Issued capital BT 29 90,866 90,866
Reserves & 1,513,050 1,521,748
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 &l H A &b 1,603,916 1,612,614
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M R 9,420 9,424
Total equity T AEER 1,613,336 1,622,038
So Yuk Kwan So Kevin Chi Heng
g9 B®EE
Director Director
2 E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2023 HE-—T-_=F=A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

—

=Y.

=N 7/

B

LN N
Share Asset  Exchange Non-
[ssued ~ premium Capital Other revaluation ~ fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
cpital  account reservet  resenve resene®  resene profits*# Totdl  interests equity
AEEf  ERRY

BEARA BOREE RAGE  AHER i Wh  REERM BE FERER  EREE

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000

Thr Tér TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr A TEn  TEn

At 1 April 2021 R-E--E[A-H 90866 429719 19,484 (38483) 38,765 2316 812,214 1414941 10,068 1,425,009

Proftfor he ear R - - - - - -oBm B B

Other comprehensive income for the year: EREHRAWA :
Bxchange dfferences on translation of BEENSBREEL

foreign operations ERzE - - - - - 2393 - 2353 = 2353

Total comprehensive income for the year ERzENAGE - - - - - 233 B B33 - 333N
Equity-settled share option arrangements of —HHEATNERSEERE

asubsidiary (note 30) ZH(H30) - - - - - - - - i ]

Share options of subsidiaries lapsed (note 30) HEBARERERR (30 - - - - - - 646 646 (646 =

Dividend paid (note 10) BRRE (0 - - - - - - (63N (3634) - [363)

At31 March 2022 RZZ-Z#Zf=+-H 90866 429,719 19484 (38483 38765 4.729% 1067534* 1612614 9424 1622038
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

zT

* ")(%:.%Eb%%

Year ended 31 March 2023 #Z=T==F=A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAREARL
Share Asset  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  Capital Other revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve’  reserve  reserve®  reserve profits™  Total interests equity
E )

BRARE ROEER RAGHE  BERE e BB REEA® 2 FEREE  RRAR

HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

TRn Tén TR TEx TR TEr TR TEr TR TEn

At 1 April 2022 R-E--#WA-A 90,866  429,719¢ 19480+ (38483 38765 4729 1,067,534% 1,612,614 9424 1,622,038

Profit for the year ERmEH - - - - - - homs 478 -l
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREfpEEER:

Bichange differences on transation of BEE SRR B 2R

foreign operations - - - - - (3.986) - (3,986) - (3,986)

Total comprehensive income/[loss) for the year ER2ERA/ () A% - - - - - (3986 40718 3673 - %

Share options of subsidiaries lapsed (note 30) HBLRERER R (330 - - - - - - 4 4 @ =

Dividend paic (note 10) BAifRE (Hik0) - - - - - - (54 (454 - (5430

At 31 March 2023 \=EZ=E=R=1-A 90,866 429,719 19480+ (38483 38765 743 1,062,822 1,603,916 9420 1,613,336

# Included in the balance of the capital reserve as at 31 March 2023 was a capital ~ * REZT-=F=A=1+—HZRAFEEERBIERRER

##

##

94

redemption reserve balance amounting to approximately HK$16,142,000 (2022:
HK$16,142,000).

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from owner-occupied
properties to investment properties carried at fair value. In accordance with HKAS 16,
this balance was frozen and was not available to offset the current and future years’
revaluation deficits on investment properties until the retirement or disposal of these
assets.

As at 31 March 2023, there was goodwill of HK$12,427,000 (2022: HK$12,427,000)
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years which remained eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,513,050,000 (2022:

HK$1,521,748,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2023.
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16,142,000/

AEB[RFFERE S ERYEREESARATEEYIRE

ZEENFE - REBBRTERF165 - ZIARBGRE

AR AR EHAFE R AR FERENEZ ShEA -
BEEZSEERELHERL -

RE-ZF-_=F=A=+—H  AUNGEFELRERBARMN
EEZ#E12,427,0008 7T (ZF =24 : 12,427,000/
TO) B SR A R A o

REREBEERN T =F=-A=+t—BKRAHE
RREKRAZ 4R A FH#1,513,050,0008 T (T -4 :
1,521,748,000/87T) °



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-.ﬁ IEI@/}“JE%

Year ended 31 March 2023 HE=—T==F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EC-=H B F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B s TExT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMESRERE
Profit before tax BREERE A 40,841 236,034
Adjustments for: PEUATIE R (e
Finance costs BE KA 7 461 87
Share of profits of joint ventures DMERERFERF (123,783) (272,128)
Share of losses of associates DIEBE A REE 4,310 3,422
Depreciation of items of property, plant and
equipment ME  BEREREEENE 6 1,442 1,479
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHAEEENE 6 1,552 2,000
Changes in fair value of investment properties KENENTEBEZE 13 13,056 (7,415)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hfth 28 A 51 6 - 5
Impairment of other intangible assets Hip B EERE 6 - 342
Impairment of items of property, plant and W - BEREREEERE
equipment 6 432 10
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 6 - 515
Impairment of a loan to an associate Rt —REEREZ
Eazma 6 7,620 364
Impairment of amounts due from associates JEUSCE & A R ZRIE R (E 6 3,314 =
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade %H&f’f%ﬁﬁmz
receivables A/ (R{ERE) 6 (513) 32,657
Reversal of provision for impairment of inventories FERERERD 6 (915) (6,852)
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE  BEREEER 2
and equipment Wras 5,6 (21,807) (9)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change HETAREBRESEE .
in the non-cancellable period of a lease MHE &N 5,6 - (146)
Gain on derecognition of financial guarantee
obligation RILERB BERE 2 E 6 (95,445) (101,541)
Impairment of investments in joint ventures REECERE ZRE 6 95,445 101,541
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKEA R Z Wt 6 - (1,256)
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets BB TTZ’&EFTETE@JEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net EREENATEE
W) /598 - FE 6 14,120 (14,639)
Dividend income from listed equity investments ETRERE 2 R BMA 5 (53) (11)
Bank interest income RITHIBUA 5 (596) 1)
Interest income on listed bond investments FREFEEZFERA 5 (8) (564)
Interest income from loan to an associate REF—BBHEARZERLZ
AISON 5 (658) =
Interest income from other receivables H it e WGk IE 2 F B 5 (1,120) =
Equity-settled share option expense of a subsidiary ~ —FEIBARZ RELEE
EIREE R 30 - 2
Cash used in operations KEFARSE (62,305) (26,124)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (Em),m 29,682 (4,412)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 BR3R (38 ) /b 142 (7,035)
Increase in amounts due from associates JRE LBt 1) R ZRIEHE AN (5,373) (1,776)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits ?Eﬁ RIE - tRe RE M EIGK
and other receivables mA, () (10,858) 16,865
Decrease in trade payables, deposits received E‘éﬁﬁ%,ﬂﬁ%ﬂ - BYiRE KT
and accrued expenses BRRD (1,078) (1,753)
Decrease in contract liabilities SHEERD (16,585) (15,909)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-ﬁ IE%/)H:E’%%

Year ended 31 March 2023 #Z=T==F=A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BieE FTiEx FAT
Cash used in operations KEmARS (66,375) (40,144)
Interest portion of lease payments MERNZRFEHH - 41
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEFEBER Tﬁ’&?{“ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ’\]
at fair value through profit or loss EREEZFTEFIA - 32,314
Dividend income received from a joint venture Bl—RHAEREZREBA 61,189 93,240
Overseas taxes paid BRI (3,538) (6,940)
T BE/ (FTF)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities ZBREREFE (8,724) 78,429
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFAERTRE
Bank interest received EHERITH S 596 21
Dividends received from listed equity investments Bl iR AR R 53 1"
Interest income on listed bond investments EmEHFEEZFERA 8 564
Interest income from a loan to an associate RET RS AR 2 ERZF
BHA 658 -
Interest income from other receivables oA FEMRRIE 2 R 2 A 1,120 -
Purchases of investment properties BEREME 13 (26,922) -
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BB - BiE LR EER 12 (9,565) (776)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREYE 2 FSFIA 13 24,285 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BE KK 1%1,5 Az
plant and equipment iS58 22,965 9
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—fRKER R 32 = (546)
Advance of a loan to an associate A —fEBE AR ER - (19,425)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities BEZBME/ (FTA) 2
Rengss 13,198 (20,142)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBRBZRESRE
Net increase in import and trust receipt loans #OREFBIRER
EIER 33 12,614 6,424
Interest paid ERFE 33 (418) 9)
Interest portion of lease payments MERNFH S 33 (43) 37)
Principal portion of lease payments MERE $% i) 33 (678) 917)
Dividends paid ERE 10 (45,434) (36,347)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEEMAZEEREF (33,959) (30,886)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH B &K ZERELER
EQUIVALENTS #/ (HD) B8 (29,485) 27,401
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year i%ﬂziﬁéﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁlﬁ B 152,228 124,298
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREE 28 FE (1,372) 529
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR & ZHERZRAEEIER 121,371 152,228
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH RERERREEBEBZ DN
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REBHRRERR
consolidated statement of financial position and REReRERMEZ
in the consolidated statement of cash flows RekERBEER 23 121,371 152,228
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAREEER
AV Concept Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability AV Concept Holdings Limited ([ 7)) A1 FH
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office SEREFMKIZZBRAR o ARQR)Z M
address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand ERRHHEAP.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands and its principal place of business Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands * mEEZ
is located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang Chiu Road, EEMBBI N BB NEERBEIGREERE
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong. 5= HA6iE -
During the year, the Group was engaged in the following principal FA - AEERSATEEZSER
activities:
e Marketing and distribution of electronic components; o  EBEFMHzHBHERDSH
. Design, development and sale of consumer products and product . BEBHEEME  AEREEURER
sourcing services; and HEEEL &
e Venture capital investment . eSS g
Information about subsidiaries BB AR ZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARl EEZMBARFBAT :
Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
£ TEMAL K& i 2 BET/ERRA ARFEEREEA TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE B
AV Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
FERITERRA Bh 28T REER
HK$1,000,000°
1,000,000/ c®
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD4,000,000 - 100  Trading of electronic
EIbs 4,000,0003T AN T components
BES Tl
AV Electronics Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$40,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 40,0003 7T REER
RBRLHES /B
E-GoGo Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Trading of consumer
BE 17T products and

investment holding
BEEHBEEMRRE

21k
T
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Yt

31 March2023 —ZE==F=A=+—H

98

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NAIREEER @

FENBLATRZER @

Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
£ T AR S S B BRfT/ERRE ARREEREFEAL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE G
Signeo Design International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Design, development
& 1007 7T and sale of consumer
products
Fit AEMHERE
BER
AVC Technology (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Trading of electronic
BRI (BB ARAF B 17T components and
consumer products
BEE T HER
Em
New Concept Capital Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("New Concept”)* Hong Kong (E and venture capital
RERUHE/BE investment
REZRREIFR?
830 Lab Limited Hong Kong HK$710,000 = 100 Online advertising
& 710,000/ 7T services and provision

@ Represents deferred shares issued by AV Concept Limited
# New Concept is a venture capital organisation

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time

for the current year’'s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 April 2022. As there
were no business combination that occurred during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by HKAS 2 /nventories, in
profit or loss. Since the Group does not have any sale of items
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being
available for use, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

102

(0 Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing

whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for which
it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 April 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 April 2022.
As there was no modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
[llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020

Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with no

change in conclusion.

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning

before 1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification
overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS

17

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’
Insurance Contracts' >

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information °
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)**
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new or revised standards and amendments. So far, the Group
considers that these new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in
accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's financial performance and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHEEBE W

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) FEMEE ZRIE @

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to REREHARSERFEISTHEESETRET
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment JE Rl M\Z/WTEJ%?ET@T?E_X—J B e
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication MHIRZERR - BlgEEt RS o KAl
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised R EE (BERIN REBEEXAUEE
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there ZEEARB &R 2 Mt RSB R g8
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable B - EEEHENMFEARENBEFEILE
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying NEAEERRREBSEN TAEEZEAS
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ B (HNBREMIITE ) - BB 2 REEBER
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset EEHE AGEERE

in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties EREAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIERT  — AR ERAEE 2 GHREA
9 ¢
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@ —TFAR—BATHZALTZIER HZA
and that person T
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i)  EAREE BRI R IR
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEEERFEN : 3
(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) ARAEEIAEEEFQFRZEEE
Group or of a parent of the Group; BEXE
or %
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) —FAARTEE TIMEAGE 2B :
applies:
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group; (i) ;Agﬁi% iIREE AR —SBEZKE
AT
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —HEEAE—EEGEHIZ—FTE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the SN = WNS DA ) %’&
other entity); A 2 E N R RE B
(iiiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (iiy ZEBEAEBEAR-—F=H26
third party; B
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —HERBARE=-FEBZAZD
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ mME—ERBRZE=FEBEZ
NS
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit () ZEBEAASESEASESERE
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to Z BB ES BN MR 2B BER
the Group; Fst&l
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) an entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Land and buildings 2% - 3%
Leasehold improvements 20% —-33'5%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 20% —-33'5%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

Club memberships

The Group's club memberships with finite lives are stated at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on an individual basis. The Group’s club memberships with indefinite
useful lives are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment loss.

Trademarks and customer relationships

Trademarks and customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Mobile application

Mobile application is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Land 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful lives
of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

112

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of |ease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as other
income in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI"”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (@ 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage2 -

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, deposits received,
financial liabilities included in accrued expenses, lease liabilities, interest-
bearing bank borrowings and financial guarantee obligation.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on
the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and
other financial institutions, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

3 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

(b)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised at the point
in time when the services have been rendered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company and two of its subsidiaries operate share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expenses, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China, Singapore and Korea are required to participate in pension
schemes operated by the respective local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the pension schemes. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the pension schemes.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of associate grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 %3k

24 FESHEERE@®

HittE S &R

RS E
AEERZERERBS A BIED  BTA]
1% 22 B FE L ROR ) 1 A B 2 IR KR TG 8
(s8] 2EBEMEEE - f3
DERBEEEAFE 2R -—BOLFE IR
REBEBBESAIZRUREERNEEHARE
R - BB CEENBYUEREST
A BAKEEES R - RABED S
Wl AREZEZHANBEEGES -
ERAEEZEEAEHK - HEBERER
Rt 82 RAVES 2B KATRER - BI&R
BAEKBAIRRSN o

AEERPEARM - IR RBEREEERZ
MERRZEEASEMEEMTRFEMZ
BARSE - ZEWMBARARBE THEK
RZETBDLRERRESFBIHER - HFRTIR
REBEARESFEZRURERNEEHERE
KRR ©

EENZEIS
ERRARELRRZFZEBERAER R
¥ o

RE
RERBRIRAE LB ERERRE
{8 o BRI SN A M IFRRMERE

HAARARZEBERRANAAREESRS
IR AR - MBI R Z R R EIR TR &
H1T o FEE - AP EIRR B R K B IR A B
RRAE-



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

24 TESTHBRBE@

SN
RERAMBRRTIAETT - BIARR B ZINEEE
K25 - ARBARZERBBTRERRFZY
REE ﬁ@%EXE%ZW%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬂ
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ EEHEE - AREAERREING
%EWE%AHE%%E%FX%E%L%
ZERGE - MINERBHBMN 2 EBUEE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ EREEMZEERR
ExmE  FNEEXBESREREMELL
%ﬁﬂ#”AE SR NTER

DN SE KA B ZIFERIEIRE - IR&RH)
RHBMZERBRE - WINERTFEEFEZ
FEKUER EAATEBEFERHZERX
BE o MERANTEEFEZIFEELEE M
EEZBENEE - BERZEE QT EESE
WS EIE 2 RIERE B REMEE
WASIEENER A FEBEERNEHEERZIEE
ZHERERE - TR 2 ERARIEREA
TR

REEVRERBBEE RXHBARBD
PERE - RITAERBANKERENIEERE
ERFEREE RS BHR/AEEDNS
Ewﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁim#fﬁéﬁiﬁfﬁﬁ1
o i R ZEBNFORLTAWFE - KE
l?%i@ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁm 27 A -

ETEINIBRR aEEERBERTZI)
REBRETUIINZER - RBESHBER
B ZEEREERAESRNREHREG
REERZERBERET  MEBGERER
BXGEHZBITEXRRE CEXRBERE
TC o FREAZERZENE M2 EEARTER
RRELRBRFEEARG - LEBINEBE -
HZRHEBIEBERZEMEZHRARSE
iR BERAER o

Annual Report 2023 53§ AV Concept Holdings Limited 125



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Yt

31 March2023 —ZE==F=A=+—H

2.4

126

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences; and

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2023 was
HK$124,828,000 (2022: HK$136,665,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment provision for trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
these receivables. Impairment provision is made for these receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates, including the current creditworthiness,
the past collection history of each debtor, identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of default, loss given rate and forward-looking
information. Where the expectation on the recoverability of these
receivables is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of these receivables and impairment
provision in the periods in which such estimate has been changed. The
aggregate carrying amount of trade receivables and other receivables
as at 31 March 2023 were HK$9,116,000 (2022: HK$8,599,000) and
HK$49,077,000 (2022: HK$44,426,000), respectively.

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving items through management’s estimation of the
net realisable value for such obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s inventories as at 31 March
2023 was HK$15,856,000 (2022: HK$44,797,000).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@  the semiconductor distribution segment engages in the sale and
distribution of electronic components;

(b)  the consumer product and product sourcing business segment
engages in the design, development and sale of consumer
products and product sourcing services;

(c)  the venture capital segment engages in the investments in listed/
unlisted equity and debt investments with an ultimate objective
of obtaining capital gains on investee’s equity listing or, in some
circumstances, prior to listing. It also includes investments in
managed funds, convertible bonds and listed bonds; and

(d)  the others segment mainly comprises the Group's internet social
media business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
bank interest income, interest income from a loan to an associate,
interest income from other receivables, rental income, share of profits
and losses of joint ventures and associates, gain on disposal/impairment
of items of property, plant and equipment, compensation income from
termination of acquisition of an investment property, impairment
of other intangible assets, impairment of a loan to an associate,
impairment of amounts due from associates, changes in fair value of
investment properties, finance costs and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investment properties, investments in joint
ventures and associates, a loan to an associate and amounts due from
associates included in prepayments, deposits and other receivable, tax
recoverable, cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, lease
liabilities, interest-bearing bank borrowings, financial guarantee
obligation and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REREER @)
Consumer
product and
Semiconductor product sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
FEREAH RBER #IR Hit @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T T T T
Year ended 31 March 2023 BZE-E-=f=R=t-H
LFE
Segment revenue A
Sales to external customers ANRBE ZHE 634,273 24,686 - 1,049 660,008
Other losses HiBE - - (13,906) - (13,906)
Total Lo 634,273 24,686 (13,906) 1,049 646,102
Recondiliation: i
Add: Other losses (note) o Efsis (D) 13,906
Revenue as presented in the MR BREZ) 2 W&
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 660,008
Segment results PEHEE (24,236) (10,257) (19,055) (1,991) (55,539)
Recondiliation: i
Bank interest income BATFIEMA 596
Interest income from a loan to an Rt T-ABE AR ZER
associate FBHA 658
Interest income from other receivables  E A EIFIB 2 FI WA 1,120
Rental income HSWA 4,537
Share of profits of joint ventures HMEEELFER 123,783
Share of losses of associates NMEBENRER (4.310)
Gain on disposal of items of HENE - BERRBEE 2
property, plant and equipment Wz 21,807
Impairment of items of property, plant  #1% - BERX/EER 2AfE
and equipment (432)
Impairment of a loan to an associate T —HEE AR ZEHZ
HE (7,620)
Impairment of amounts due from R AR RE
associates (3.314)
Changes in fair value of investment R ENEATFEE 2
properties (13,056)
Unallocated expenses RAERZ (26,928)
Finance costs BERM AR (461)
Profit before tax BRTEATRR 40,841
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gains, and fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, net, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. &Z 2 TER @
Consumer
product and
Semiconductor  product sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HERER
REm
FEENH RS &% Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL TR AL
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE_Z-—F=A=1-H
It5E
Segment revenue il 6
Sales to external customers MR Z & 1,012,713 29,001 - 735 1,042,449
Other revenue Hitlie - - 15,358 - 15,358
Total st 1,012,713 29,001 15,358 735 1,057,807
Reconciliation: i -
Less: Other revenue (note) e () (15,358)
Revenue as presented in the N laE e Pl G
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,042,449
Segment results IS 9,561 (36,178) 11,521 (6,378) (21,474)
Reconciliation: i -
Bank interest income BITHIBIRA 21
Rental income ik N 4,362
Share of profits of joint ventures HMEBELEER 272,128
Share of losses of associates HMEBERAER (3422)
Gain on disposal of items of property, &M% « BELRXEERZ
plant and equipment Wi 9
Compensation income from BIPER A E 2 FERA
termination of acquisition of an
investment property 4,434
Impairment of other intangible assets ~ Eft EFEE 2 FiE (342)
Impairment of a loan to an associate T —HHERARZEHZ
AE (364)
Changes in fair value of investment X ENEATFEEZES
properties 7,415
Unallocated expenses RARFZ (26,646)
Finance costs BERKA (87)
Profit before tax BRBADRH 236,034
Note: Other revenue/(losses) in segment revenue were classified as other income and Htat - pEpREARz Bk (BB ED B ALREE

BRAZEMBA R @A FEBRERAF
EBEIE ERMEEZ ATFEBEYS (BB F

e
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& 5 IBER @
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
YERAH RiEEY = Hth @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TAL THAL TATL
31 March 2023 “E_=F=R=1-H
Segment assets AHEE 551,553 7797 12,787 2,704 645,015
Reconcillation: -
Elimination of intersegment receivables  #$57 B U A (529,762)
Investments in joint ventures REEREIRE 1,355,041
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ ARIREMASEEE 283,295
Total assets AEGE 1,753,589
Segment liabilities AHEE 33,516 269,454 185,782 79,764 568,516
Reconcillation: -
Elimination of intersegment payables  #L$A D EBRMER FUA (529,762)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR EMAASEEE 101,499
Total liabilties BESE 140,253
31 March 2022 ZECZE=A=1-H
Segment assets AHEE 572,873 82,140 40,186 2,291 697,490
Reconcillation: -
Elimination of intersegment receivables  #$57 ZB UL A (536,578)
Investments in joint ventures INCRE A 1,266,363
Investments in associates R RE 4310
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ AR EMASEEE 313,879
Total assets BERE 1,745,464
Segment liabilities AHEE 39,754 253,458 207,232 78,209 578,653
Reconcillation: -
Elimination of intersegment payables  #LSA 7 EBfER ZUA (536,578)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR EMASEEE 81,351
Total liabilities RS 123,426
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& 5 IBER @
Other segment information: Hib o HMEHR :
Consumer
product and
Semiconductor  product sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
YERIH RiREH - Htt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THTL TET FEL TR
Year ended 31 March 2023 BZ-E-=E=A=1-AH
LFE
Depreciation of items of property, plant 1% « BELZEER &
and equipment 1,057 2 134 249 1,442
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RREAENE 1,032 - 520 - 1,552
Reversal of provision for impairment FEZRERERR
of inventories - (915) - - (915)
Reversal of impairment of trade EUWE SRR RERE - 58
receivables, net - (513) - - (513)
Capital expenditure* BARGFR 9,550 15 - - 9,565
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-F-—%=A=1-H
IH5E
Depreciation of items of property, plant ~ #1% « R RREBENE
and equipment 1,069 2 292 116 1479
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELERE 1,041 85 874 - 2,000
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ EMEFARE 2 HiH 5 - - - 5
Reversal of provision for impairment & ZJl(EEEEE
of inventories - (6,852) - - (6,852)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of BB B ZfE,/
trade receivables, net (RlERE) - 38 = 32,670 = (13) 32,657
Impairment of items of property, plant and 1% + BiERREEE ZRfE
equipment - 10 - - 10
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE 515 - - - 515
Capital expenditure* BART* 98 12 - 666 776
o Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. * EXRXBIEREYE  HERREER -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

K& EE R @
i EE R
(a) RENIREEZUE

2023 2022
—E-=fF B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Hong Kong B 25,894 30,335
Singapore g 634,114 1,011,722
Taiwan = - 392
660,008 1,042,449

The revenue information above is based on the locations in which
the sales originated.

Non-current assets

RS ER TR BHEELEMEDE

e

(b) FRBEE

2023 2022
—E-=F B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Hong Kong B 1,390,476 1,304,715
Mainland China AR A 89,140 104,759
Singapore Frons 38,431 31,092
1,518,047 1,440,566

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to 10%

LiIEREEEE R A EMEMATE

ERTEESRTA -

TRETEREFZEHR

KEZEIREP ((HEWER10% A L) Wikas

or more of the total revenue, is set out below: HTR -
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T T
Customer A ZFEA 74,438 T
Customer B =B TEA* 155,211
Customer C =FC TER* 119,129
Customer D EFD TER* 118,608
@ Less than 10% of the Group'’s revenue. S ERAEERZEZ10% ©
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

5. W@ - Atk AR Wz
Wz - M Rz 2 SATET

2023 2022
—E-=fF —ECofF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#xT FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWE
Semiconductor distribution F B 4K 634,273 1,012,713
Consumer product sales and product HERRE miHE REmEE X
sourcing business 24,686 29,001
Others EAh 1,049 735
660,008 1,042,449
Revenue from contracts with customers REFFEHZWE

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 March 2023

() WEERBHA

BE-_E-_=F=H=+—HLEE

Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing
Segments distribution business Others Total
HEREAR
28 FERAH ERFEES Aty #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 A7 A7 A7
Total revenue from contracts with customers REZPEH W 634,273 24,686 1,049 660,008
Geographical markets HEmE
Hong Kong & 159 24,686 1,049 25,894
Singapore AT 634,114 - - 634,114
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEPEN NHE 634,273 24,686 1,049 660,008
Timing of revenue recognition KEREANEE
Transferred at a point in time REERHHER 634,273 24,686 1,049 660,008
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

(@

For the year ended 31 March 2022

5. W -

H b g A R W= @

W - AR ARKEZ AT ¢ (8%
REFEFEHZ WS @

(0]

Wi & R ER AE (AD)

BE—_ T - F=A=1+—HItFE

Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing
Segments distribution business Others Total
BEREDR
ki TERAH EnFEER Hth &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TiEr FHL THr
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERPEA MR ER 1,012,713 29,001 735 1,042,449
Geographical markets WEmE
Hong Kong B 1,537 28,063 735 30335
Singapore g 1,011,176 546 - 1,011,722
Taiwan A - 392 - 392
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERPEA MR ER 1,012,713 29,001 735 1,042,449
Timing of revenue recognition Wi B R 1 s
Transferred at a point i time REER B ER 1,012,713 29,001 735 1,042,449

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

TRINTRAREMEER 2 W es 28

(Bt AREHVIEHAR) -

2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHIT
Revenue recognised that was included in R ARERIER
contract liabilities at the beginning of BEFAKE
the reporting period:
Sale of products HEEm 18,786 33,111
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 45 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms
are extended to over 60 days.

Provision of services

The performance obligation is satisfied when the services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 45 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms
are extended to over 60 days.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements because all the remaining performance
obligations in relation to the sale of products are a part of
contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

sk ~ AU R W @

Wzs - EAIRARIGEZ ST ¢ (4)

REFF SR Z WS @

(i) BREE
AEEBROEEARBIROT -

HEE
BABEERXNE MR ER NGB TE
FHRI0EASKRAEN - EEERFH
BEPESN  EHREREEBBO0OX °

TR

BB (EREIR RIS ER RN TR EE
BHR30EAS KA @ EEERIFH
BEPRIN » EHRIEREHEBO0X °

ERATTREZ.  "EEHRTENEE
(REZR AR D RZRK) MR B ERILARR
RAMIEWRMERRKTE - TIEMAE EH
EERARNKRTEROAETRREHR
B FRAREHIH—FED -

less.
Other income and gains HAW AR K a8
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E- 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Bank interest income RITAEUA 596 21
Interest income on listed bond investments EEFRE 2 A EHA 8 564
Interest income from a loan to an associate RHT—EEE AR BRI 2WA 658 =
Interest income from other receivables At FEGRIE 2 A1 B U 1,120 =
Dividend income from listed equity investments  _ETRR AL E 2 Bx BULA 53 11
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE REFHEER 2 K=
plant and equipment 21,807 9
Rental income e A 4,537 4,362
Government grants (note) BT By (BEE) 792 668
Foreign exchange differences, net bE N ZRE - HE 762 281
Revision of a lease term arising from a change ~ MENA] EHHAM &8N EL 2 HEH Sk
in the non-cancellable period of a lease - 146
Compensation income from termination of I Gis e b E ek VN
acquisition of an investment property - 4,434
Others Hth 972 2,068
31,305 12,564

Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions on contingencies relating to these grants.

BIRE © 2 BN SR A AR AR S LAt s A IR -
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6.

138

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BREE AR A

AEE 2 BRBADEM I G A R T &E

BIER
2023 2022
—E-=HF T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Fisx TET FAT
Cost of inventories sold** SHE K AR 656,347 1,011,493
Reversal of provision for impairment T8 R E R R E
of inventories** (915) (6,852)
Depreciation of items of property, plant and WE - BEREEBEENE
equipment 12 1,442 1,479
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREENE 12 1,552 2,000
Amortisation of other intangible assets* Hofh Sy 8 B g 16 - 5
Lease payments not included in the measurement Kt AREBEZE
of lease liabilities SRR 14 1,584 1,254
Revision of a lease term arising from a change HETHERRZSEEZ
in the non-cancellable period of a lease HEHREN 14 - (146)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEEN S 2,150 2,150
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration ETRA(BRESHE
—note 8): —PfizE8) -
Wages, salaries and other allowances T% - #FekHEMm=Ea 38,467 41,588
Pension scheme contributions*** RREET B R~ 1,578 1,495
40,045 43,083
Impairment of financial assets, net: SRBEME  FHE
Impairment of a loan to an associate RET—HEE AR ERZHE 22 7,620 364
Impairment of amounts due from associates FEUCES: & 1 R IR R E 22 3,314 =
Impairment /(reversal of impairment) of trade FEWE 5 BE0RE,/ (R ERE)
receivables 21 (513) 32,657
10,421 33,021
Other expenses/(income), net: Hih BB,/ (RA) 558
Impairment of other intangible assets Himy EERE 16 - 342
Impairment of investments in joint ventures REECEZIRE ZRE 95,445 101,541
Gain on derecognition of financial guarantee RIEFERI B EREE 2 e
obligation (95,445) (101,541)
Impairment of items of property, plant and M - BB RFEEBRE
equipment 12 432 10
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 12 = 515
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B ARz s 32 - (1,256)
Others HAh 499 702
931 313
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets BERBREATEEIEZERH
at fair value through profit or loss, net BEZATEAEMS) BE
et 14,120 (14,639)
Foreign exchange differences, net SMEZERE - AR (762) (281)
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEME - BKERXEEE
and equipment 6 (21,807) )
Direct operating expenses (including repairs WHIR B FEEE B EE
and maintenance), arising on rental-earning X (BIEHRERIRE)
investment properties 786 723
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PROFlT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6.

This balance is included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

xx These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

***  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁﬂ( &)

BRI AR RERZ[TTHRER]
= ZEERTEIAGREBRRERZHERA]

ek WEGORM 2 HR AT EAREESEE BREE

employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. BEHRFOKFE
FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKARZ AT :
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZ L 418 9
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14) HEABEZF B (FizE14) 43 78
461 87

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEFMRAVEHERS 2ER

EEHM

R EWHRY - HERAMEDIZE383(1)(a)
(b) ~ (O RDERAR (WEESNEER) R
F2HEBEZFRNEZHIMNT

2023 2022

—E:-=F T %

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fi#xT FET

Fees Fiakery 450 450

Other emoluments: e -

Salaries, housing and other allowances, e BEREMERI

and benefits in kind REYF S 16,569 15,055

Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 766 690

17,335 15,745

17,785 16,195
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(@) Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors during the

year are as follows:

(%)

ESHM @
(a) BUFHITES
FAXNTFEULIFRTESEZRENT ¢

ESHFMRAEVEHEMES 2ER

2023 2022

—EBEC-=F - —F

HK$'000 HK$°000

FHExT FAT

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, PhD, SBS, JP S RZES L ¢+ PhD - SBS - AT#RE 150 150
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 150 150
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund R IB I 150 150
450 450

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent

Non-executive Directors during the year (2022: Nil).

(b) Executive Directors

FRIEEMEN B IENTES ZBE
(ZF=Z=F | -

(b) BITES

Salaries,
housing and
other

allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
in kind contributions remuneration
e EER
HiRa R EBIREETE
BYFz= N iz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT
2023 —EC-=F
Executive Directors: HITES -
Dr. So Yuk Kwan PYSac)ihm 10,169 450 10,619
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng B EEE 3,612 177 3,789
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny BRE AL 2,788 139 2,927
16,569 766 17,335
2022 —E-—F
Executive Directors: HITES -
Dr. So Yuk Kwan PYSac)ihm 9,329 404 9,733
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng A EEE 2,587 129 2,716
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny BRAESASEAE 3,139 157 3,296
15,055 690 15,745
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive Directors (continued)
There was no other arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2022: Nil).

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2022:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2022: two) highest
paid employees for the year are as follows:

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

EEFMROUFHRS 2ES
(80
EEHMH )
(b) BTES ()
Py BHEE(ERE BRERR B HE
(ETHIZ b (B —F 1) -

hfuFss RS

FA- AfuFHs= 2 BERE=U (=T ==
FZEF  EHFMFERENLEX - FRHE
g (CE-_—F : M) FHsscBEZ
BT

2023 2022

—ECo=F B —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FEEYA R 4,497 4,679

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FHN TN THERZ FHESIEEEREZA
IR ¢

Number of employees

EEAE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%8 7L & 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 L% 3,000,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2022: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

Frig®
HRAEER F AN EETBE LT RRT
A MUY EEHEE BN SR (T
F ) o B[R RSN Z BUIR TR ANE
BREEXBAERAERERZHETE -

2023 2022
—E-=F —E__HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FAT
Current — Elsewhere BNHR — E At ih [ &

Charge for the year FAZH 292 4,803
Deferred (note 28) JEIE (Mi7E28) (169) 210
Total tax charge for the year FABIES 487 123 5,013
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142

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

88 @
RAAATAREADHHBATEMAEER
TEERRHE Y RBATRFER Y HERY
SREER R BIAY Y WENT -

2023 2022

—EBEC-=F S =

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FATT

Profit before tax B 250 Al g A 40,841 236,034
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% (2022: BEERE16.5% (ZF =24 : 16.5%)

16.5%) AHZ IR 6,739 38,946
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions ~ Hfbh Al A ERR R =E 7 2 (77) 529
Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures & ‘&b % KL H& N\ F)fE(L

and associates A & B e (19,713) (44,336)
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (4,712) (4,065)
Expenses not deductible for tax NGtk ba 2,986 6,728
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 BIEEE 15,159 7,380
Others EHA (259) (169)
Tax charge for the year FABIAXH 123 5,013

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures amounting to
HK$26,040,000 (2022: HK$57,486,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

10. DIVIDENDS 10. K&
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FARRBDIR IS :

2023 2022
—EBEC-=F —E__HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FATT

Interim dividend declared and paid — HK$0.01 EEIREZ N2 PHRE — BB
(2022: HK$0.01) per ordinary share 0.01BT(ZFE=_%F : 0.01/7T) 9,087 9,087

Final dividend declared and paid — HK$0.04 EEIRRZ N2 RERE — BT @R
(2022: HK$0.03) per ordinary share 0.04%8 7T (ZF = : 0.03/87T) 36,347 27,260
45,434 36,347

11.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 of HK$0.01 (2022: final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 of HK$0.04) per
share has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
number of ordinary shares of 908,663,302 (2022: 908,663,302) in issue
during the year.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group issued share option to their employees
and directors. No adjustment has been made to the Company’s
earnings per shares amounts presented for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022 in respect of these share options issued by
the Company’s subsidiaries as they had an antidilutive effect on the
earnings per share amount presented. The Company had no other
dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for the current year.

RFpEHERE  EEEZREBE_T=_=F
= A=t+—ALFERMNRAKSF0.0175
T(CE——F  pHE_T-_—F=A=+—
B I F R AR AR S FAK0.04787T) » WAL
PR A EER R AS EibER - FAMEER ©

1. AR HEEANELEERER

EREARENESFEIRIBEARREE AEEE
Wim Al & F A B 21T 8RS E 908,663,302 %
(ZZ = —4F : 908,663,302f%) 5t & °

AEEETHBARERNEEERESETE
fEHE - ARA QB EHITHZEERELFT25
BRAFCHEES RETHE I EMLZ
RN E S =R T —F=f
=+—HIEFEZINNARARZRERRET S
BEEHAE - NARIRAEE I HEE B 3T
B gy e BETER -
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e B RS R AR Yt

31 March 2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.

ARBEEANEEERERN @

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

FRREAR R HEE BN TIRIRA NIRRT E

2023 2022
—EBEC-=F —E_—4&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Earnings ZF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, RUAGESRRER REE RN 2 AR %
used in the basic and diluted earnings B AFE(R A
per share calculation 40,718 231,021
Number of shares
R EE
2023 2022
—EBC-=F — T4
Shares [igvi)
Number of ordinary shares in issue during RUAFTESRER KRBTSR 2 FANE 3%
the year used in the basic and diluted TEEREE
earnings per share calculation 908,663,302 908,663,302

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-

OF-USE ASSETS

12. Y%  BERKEBURCEREEE

2023 2022

—EC-=F —T-—F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

BaE FET FAT

Property, plant and equipment W - BERERE (a) 12,886 6,384
Right-of-use assets FREEE (b) 21,807 23,359
34,693 29,743
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31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment

12. 1% - BERRBURERAEEE

(%)

(@) %% - MEKRE

Land and Furniture,
buildings fittings
Buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(HongKong) ~ HongKong) improvements ~ equipment vehicles machinery Total
BT 1HRET HE G %ER
(%) (BRUME) NEEE  WOERR FE BERES Rt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén Tén Thn T TR TEn
31 March 2023 “ECCEZAST-A
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R=ZB=#=F=1-H
RZFZZEMA-A:
Cost WA 5,409 8,897 8511 821 111 1,163 39973
Accumulated depreciation and ZAHTERAE
impairment (2,077 (7,013) (8,511) (7,483) (7.382) (1,163) (33,589)
Net carrying amount HEFE 3332 1,884 - 789 379 - 6,384
At 1 April 2022, net of acumulated  R=E-—%MWA-A
depreciation and impairment NBEHTERAE 3332 1,884 - 789 379 - 6,384
Additions AE = 8,791 - 114 - - 9,565
Disposal h& - (1,136) - ) - - (1,158)
Depreciation (note 6) & (B3t0) (132) (837) - (339) (134) - (1,442)
Impairment (note 6) (o) - - = 432) = = (#32)
Exchange realignment 5% - (24) - Wl - = (31)
At31 March 2023, net of accumulated W=F==%=F=1-R
depreciation and impairment MR ZERAE 3,200 8,678 - 763 25 - 12,386
At 31 March 2023; RZBZ=£=fA=1-A:
Cost 7 5,409 8,791 8511 5579 7679 1,163 31,132
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (2,209) (113) (8,511) (4,816) (7,434) (1,163) (24,246)
Net carrying amount KR 3,200 8,678 - 763 25 - 12,886
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31 March 2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-

OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
(@) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

12. % BERRBURERAEEE

(%)

(@) W% - BEKRE @

Land and Fumiture,
buildings fittings
Buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(HongKong) ~ HongKong)  improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
BF  HpRET HE & %ER
(BA) (EBMIMR) nExE  BOERE nE ERRES At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ThL ThT T Thr Thn Thr i
31 March 2022 ZECCECAST-H
At 1 April 2021: RZEZ-FMA-A:
Cost s 5409 8,876 8,511 1537 7,759 1,163 39,255
Accumulated depreciation and ARG
impairment (1,945) (6,229 (8,511) (7,344) (6,965) (1,163) (32157)
Net carrying amount EHEE 3,464 2647 - 193 79 - 7,08
At 1 April 2021, net of accumulated  R=F=—FWE-R - 3k
depreciation and impairment ZATERAE 3464 2647 - 193 794 = 7,098
Additions HE - - - 776 - - 776
Disposal of a subsiciary (note 32) HE-FRBAR (132 - - - ) = = 2
Depreciation (note 6) & (Bito) (132 (767) - (168) (412) - (1,479)
Impairment (note 6) /A (B3E0) - - = (10) = - (10)
Exchange realignment B - 4 - - B - 1
At31 March 2022, net of accumulated R=F==%=f=F-8"
depreciation and impairment MR ZERAE 333 1,884 - 789 379 - 6,384
At 31 March 2022: RZE-ZE=f=1-A:
Cost s 5409 8,897 8,511 8,272 7,12 1,163 39,973
Accumulated depreciation and A TERAE
impairment .07 7013 (8511) (7.483) (7.342) (1,163) (33,589)
Net carrying amount EE38 333 1,884 - 789 379 - 6,384
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT- 12.
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

M- BERRBURCERAEEE

(b) EREEE

AEEEREEE Y EESERENS
mF -

Leasehold Motor
land Buildings vehicles Total
gLt BF hrt: &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET THET TET
As at 1 April 2021 N-ZE-_—FMA—H 23,203 76 1,994 25,273
Additions NE - 787 - 787
Depreciation (note 6) & (fizE6) (864) (127) (1,009) (2,000)
Impairment (note 6) A (FffsEe6) = (515) = (515)
Revision of a lease term arising ~ FE A {SEHHZ B EES
from a change in the non- ZHEHEN
cancellable period of a lease - (187) - (187)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, R A - - 1 1
As at 31 March 2022 and RZEZZF=A=+—H
1 April 2022 ;r—Z-—FA—H 22,339 34 986 23,359
Depreciation (note 6) & (fizEe) (864) (34) (654) (1,552)
As at 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=1+—H 21,475 - 332 21,807

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s management identified certain
subsidiaries which continued to sustain losses and estimated
corresponding recoverable amounts of their property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets. Based on these estimates,
impairment losses of HK$432,000 (2022: HK$525,000) were
recognised to write down the carrying amounts of these items
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
their recoverable amounts as at 31 March 2023. The recoverable
amounts were determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
the remaining useful lives of the respective items of property,
plant and equipment and the remaining lease terms of the
respective right-of-use assets.

R-B-=F=A=+—0  AEEHNE
B EH RS T HERSERNHEA R
HETREZME - BE MR E AR E RE
BEMNBEATREESEE - RIEZEME
R-ZBE-=F=A=1+—HBEIAREE
$8432,000/8 7T (ZZ = —4 : 525,000/8
T0)  MMURZ S WE - BB KRB R
FREESEEENERASEESFESHRIIR
&5 - RO BREEREEEE
EBE  ZitER A RBERREZERY
¥ BEEEEBEEMNH T AFERFHRK
FREEENG NMEHNMEREENRS

TR o
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13.

148

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REW=

2023 2022

—EBC-=F —ET 4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FHZRHBEE 136,665 128,085
Additions NE 26,922 -
Changes in fair value of investment properties & ¥E A FBEZ &5 (13,056) 7,415
Disposal k= (24,285) -
Exchange realignment PE 3 AR (1,418) 1,165
Carrying amount at end of year FRZEA®HE 124,828 136,665

The Group's investment properties consist of one residential property
in Hong Kong, four office properties and several serviced apartments
in Mainland China and three office properties (2022: one residential
property) in Singapore. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties consist of three classes of asset, i.e.,
residential properties, office properties and serviced apartments, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment property in Hong Kong was revalued on 31 March 2023
based on a valuation performed by management with reference to
recent market transactions at HK$6,800,000 (2022: HK$7,400,000). The
Group's investment properties in Shenzhen and Chengdu were revalued
on 31 March 2023 based on valuations performed by ValQuest Advisory
(Hong Kong) Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$63,189,000 (2022: HK$$76,366,000) and HK$25,891,000 (2022:
HK$28,329,000), respectively. The Group's investment properties
in Singapore was revalued on 31 March 2023 based on valuation
performed by Century 99 Pte Ltd., independent professionally qualified
valuer, at HK$28,948,000 (2022: HK$24,570,000). Each year, the
Group's chief financial officer decides to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s investment
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's chief financial officer has discussions with the valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuations are
performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
page 196.
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HEEESRAHAMER FETHE  RZF
== A=+—HE{}%46,800,000/4 T (=
T4 : 7,400,000 7T) o A& BRI RAFRT
RKEZ IR EMEMRBILEES ERAELMF
FET (BB BRAG#ETHE RZT==
F=A=1T—HohlEM* 563,189,000 T (=
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T (ZZ = —4 : 28,329,000 7T) ° ANEEAL
RETINSE 2B KB BELE %Aﬁt%mﬁﬁfﬁ
Century 99 Pte Ltd #1T(AE - KT =_=F=
A=+—HE(5/528,948 OOO,%TE(fEZZ
£ :24,570,00087T) - NEBEHFEVBRE
BEREZEZINBGHER - BEHNERZ
FEYEFEITINEEE - TR G RIET S A
BB BUMRETHIZEEIZE - R
FEVEPRETHER AEBBRMER
ER ARG ERM N RAERERGES
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31 March2023 —E=_=F=A=+—H
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REVEw
Fair value hierarchy NEEESHERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINTAEBIKZEME 2 A THEBEAESFR
the Group's investment properties: B
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2023 using
R-B-=F=A=+—-HZ
AFEETERFER
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERM S ERAEE EBEARTAHEE
ZRE BWAE W AE
(£—JB) (B=FE) (=) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value TEEIBZEEMERT
measurement for: BEE :
Residential properties EEME - - 6,800 6,800
Office properties MWAEYZE - - 92,137 92,137
Serviced apartments RIS AE - - 25,891 25,891
- - 124,828 124,828
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2022 using
F_gzzi R=+—HBz
N EEEREA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E R T BAAEBE BEERTAEER
2B EaPN =] BAE
(B—/E) (B=fE) (E=E) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT T FAT FAT
Recurring fair value TR EIEZ EEMRT
measurement for: BEE :
Residential properties FEMH - - 31,970 31,970
Office properties I /NE Y ES - - 76,366 76,366
Serviced apartments 58 SAW/NG:S - - 28,329 28,329
- - 136,665 136,665
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U1 7% R 2% B

F=ZA=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

13.

BEWE @
AV EESRES @

FR - EERE_EATEEAELHLE

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 #@Y% FoENTEEMEAREE(CE ==
(2022: Nil). FE) -
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of PRRATEESAREE=E 2 ATV EE
the fair value hierarchy: SHER :
Residential Office Serviced
properties properties apartments
EEYE WAEYE BREXAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2021 RZZFZ—FMHHA—H
ZARE SRR 28,717 72,633 26,735
Net gains from a fair value adjustment FR4RA Bk NFER 2
recognised in the consolidated N EEFE
statement of profit or loss et 3,199 3,733 483
Exchange realignment bE A% 54 1,111
Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 HR=-ZT-_—#=A=+—H
and 1 April 2022 R=ZFE-—F/MA—H
ZARE SRR 31,970 76,366 28,329
Additions NE - 26,922 =
Net losses from a fair value adjustment R4RA Bz R NIERZ
recognised in the consolidated AP EEARERFRE
statement of profit or loss (600) (12,100) (356)
Disposal & (24,285) = =
Exchange realignment PE 5= (285) 949 (2,082)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2023 R-ZT_=$=H=+—H
ZERE & 6,800 92,137 25,891
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

13. BEVHE @
NI EESEHREE @

TR EIREY R ETHER T ABAER

to the valuation of investment properties: (&R PN
Valuation Significant Value
techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
fh{E i ERFAEERMAE BB (InFEF19)
Residential property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$12,639
in Hong Kong approach (per square foot) (2022: HK$13,780)
N BEZ EEWHE M5t BA R BAERE(FFHFR) 12,639787T

Residential property situated
in Singapore

RIRF N 2 (E W

Office properties situated
in Singapore

RIRFTINE 2 A E) 2

Office properties situated
in Mainland China

RIR B At 2 A=)

Serviced apartments situated
in Mainland China

2P B A 2 IR AR

Under the market comparison approach, the properties are valued on
the market basis assuming sales in their existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based on
prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices of comparable
properties. Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the

Market comparison
approach

MHLLEVE

Market comparison
approach

kz=4 v

Market comparison
approach

TS LLEUE

Market comparison
approach

TS LLEUE

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

R BER (BFIK)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

R BENER (BT TTK)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

AR EMER (BT TTK)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

AR ENER (BT TTK)

differences between such properties in terms of age, time, location,

floor level and other relevant factors.

(ZZE =% : 13,780/ 7T)

N/A
(2022: SGD22,973)

TiE A

(ZZT =% : 22,973 1k IT)

SGD10,652

(2022: N/A)
10,652 I T
(ZZ2=—=F : ~NERA)

RMB55,357
(2022: RMB61,952)
AR#55,3577C

(ZZ==%F : AR%61,9527T)

RMB20,866
(2022: RMB21,141)
AR#20,8667C

(ZZ==F : AR#21,1417T)

REBEWMISLEE  MRETHELEETHE -
“‘EPﬂE"“LAfE/R’*iHj% W 2RI T 5 A
BRZAALBHERRE - LBABRX HE
BzERAAELBMEZMERER - ﬁfﬁ
ETD,J?{’EEEEMW - AEF R R R
E - BEMHEMEERRSEER -

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted unit price would result AR BMEREE L (TR SE3UEE
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment MEATFEERE LF(TK) -

properties.
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31 March2023 —ZE==F=A=+—H

14.

152

LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land,
buildings and motor vehicles used in its operations. Leasehold land has
lease term of 50 years. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
between two and three years, while motor vehicles generally have lease
term of five years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

Details of right-of-use assets are included in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(@) Lease liabilities
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

14. HERHEESS

REEEREBA
AEEREZEERERNSERE L - BF
MREHBRIVEERK - HELHHWHERS
506 - BFNHMBEEME=FZH M
ENEPATRAT - —RM 5 - AEETRF
ERKBEAINEEMBEREEE -

EREEEFBENGEMBRAME12 -

(a) HEEME
HERENRESERFANEEIT

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E- 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
As at 1 April REA—H 1,188 1,645
New leases EE - 787
Accretion of interest recognised FATERRIF]EIG N (PF3E7)
during the year (note 7) 43 78
Payments (N (721) (995)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change F8& “~a] {3 £ £ s &
in the non-cancellable period of a lease EEzBEHEN - (333)
Exchange realignment PE 5 SR (28) 6
As at 31 March R=A=+—~ 482 1,188
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HE 2FHHH -
Current liabilities mEEE 342 698
Non-current liabilities FERBER 140 490
482 1,188
Within one year —FN 342 698
In the second year = 140 426
In the third to fifth years FE=FRF - 64
482 1,188

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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14. LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) The amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss in relation to leases are as follows:

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

14. HERHESEE®

FEBEEREBEA @)
(b) FAENGABRRPEINSEMT :

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 43 78
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEECIE 1,552 2,000
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE - 515
Expense relating to short-term leases RHHEEENASZ GIATTHRER) *
(included in administrative expenses)* (fizE6)
(note 6) 1,584 1,254
Revision of a lease term arising from HETAREREZ S EE 2 HEL
a change in the non-cancellable &2k (f5E6)
period of a lease (note 6) - (146)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERERZ B 3,179 3,701
* Included in “lease payments not included in the measurement of lease e FFARRE R Rt ATHE AR

liabilities” in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting of one
residential property in Hong Kong, four office properties and several
serviced apartments in Mainland China, and three office properties
(2022: one residential property) in Singapore under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was HK$4,537,000 (2022: HK$4,362,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ZAEMAENK]

(00 MEEMBSRBBENGAMERERME
33 R o

AEBERAHBEA
AEERBLEEHELHHBERESN—EE
EVE  RERAMKNEERAETMERST
RERNABEARRTNEH =ERAEE
(ZZ=—F : —HEEDE) WIREDE KiE
13) s HEZBGR—REFKBPLPZHRER -
REBRFAERNEE WA B4,537,0007 70
—Z— —4F : 4,362,00087T) © HFIBEEHREE
RS RARIEES o
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31 March 2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

14. LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 March 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its

. HERHEEEE@®

REBERHEA @

RIT-_=F=ZA=+—H0 ' xX&EREHEA
B AT SR AT J8 8 A 8 T B A R 2R HA R R U A

tenants are as follows: RUWBEEHSFZAT
2023 2022
—EB=HF —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Within one year —FR 3,868 2,981
After one year but within two years iR —FEREAN 1,009 2,774
After two years but within three years HBEMEE=FAN - 886
4,877 6,641
15. GOODWILL 15. B
2023 2022
—E-=HF — T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
At beginning and end of year: FHREFR
Cost (DN 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment RiHRE (32,780) (32,780)
Net carrying amount AR F A = =
Impairment testing of goodwill AR ERH

Goodwill acquired through business combination are allocated to the
cash-generating units of the semiconductor distribution business and
the mobile application development business for impairment testing.

Goodwill was fully impaired in previous years.
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31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HWEFEE
Club Customer Mobile
memberships  Trademarks relationships  application Total
=t [} EFBE FHEAER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR THER THET THET
31 March 2023 —E-=f£=A=+-H
At 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 R-B-_—F=F=+—-H"
and 31 March 2023: T FNA-HEK
“E-=F=fA=1—-H:
Cost A 4,518 87 24,200 9,400 38,205
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2t RRE (1,033) (87) (24,200) (9,400) (34,720)
Net carrying amount HRESHE 3,485 - - - 3,485
31 March 2022 —T-__#=A=1—H
At 1 April 2021: RZZZ-FMA—R :
Cost BA 4514 87 23,998 9,400 37,999
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2B RRE (682) (87) (23,998) (9,400) (34,167)
Net carrying amount HREFE 3,832 - - - 3,832
Cost at 1 April 2021, net of accumulated R-ZT=—FMA— B -
amortisation and impairment MR R ERRE 3,832 = = = 3,832
Amortisation (note 6) B (Histe) (5) - - - (5)
Impairment (note 6) B E (ko) (342) = = = (342)
At 31 March 2022 R-E-—#=A=+—H 3,485 - - - 3,485
At 31 March 2022: R-E-_—F=fA=+—-H:
Cost A 4518 87 24,200 9,400 38,205
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZHEERRE (1,033) (87) (24,200) (9,400) (34,720)
Net carrying amount REFRE 3,485 - - - 3,485

During the year ended 31 March 2022, certain club memberships
were impaired due to the decrease in market value. The directors
had consequently determined to recognise an impairment loss of
HK$342,000 on certain club memberships and their recoverable
amount of HK$728,000 was determined using the fair value less costs
of disposal with reference to the market price quoted for the relevant
club memberships.

REBEE-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HIIFE &F
SEBEDATERRK - EREEROETER
E T eREMREREE342,000/8 T 2 E H A
SEMBFHE FAAFEERELEKRAE
TE i Y] Uy 2] £ §8728,00078 7T ©
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31 March2023 —ZE==F=A=+—H

17.

156

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELEZRE
2023 2022
—E-=F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Share of net assets SMEBEFE 1,277,082 1,214,331
Financial guarantees provided (note 27) BRI ISR (iE27) 77,959 52,032
1,355,041 1,266,363
Particulars of the material joint venture are as follows: BAREEREFBOT
Percentage of
BAL
Place of
incorporation Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name Issued share capital and business interest power sharing  activities
A% BRTRAE MBI REENYE HEEER REE  HEEN  FEEE
AVP Electronics Limited 180,000,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 75 50 75  Trading of electronic
components
REARAH 180,000,0008% i @A% BB BEE T
The above joint venture has a financial year end of 31 December. e E Xz HBRERELEERAT = A
The consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material =t+—H -HGEWBHRERER—A—HE=A
transactions between 1 January and 31 March. =+ —HZEARSELHE -
AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “AVPEL EIREERAGREWNBAG (SEIRELE])
Group”), which are considered a material group of joint ventures of the WRAEREB 2EREGELFEEE - mERE
Group, are accounted for using the equity method. ABR ©
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31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZBE®@
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRINTRIBEEE 2 BERNEE (BEEmE
of AVPEL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies TR Z= Z{EH %) UA R BAR & B S 3Rk A AR
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial H SR8 2 AR
statements:
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEEE 1,095,254 1,151,625
Other current assets HinmEh&EE 5,430,392 7,275,908
Current assets MENEE 6,525,646 8,427,533
Non-current assets SEMBNEE 161,705 158,903
Current liabilities mEBE (4,981,638) (6,965,847)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,937) (1,480)
Net assets attributable to owners of FEIEERAREE AEGEEFE
AVP Electronics Limited 1,702,776 1,619,109
Reconciliation to the Group's interests BREENG SR E R
in the joint ventures:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEEERRELL 75% 75%
Group's share of net assets attributable REESHRBERATHES A
to owners of AVP Electronics Limited EIEEEFE 1,277,082 1,214,331
Financial guarantees provided (note 27) BRI ER (FiE27) 77,959 52,032
Carrying amount of the investments KRERESE 1,355,041 1,266,363
Revenue Wz 19,269,628 26,279,361
Interest income HMBUA 14,202 220
Depreciation e (7,286) (6,602)
Interest expenses FEEH (154,956) (73,233)
Tax I8 (34,720) (76,648)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREMN k2 AL
for the year 165,044 362,837
Dividends paid ERRE 81,375 124,000
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18.

158

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REFE QT 2KRE

2023 2022

—E:-=F T —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Share of net assets DIhEEFE 220 4,530
Goodwill EES 1,878 1,878
Provision for impairment SE B (2,098) (2,098)
- 4,310

One of the associates has a financial year end of 31 December and
the consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions between 1 January and 31 March. All other associates have
a financial year end of 31 March, which is coterminous with that of
the Group. The balances with associates are included in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses
of certain associates because the share of losses of these associates
exceeded the Group's interests in these associates and the Group has
no obligation to take up further losses. The amount of the Group’s
unrecognised share of losses of these associates cumulatively at the end
of the year was HK$5,007,000 (2022: HK$3,505,000).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the

19.

18. REFE N T2 RE @)

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

NRINTFAEBEERI AL EKR 2B AR 2B

Group’s associates that are not individually material: BEREE
2023 2022
—EC=HF &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Share of the associates’ loss for the year DIGEE = QR FREE (4,310) (3,422)
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive SMEEE A B EEBIBEE
loss (4,310) (3,422)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REEREE R R 2R ERAARRE
investments in the associates - 4,310

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

19. %ﬂ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁuﬂEZéEﬂﬁ

2023 2022
—E-=HF B F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P sE FET BT
Listed equity investments TR E 1,562 1,635
Listed bond investments FRESEE (a) 981 1,186
Equity investment traded over-the-counter HINZ AL E (b) 8,890 25,144
Unlisted equity investments I EMRAKE (0 513 420
Key management insurance contracts FEEEABRBRED (d) 26,277 25,482
38,223 53,867

Analysed for reporting purpose as: RMEBNDES
Current assets MENE E 11,946 28,385
Non-current assets FEMENE EE 26,277 25,482
38,223 53,867
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The above listed equity investments, listed bond investments and an
equity investment traded over-the-counter were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

160

The key management insurance contracts were mandatorily classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

The unlisted equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as the Group has not irrevocably elected
to classify the unlisted equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Notes:

(@)

The listed bond investments have coupon rates ranging from 0% to 8.75%
(2022: 8.00% to 8.75%) per annum and maturity dates from 6 March 2023
to 31 January 2031 (2022: 28 September 2022 to 6 March 2023). Included in
the amount was a listed bond of HK$301,000 which was matured on 6 March
2023 and the directors considered that the amount of HK$301,000 could be
recovered.

The Group had equity interest in Tooniplay Co., Ltd. (“Tooniplay”), which
principally engaged in mobile game development business.

The Group has equity interests principally in Urban City Joint Stock Company,
which principally engaged in e-commerce business in Vietnam.

As at 31 March 2023, the key management insurance contracts represented
life insurance plans with investment elements relating to two members of
key management personnel of the Group and the joint venture. The total
sum insured is US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000) (2022:
US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000)) with an annual minimum
guaranteed return of 2%. Certain key management insurance contract of
HK$8,480,000 (2022: HK$8,233,000) was pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contracts,
the accounts value, net of surrender charges of US$307,000 (approximately
HK$2,385,000) (2022: US$324,000 (approximately HK$2,517,000)), would be
refunded to the Group. The amount of the surrender charges decreased over
time and was no longer required from the 19th year of contract conclusion
onwards.
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H12301,0008 T EMERARESRREMRCE
301,000/ 0 A] F U E o

(b) N2 @ Tooniplay Co., Ltd.([Tooniplay ) A& i%
1 ZAREBREREFRIFAEET o

() AAR]EB A Urban City Joint Stock Company
(FEEBBREEFREBER) HRE -

(d) KZYZ_E A=+—H8 FEEEAER
BAENERAEBREGECEMEETEER
AEBBMEEIN ASREBEE - BREEA
15,800,000 7T (47122,800,000/ 1) (2= —
£ : 15,800,000 T (49122,800,000/47T) ) -
FEZERBFERERRE2% R_E_=F=A
=+—H BEFTEZEEABRKE%8,480,000
BT (ZZ = —4 : 8,233,000/ ) B EHHLAES
BRPAEEHN—AIRITRE ©
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31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

20. INVENTORIES 20. F&

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Finished goods BIAK 15,856 44,797

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EWE ZRM
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FAT
Trade receivables EULE Z RN 46,621 53,203
Impairment DERIE] (37,505) (44,604)
9,116 8,599

The Group’s trading terms with customers vary with the type of
products supplied. Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 45 days
of issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to over 60 days. For customer-specific and highly specialised
items, deposits in advance or letters of credit may be required prior
to the acceptance and delivery of the products. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. A credit committee consisting of senior management and
the directors of the Company has been established to review and
approve large customer credits. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBEREPIVZ XS EFETREZER
BRIMAM TR - BRFGEHANEZHEHIZ30
EASKAXN BRI RARBBEZIES
ZRABIAEEEBE0R - B PR hIE
ELRBREMZER  EEMTERINERM
Z R RRNIRE KA ERE - BREP
BREFE LR - AREZAHEREE 2 &
WA B B ARE S I HIEEEE HIBCR -
NEEREEERR - AR zEREERE
NEREKZEEZEGE SR - WEBH R
HEEFPRBREER - X EXAl - ARASE
BrERKESEREARBRZANMCEFE
W Ay ESAEREERR - AKELR
REFERBAEEAERRIEMCEERA
Y - RUE SIRA TR -
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) . EWE SRR @

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is

ENEER R NGREBERE
2 JEM B SRR BRI AATIAT -

R EHER

as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within 1 month 118 A A 8,407 7,814
1 to 2 months 12218 5 318 44
2 to 3 months 2E3EA 5 96
3 to 12 months 3E 121 A 213 327
Over 12 months i@ 1218 A 173 318
9,116 8,599
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade FEWE SRR 2 BBEBIEREZSNAT
receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
At beginning of year F1) 44,604 11,946
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) BB, CREREE) E518 - 558 (fI7E6)
losses, net (note 6) (513) 32,657
Written off i gH (6,586) =
Exchange realignment bE A% - 1
At end of year FR 37,505 44,604
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a &S B EE AR EEEETREDNT - A
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates FTETEHEEEE  c BEXDEREFEUS

are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating). The BEEFPREMFTR)
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of e
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at RBEEH
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts BERAITIFER o
of future economic conditions.
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e RS ERAR MR

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

For trade receivables relating to accounts which are long overdue
with significant amounts with known insolvencies or non-response
to collection activities, they are assessed individually for impairment

allowance as follows.

31 March 2023 —ZE ==

21. BE”QE 2 E‘E/TA(»E

F=A=+—H

SEBMD A S BEREALCAEN Eﬁ%ﬁiﬂ@
EEHBYEE 2 RE AR EKE
BB ERENT -

Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss Carrying
rate amount allowance amount
RHEE
g FREAAE it e IRESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT T
As at 31 March 2023 R-FB-_=F=H=+—H
Credit impaired ZERIE 100% 37,245 37,245 -
As at 31 March 2022 RZZEZ=_F=HA=+—H
Credit impaired EERE 98.93% 44,382 43,906 476

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

TRENERBBEESTNERAREERE

Group’s non-credit impaired trade receivables using a provision matrix: ERERNEKE SERNEERREER
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=F=HA=+—H
Past due
B
Less than 1to3 3to0 12 Over
Current 1 month months months 12 months Total
WE  SR-ER -—-Z=@A =E+=fEA +t=EANL &
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE 0.00% 0.57% 4.88% 5.25% 57.11% 2.77%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(TET) 7,826 701 M 400 408 9,376
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) ?EﬁﬁfaEEﬂE(?/ﬁﬁ) - 4 2 21 233 260
As at 31 March 2022 RZZEZ—F=H=+—H
Past due
Less than 1t03 31012 Over
Current 1 month months months 12 months Total
e PR—ER —Z=7 =2+=fA +=EANUE B3
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEERE 0.04% 18.00% 34.72% 44.81% 63.96% 7.91%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(TET) 7,335 100 193 799 394 8,821
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) %Eﬁma,%ﬁ%%a(?/%ﬁ) 3 18 67 358 252 698
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22.

164

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

22. FERIE

s RERHEERRRIR

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Prepayments TEfFRIA 1,899 979
Deposits e 12,748 21,013
Other receivables HAb R GRIE 47,627 23,777
62,274 45,769
Provision for impairment of other receivables HAb EWGRIE R E R (11,298) (364)
50,976 45,405

Portion classified as non-current: DERIERE 2D -
Prepayments and deposits FENRERES (2,714) (20,777)
Current portion ENED D 48,262 24,628

Included in the balances of other receivables as at 31 March 2023
were (i) a loan to an associate, net of provision for impairment, of
HK$11,441,000 (2022: HK$19,061,000) which is unsecured, interest-
bearing at 5.0% per annum and repayable within one year (2022:
within two years), (i) amounts due from associates, net of provision
for impairment of HK$4,822,000 (2022: HK$2,763,000) which are
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand, and (iii)
loan to an independent third party of HK$18,249,000 (2022: Nil)
which is secured by personal guarantee by the independent third party,
interest-bearing at 12.0% per annum and repayable within one year.

An impairment analysis is performed as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 by
considering the probability of default of comparable corporate bonds
with published credit ratings. As at 31 March 2023, the probability of
default applied was 70.0% (2022: 3.0%) and the loss given default
was estimated to be 61.5% (2022: 61.5%). The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 March 2023, the loss allowance
for loan to an associate and amounts due from associates is assessed to
be HK$7,984,000 (2022: HK$364,000) and HK$3,314,000 (2022: Nil),
respectively.

Deposits and other receivables excluding the loan to an associate and
the amounts due from associates mainly represent rental deposits,
loan to an independent third party and deposits with suppliers. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The Group assessed the loss allowance for deposits and other
receivables of HK$32,814,000 (2022: HK$22,602,000), for which
there was no recent history of default or past due amounts, under the
application of HKFRS 9 was insignificant.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of deposits and other
receivables are as follows:

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

22. ANRIE - e R EMEWFEIE

(&)

B MAMRKFIRZBEREBREEIOT

2023 2022

—E-=fF —ECofF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At beginning of the year F4) 364 4,946
Impairment loss (note 6) BB g8 (Fff7E6) 10,934 364
Written off e = (4,946)
At end of the year FR 11,298 364

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
DEPOSITS

23. e RERBREHEA REBRFER

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E -4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTET 120,352 151,309
Deposits with other financial institutions RE A TS 2 173K 1,019 919
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERHEEER 121,371 152,228

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$2,986,000 (2022: HK$29,680,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short

term time deposit rates. The balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks and other financial institutions with no recent history of default.

RBEHRELERE AEBUARE(TAR
) EHEZ IR & RIRTT4ETF4)/A2,986,000/8 7T
(ZZ——4 :29,680,00087T) > AR
BREBAHMER - A - REFEAREZ
INEBEBIEOIRGEE  SERMEEEHRE
INER B 0] R R TTIMNE 275 2 SRIT A
RELGAEMER

FHRRBITZRESRBRITZERFERNE
T B R EREUH S - BEIE BT RN F—H
EZ@AATE  DRIAEEZAKEEFH
RME @ WIRE B 25 8 877 508 % FREF
B BEDEBINMEERFZRIT RO Y &
HRFE 2 B S RHE -
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24.

166

TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

24,

J{Eﬁ%’i%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ - BERRERESE

2023 2022

—E:-=F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET Tt

Trade payables FERTE SRR 5,708 4,277
Deposits received Blizs 1,260 1,320
Accrued expenses EETER 15,886 18,251
22,854 23,848

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

RENHRIME  REESHEREZENES

period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: R BRER D ATIAT
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Trade payables: FERTE SRR

Current BNHA 3,780 2,587
1 to 30 days 1230H 39 26
31 to 60 days 31260H 2 7
Over 60 days HBiB6e0H 1,887 1,657
5,708 4,277

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled

between 30 and 90 days.
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EHEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Short-term advances received from customers T = R B3 E
Sale of products HEEMR 3,387 20,559
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver AHBERREARM BRI EBREMME
semiconductor and consumer products. At 1 April 2021, contract WEPHREHHIE R =—FNHA—A8 -
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$36,410,000. The decrease in AHAEHA36,410,00087T ° —E-=FK
contract liabilities in 2023 and 2022 was mainly due to the decrease in —ECFHENEERD T EZHRERS
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the sale of SHEEMEIE P REHRIER D o
products at the end of the year.
INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26. MISSRITIER
2023 2022
- —E-C
Effective Effective
annual annual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
ERFAZ Z#A TEn EBRERE o if] T
Current
Import and trust receipt loan - unsecured N EER 6.09% -
1.23% 2023 19,618 1.85% 2022 6,435
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable within one year or on —FANIREREE
demand ZRITER 19,618 6,435

All the Group's bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates and
denominated in United States dollars at the end of the reporting period.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings

approximate to their fair values.

REB 2 FrA RITERIR SR E HRAZEF
R BUMARITAHE - AKBZH B RITERK
ZEHSREERE AN FEERS -
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27.

168

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION

During the year, the Group has provided financial guarantees to joint
ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted to these joint
ventures, and the Group will make payments to reimburse the lenders
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments when due. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
the guarantees.

The Group does not provide financial guarantees except for limited
circumstances. All guarantees are approved by the Board of Directors.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the
ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holders (i.e. the banks) for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the debtor (i.e. the joint ventures). The amount initially recognised
representing the fair value at initial recognition of the financial
guarantees was based on the valuation from an independent valuer
engaged by the Group. The method used in determining the fair value
of these guarantees was by reference to the recovery rate and key
financial ratio of the guaranteed entity.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contracts is classified as
stage 1. During the year, there were no transfers between stages.

AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 %3k

27.

MBEREE

FA - AKERSELXERZBITEREE
AZEREEREHRVBER  HIXERZE
BEIHSREES  AKESRAESENE
Ko AEBEL AR FERTEEMER @K
HARIEE G -

BRERIERIN - REBETREMBER - A
BREODESESSHAE -

MBEREQTDREREEE R BRI THE
REBRMCERBAZRFEBUBREES
B)itE -  BHEERREBRBNRASERZ
fErat & - EDRBMHER A A CVRTT) BLAT
EAEEBREZEMFIE - BEREEETES
HEBABIGELR) W2 EREHETE -
NF RS BRI ERMBRRE 2 QX FE
B DIREAKBERGE B GEMHEE
E - ARETHERRAFEEZTENZE
XERERB KK R EZMIFLLREL -

IERERENZEERBESREE M - F
A - B AR AR -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

EEBBRRE
Py EERBREZZBNT

Revaluation

of properties

YEEFHE

HK$'000

FATT

At 1 April 2021 RZZE-_—FMHA—H 14,366
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FAHRBiFEERERL

statement of profit or loss during the year EIEFIE (F13E9)

(note 9) 210
Exchange realignment P& 5 FE % (1)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 KRB —F=A=+—HK

—T-_FMA—H 14,575
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FENHRBEFEERERZ

statement of profit or loss during the year RIERIE (FHEE9)

(note 9) (169)
Exchange realignment bE A% 6
At 31 March 2023 N-E-_=%=H=+—H 14,412

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong and Singapore
of approximately HK$726,643,000 (2022: HK$638,534,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised
tax losses arising elsewhere of approximately HK$14,922,000 (2022:
HK$22,616,000) that will expire during 2023 to 2028 (2022: 2022 to
2027) for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
in respect of these losses have not been recognised as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and, in the
opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

REBREE R EE 2 G5 HEBEL
726,643,000/ 7T (ZF = — 4 : 638,534,000/
fc) - AIAERR HR AR R SHERAS BB 2 A R Z R 2R

JERBLE A o AREE I E b 5 E 4 2 R
uui‘RlﬁEﬂai’]ﬁM 922,000/ (=% ::¢ :
22,616 ooo/%n) BRZZEZ=FFE=F=)\
E(_v I :?:: i_z_tfﬁ)éu

Eﬂ,@! kaﬁIEé“F I?%EE?@T&EEE%?
SEE-—REEHZMBARIEL  BERY A
RASIG A BER TE R 2 AR SR AR Tt A DA (LK 35
BIARE °
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28.

29.

170

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2023, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2022: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the Group's subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

28.

EXEBEE S @
BEFECLFEFE  RANRREESE
5 8 7 R B PR ST 7 SN B 1 3 7 Bk B KL
10%BHH - BEARTE TS \F—F—H
BN WEAR-_ETtE+-A=+—H
BETEE 2 B o i eR B PO BNED IR B BT
BAEER DT ARBHE - AAIRRIER
B REH - RAEETS - EARKR A%
10% o Bt - A= EAR R B R AL S
THEHBARNA -—ST/\F—A—AEE
7 BFSR 2 RS ENTEIR -

R-BE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H  RAEBEZKE
NE] - BERARRAELERE LB Z BN
REmM:  TESEAABRECHBEAECE
ToF ) o

AR A & A A H AR EOR A AR B 0 2 A A AR
Bt o

SHARE CAPITAL 29. BBA
Shares 8l
2023 2022
—E-=HF S =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Authorised: VETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,000f% FAXEIE
of HK$0.10 each 0.108 7T 2 EilAx 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
908,663,302 ordinary shares 908,663,302 FAREE
of HK$0.10 each 0.1087T 2 EiBhk 90,866 90,866

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and the
subsidiaries and the share options issued under these schemes are
included in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “AV Scheme"”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the AV Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, other employees
of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support to the Group, any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries, any advisor or consultant to any area of
business or business development to the Group and any other group or
class of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangements to the
Group. The AV Scheme became effective on 3 August 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date. The AV Scheme was expired in the current year.

The maximum number of unexercised share options permitted to be
granted under the AV Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 30% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at
any time. The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the AV Scheme
(excluding any which have lapsed) and any other schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of the adoption of the AV
Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the AV Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

0. fBAAERT &

RRBERN 2 B AERT 8
AABRL—HBEEETE (TAVETE)) - §#
AHEAKE KL ERHERMZABRS R
ERUEBHROR - AVETEI 2 5 ERBEE
BREAARER(BEBILIIENTES) AE
BHEMESR - RAKERME IR 2 HE
& ARETER  ARKERHENRT - FEN
BRI EMALHERE - NABNBE A
Z AR s - NEBEM R R RE
BERRZBHEXEAARBRBEELE  £H
B B s B RS R B A SR B B AR S AT BE AR L
BRNEMEMARIKERINSEAL - AVET
ERZZE——FNA=ZBER - RIFWEUHK
Ea] - BRIHRNZ BT 10FRER - AVEtE
AN E & o

R EFRIBAVET 8 L 2 M R TE R IR 1T
FERARBZRNEE L2 TEBAESZR
AR R EMEREZBEITERKR Z30% 25
FE o IRIBAVETEI AR D BHEMIEAL R 211 F 1%
2 B BB (R BRI E RuE) EiTE
RA] FRIT 2 EBREE - X TBBBAR
AIRRMAVETE| B HIE 31T E @A 210% ° AV
SrElz BRAERSBEN TN+ @A HE
RTERERER AT ERIT 2 R RNEE @ &
R DB AEAREZEBITRG Z21% © {4
E— SR EBRZREE 2 BIRE - BIZERKRR
RE EESR RS ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company (continued)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer. Further details of the
expired AV scheme were included in the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no outstanding
share options and no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the AV Scheme (2022: Nil).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Company had no outstanding share options under the AV Scheme.

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries

On 5 August 2013, 830 Lab Limited (the “830 Lab"”) adopted a share
option scheme (the “830 Lab Scheme”). Under the 830 Lab Scheme,
830 Lab may grant options to any of its full-time employees and
directors and any eligible persons as defined therein to subscribe for the
respective ordinary shares of 830 Lab.

On 1 February 2021, Whizoo Media Limited (the “Whizoo Media")
adopted a share option scheme (the “Whizoo Media Scheme”). Under
the Whizoo Media Scheme, Whizoo Media may grant options to any of
its full-time employees and directors and any eligible persons as defined
therein to subscribe for the respective ordinary shares of Whizoo Media.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued)

830 Lab Scheme

The following share options were outstanding under the 830 Lab

30. BRESTE @

B B X RIER AN 2 B AR R R 8 ()

830 Labzt &l

FA > 71830 Labar &I NARITHE 2 BAELD

Scheme during the year: T
Number of share options
BREYR
Exercise Exercise
At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price of
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share share
of participant 222 the year the year the year the year the year 223 share options options options
SRENL e 3 RZBz=f B BhE  BRE
Bl BA-B  REARE  RERZN REAEGRE  REAEE  WNERER ZA=t-H RiAH LT i@
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(BREEERMA) BRET
Director of 830 Lab and
the Company
830 LabR AR T2 ES
So Chi Sun Sunnyand total 220,000 - - - - - 220,000 5August 2013 6 September 2015 80
HRARAT “E-=F/\ARA 105 August 2023
ZZ-RENAA
ES
“E-=E)\AA

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the

Miat: BREZEBEDARE BHETESMNRZH

commencement of the exercise period. fa] °
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
AR EE BREHE IETIHTEE BRERE
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T BT T

per share per share

S SR
At beginning and end of year FEYIRER 8.0 220 8.0 235
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued)
830 Lab Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, 15,000 share options were
lapsed and non-controlling interests of HK$645,000 were transferred to
retained profits accordingly.

The fair value of the share options granted during prior years was
HK$12,453,000, which was fully recognised by the Group in prior years
since all share options granted had been vested during prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, 830 Lab had 220,000 share options
outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
830 Lab, result in the issue of 220,000 additional ordinary shares of 830
Lab and additional share capital of 830 Lab of HK$1,760,000 (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, 830
Lab had 220,000 share options outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme,
which represented approximately 31.0% of 830 Lab'’s shares in issue as
at that date.

Whizoo Media Scheme
The following share options were outstanding under the Whizoo Media
Scheme during the year:

30.

B E B @

B B HR AN 2 BB B RE ST B ()

830 Labst &/ ()
HE-ZT-_—_F=HA=+—HIFE ' 15,000
DB PRAE B L2 2 645,000 7T 2 FEHE AR HE 25 4E
fEBEREREB R T o

RATFERLEZEREZAFTEEAR
12,453,000/ 7T * AR ZEE R LHBREE R
RAEFERE  ALANEERBEFEREE
REBAFEE-

R R BARS A5 SR A - 830 Lab/830 LabitEI1E
T2 WARTTEREARES B £220,000173 © £830
LabIRBs Z BRANZEME T ABEATE M ARITHEZIE
P& 8 75 38 B JEEB HNEE 17 220,0000% 830 Lab i i@
f% - WEEL 1,760,000/ 70,2830 LabRESNE A
(BRFATFAZAD o

RHEZSHRETBEHREER » 830 Labi
830 LabsrEIE T 2 MARITHEERESE A
220,00017  HBER830 Lab % B B 31T
4931.0%

Whizoo Mediazt £l
FR - RAWhizoo Mediast 2|18 N ARTTE 2 B
W

Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise Exercise
At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price of
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share share
of participant 2022 the year the year the year the year the year 2023 share options options options
SaEMA RZBZZF R=B-=f B iR BiREL
&N BA-B  RERRE  RERXN RERERE  REAEE  RERER ZA=t-B RiAH i k8
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(BREERA) BRET
Employees of Whizoo 100 - (100 - - - - 1February2021 2 February 2023 121.66
Media and total to 1 February 2031
Whizoo Media B8 ZBC-HCf-R ZEC=ECACH
At )
ZF=-%-f-A

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. ARSI )
Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued) Bt B A Bl ER AR 2 B AR RE 5T 21 (3)
Whizoo Media Scheme (continued) Whizoo Mediazt &/ ()
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IREF 1T EE BREHE RETE9TEE BERES A
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
per share per share
B Tk
At beginning of year F1) 121.66 0.1 121.66 0.3
Lapsed during the year FRRM 121.66 (0.1) 121.66 0.2)
At end of year R N/A - 121.66 0.1
TiE F
In the prior year, the fair value of the share options granted was MESF - Rz BREZ A FEER22,0008
HK$22,000 (HK$74.6 each), of which the Group recognised non- T (Fn74.687L) ERAEEREFHERIE
controlling interests of HK$2,000 in the prior year. TR HEER 2,000 7T ©
During the year, 100 share options (2022: 200 share options) were FRN 1000 ERE(CTE__F : 20000 BK
lapsed during the year and non-controlling interests of HK$4,000 (2022: ) BRERRR - FEENREZ4,0008 T (ZF
HK$1,000) were transferred to retained profits accordingly. T4 ¢ 1,000/7T) EABFEE R = (RE E A ©
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the BMEE R ERENHMFEAARTEEZ
measurement of fair value. STEA o
At the end of the reporting period and the date of approval of these PR S HA M 45 TR R AL 2 S hn & BT TS SR
consolidated financial statements, Whizoo Media had no share options & H ° Whizoo Mediai®Whizoo MediaztZ|7E
(2022: 100 share options) outstanding under Whizoo Media Scheme. BEEEARITEBERE(CTE_—F : 100158
) o
31. RESERVES 31. %

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 93 to 94 of the consolidated financial
statements.

AEEAEERBEFE RESERANE
B2IRGANBREEIEEHME A
EREDE -
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32.
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DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 32. HE—REMNEQF
In the prior year, the Group disposed a subsidiary and the net liabilities REF  AEEHE—HRBARIRNREER
at the date of disposal were as follow: HBEFENAT
2022
—EB-CHF
HK$°000
FTHET
Net liabilities disposed of: BHEFAE
Property, plant and equipment (note 12) W - BB Rk (HTEE12) 2
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRREER 546
Inventories FE 293
Trade receivables U F AR 684
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE - Be REAEWGRIE 248
Trade payables, deposits received and accrued BB ZER  BEldRe REFTER
expenses (3,029)
(1,256)
Fair value of investment retained upon disposal HERFTREBIRE 2 A THEE -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) & —RNEB ARz ks (FisEe) 1,256

Satisfied by cash

AR & 41

* This item was with amount less than a thousand.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the disposal of a subsidiary was as follows.

* BB 2BEIR—T °

FRLE—RHNBRARNAERERREEAR
ZREFESAT

2022
—EB-CHF
HK$°000
FHET
Cash and bank balances disposed of and EHERS RRITETUR
net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FRALE—RNBARNRE R
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ZRIRLIER 2w EFEE (546)
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  33.
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@  During the year, the increase in investments in joint ventures
amounting to HK$25,927,000 (2022: the decrease in investments
in joint ventures amounting to HK$21,614,000) was attributable
to the recognition of financial guarantee obligation of
HK$134,996,000 (2022: HK$79,927,000) and the derecognition
of financial guarantee obligation of HK$109,069,000 (2022:
HK$101,541,000).

(b)  In the prior year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$787,000 and HK$787,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings.

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

RERTREBRMWEE

FEFRERS

(a)

(b)

RERN REELEZREEMN
25,927,0008 L (ZE==F : REED
EZIRERA21,614,00087T) © JTHER
MR RS YERE £134,996,0008 7T (=
T —4F 79,927,000 7T) AR I FE
R IEYERE 109,069,000 T (==
— T4 : 101,541,000 7T) FTEL

REF  AREREFHEZHOER
REERMERENIRSARED A
787,000/8 7T 52 787,000/ 7T ©

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities RMETEMELEZEEES
2023 —EBEC-=F

Interest-bearing Lease
bank borrowings liabilities
MESSRITIER HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FTEx
At 1 April 2022 M-T-—FmA—A 6,435 1,188
Changes from financing cash flows MEBRSRELE 12,614 (678)
Interest expense B 418 43
Interest paid classified as financing cash flows DERBERSREZENFE (418) (43)
Exchange realignment P& 5 R 569 (28)
At 31 March 2023 KRB =4=H=+—H 19,618 482
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

34.

178 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 3

CASH FLOWS (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(continued)

33. MEHERERMT @

MEFBRELE2AEEE @

2022 T —F
Interest-bearing Lease
bank borrowings liabilities
KT EERITIERK HEaE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-——FmA—8 - 1,645
Changes from financing cash flows REREREL 6,424 917)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change in the ~ SN A HE IR EE E £ 2 EHEN
non-cancellable period of a lease - (333)
New leases HHE = 787
Interest expense MBAX 9 78
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows HERTEREREZENTIE = (1)
Interest paid classified as financing cash flows HEARERSREZENFIE ) (37)
Exchange realignment b AR 11 6
At 31 March 2022 R=FE—_—f5=H=+—H 6,435 1,188
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement SAGERERERCHER @ REHAEN
of cash flows is as follows: K
2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within operating activities AL EE) 1,584 1,295
Within financing activities T ABE RS 721 954
2,305 2,249
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES FAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided RS R A RE - RS MR ARER
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: HZHABREOT :
2023 2022
—EB-=F — T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Guarantees given to banks in connection with ~ BLIR TAEEEZEEIRET
facilities granted to joint ventures RITZ AR 4,874,729 5,548,815
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

35.

As at 31 March 2023, the bank lending facilities granted to joint
ventures subject to cross-guarantees given to the banks by the Group
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$4,874,729,000
(2022: HK$5,548,815,000). For the financial guarantees provided to
joint ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted, the
Group has recognised the financial guarantee obligation amounting to
HK$77,959,000 (2022: HK$52,032,000) as a liability as at 31 March
2023 which was disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

34. HABBE @

35.

RZZE_=F=A=+—0  A5EHAED
EREEZBRTERGEERERBERTERT
B A44,874,729,000/8 T (Z 2= =4 :
5 548,815,000%7T) - {IN e &S BEER 2
RITEREEMREZHBER  A5EE
Eéfg::izﬂ :‘f’_ H H%ET%%1%§T$
77,959,000/ 7T (=& = =4 : 52,032,000%

TOERRAE - BN M ERRME27H
R o

BREALRS
() BESEAMBHREAGBHFLZ XS
5+ AR FREBRHEALHET T I

material transactions with related parties during the year: TERRZS :
2023 2022
—E-=5F T F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(s FExT FAT
Joint venture: HEMEE
Dividend income & 2 WA (i) 61,189 93,240
Associates: /NGl
Sale of products iﬁ%@uu (i) 15,697 6,962
Purchase of products BEEm (i) 6,098 737
Service expenses AR5 % A (iii) - 140
Commission expenses He&H (iii) 3,355 =
Interest income FEUA (iv) 658 =
Notes: Bt

(i) The dividends declared by the joint venture of the Group were for the
interim dividends for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June
2021 and the year-end dividends for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021.

(i) The sale to and purchase from associates were made at prices and terms
mutually agreed between the parties.

(iii) The service expenses and commission expenses paid to an associate
were made at prices and terms mutually agreed between the parties.

(iv) Interest income from a loan to an associate is charged at 5% per
annum.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

The Group’s key management personnel are the Executive
Directors of the Company, and further details of their
emoluments are included in note 8(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

180

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023
Financial assets

36.

TMIAZDE

BHERI M T AR RS MEAERK ZBRm SR

T

—E-=
ERMEE

73

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

EBRBREATER
JIRz S RMERE
Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial  Mandatorily amortised
recognition designated cost Total
R RE AT R
BRI T BHEEE ZEMEE &t
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
Bz FTET TET TET TET
Trade receivables [EWE SRR 21 - - 9,116 9,116
Financial assets included in STABRFIE - ek
prepayments, deposits and Hinf s IEz A E
other receivables 22 - - 49,077 49,077
Financial assets at fair value FBBEREATEREYER
through profit or loss LEREE 19 513 37,710 - 38,223
Cash and bank balances Be RiRITHET 23 - - 120,352 120,352
Deposits with other financial REf & RIS 2 73K
institutions 23 - - 1,019 1,019
513 37,710 179,564 217,787
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RS AT AR
ZEmas
Notes HK$'000
BiaE FTHET
Trade payables FERRTE SRR 24 5,708
Deposits received BiizE 24 1,260
Financial liabilities included in accrued expenses st AfEzT BRI SR AE 24 11,281
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 482
Interest-bearing bank borrowings BT S ERITIE K 26 19,618
Financial guarantee obligation ISR E 27 77,959
116,308
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(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

2022
Financial assets

36. €M IAZSD

BRI AR RS MHEERK ZRm SR

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

EBRBREATERE
JIRzSRERE
Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial  Mandatorily amortised
recognition designated cost Total
Wi BB R AR
BREEE BHIEE ZEMEE &3t
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE TEx TER TER TER
Trade receivables [EWE R 21 - - 8,599 8,599
Financial assets included in SIABRRIE - Be Rk
prepayments, deposits and Hi W IEz £ BEE
other receivables 22 - - 44,426 44,426
Financial assets at fair value FBBREATEEER
through profit or loss ZEREE 19 420 53,447 - 53,867
Cash and bank balances Be RiRITER 23 - - 151,309 151,309
Deposits with other financial REH & RIS 2 73K
institutions 23 - - 919 919
420 53,447 205,253 259,120
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R A A5 BR
ZeMAE
Notes HK$'000
FiaE FET
Trade payables B SRR 24 4,277
Deposits received BizE 24 1,320
Financial liabilities included in accrued expenses st AJEst &AM L RIE(E 24 10,401
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 1,188
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt S ERTTHE K 26 6,435
Financial guarantee obligation WIEEEREE 27 52,032
75,653
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37.

182

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’ s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

7. ERMITEAFEERAFEEER

R
AEESHTA(RASERATEEA DI
EERIN 2 RECHERATEENT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
IRE©EE AFEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=EFE —To—F CZEBZ=Hf —_ZT-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value FRBEmIE AT EBSEZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 38,223 53,867 38,223 53,867
Non-current deposits EmBIRE 2,714 20,777 2,714 20,777
40,937 74,644 40,937 74,644

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (other than non-current deposits), trade
payables, deposits received, financial liabilities included in accrued
expenses, interest-bearing bank borrowings and financial guarantee
obligation approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The fair values of listed equity and bond investments, an equity
investment traded over-the-counter measured as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices.
The fair values of unlisted equity investments measured as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss have been estimated with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as income
approach by discounted cash flows method or issued prices of recent
transactions. The fair values of key management insurance contracts
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are based
on the account values less surrender charges, quoted by the vendors.
The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

37.
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

184

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as

37. ST ARNFEERAFEESER

ZRiEm

SRTAGFER - _=ZFR-_T_—F=A
=t+—HZEATABERH AEER TS 5K

at 31 March 2023 and 2022: EAMmAT
Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input  Value Sensitivity of fair value to input
fhER EXTUBEEAE  HE ATEEHRAEZRE
Unlisted equity investments Income approach Discount rate 16% 5% increase (decrease) in the discount rate would
classified as financial assets at WA 8RR = (2022: 17%) result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
fair value through profit or loss 16% HK$8,000 (2022: HK$8,000)
¥ ITRARE - HRRERER (C2ZZF:17%)  BREEA(TR)S%HERATEETR(EA)
BRATEEIIRz eHEE 8,000 (ZE =24 : 8,0007T)
Key management insurance N/A Account values HK$28,664,000 5% increase (decrease) in account values would
contracts lassified as financial & EFEE (2022: HK$27,999,000)  resultin increase (decrease) in fair value by
assets at fair value through profit 28,664,000/ 7T HK$1,433,000 (2022: HK$1,400,000)
or loss (ZB-—&: REEELA (TH) 5% SR ATEE LA (TH)
TEERABRREH  HERE 27,999,000%75) 1,433,000 7 (ZE == : 1,400,000 77)
BREEEATEER eRE
E Surrender charges HK$$2,387,000 5% increase (decrease) in surrender charges would
RRER (2022: HK$2,517,000) result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
2,387,000 HK$119,000 (2022: HK$126,000)
(CB-_—%: RRER LA (TH) 5% BERATEE Tk (EA)
2,517,000%7T) 119,007 (ZE =24 : 126, 000%7T)
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. ERMTEAFEERATEESH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) £ 1C )

Fair value hierarchy NEEESHERE

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINTAEBREECHTARAFEEZEZER
the Group’s financial instruments: B

Assets measured at fair value: BRAFEETEZEE

As at 31 March 2023: R-E-=F=ZF=1+—-H:

Fair value measurement using

FEAPEERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
ERmE EATHE EAFAHE
ZRE BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(-8 (B=8) (=8 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET TET TET FTHET
Financial assets at fair value through & BBz A FEETIR
profit or loss LEMEE 11,433 - 26,790 38,223
As at 31 March 2022: R—E——F=fH=+—H :

Fair value measurement using

STEATEAERKER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

R EATER BATITEHR

ZRIE BAE BAR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E—@) (F=E) (F=E) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET

Financial assets at fair value through  EBERIZATEETER

profit or loss ZEREBE 27,965 - 25,902 53,867
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37.

186

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

37. EMTAAFEERAFEESR
g @
NP EESEREE @
BRAVEEHEZEE | (@)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the FAN - BZERATFEEFTEZEZHAT -
year are as follows:
2023 2022
—EBC-=F —E__4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
At beginning of year F1) 25,902 27,923
Total gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss RIBzERER 2 W2k~ (B18) 4% 888 (2,021)
At end of year FR 26,790 25,902
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as RZE_=F=A=+—HRZZE__F=A8

at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

=t—R AEEHREEMRATEEFEZ
ERAE -

FR - E—ERF_EATEEAE2HLE

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 @iz BEEASBRE =g (T —F :
(2022: Nil). /") -
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: BEATEEZEE !
As at 31 March 2023: R-E-_=F=F=+—H:
Fair value measurement using
STEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SEERT 5 EAUBE EAXTAHR
ZHE BARE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—F) (=) (E=RB) &5t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TExT THER THEx TExT
Non-current deposits FnEESE - - 2,714 2,714
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

As at 31 March 2022:

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

37. SRMTARAFEERAFEESFR

RE@®
NP EESEHREE @
WEATEEZEE : (@)

R-E-——F=H=+—f :

Fair value measurement using

STERAFEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR EATER EATITEHR
2B BAE BAR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—@) (F=B) (E=FE) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TAT TAET
Non-current deposits FnEEE - - 20,777 20,777
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MBEMREREBERBX

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, lease liabilities, cash and bank balances and deposits
with other financial institutions. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group
is also exposed to market price risk in respect of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market price risk. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because its business
is principally conducted in Hong Kong and most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. Since the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

188

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group'’s credit policy, which is mainly based
on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification at the end
of the reporting period. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the

financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 March 2023

38. MIEEMEEHEZRBEK@®

=& R @
R R K F KRB

TRIRAAEEEEBRRSEENEEE R
AR FrEENSREERR  ZEEBREE
EZ BB E R (BARABZ KA HEIRS
ZEMERRIN RBEMRNOFERERDE -
EfleBrRemEEC RAASBRMBE

RENHBEZEERR

R-ZT-_=fF=A=+-—H

12-month
ECLs
12 R Lifetime ECLs
FEFE 2HEBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
1] B Ex2 BEER3 b it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAR TEx FEx TEx
Trade receivables* FEUE 5 8RR+ - - - 46,621 46,621
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ RIBRFUE « & REMEK
deposits and other receivables HIEAFE SREE
- Normal** = e 60,375 - - - 60,375
Cash and bank balances Be RifThF
— Not yet past due — AR 120,352 - - - 120,352
Deposits with other financial institutions ~ FAHEHi% Rt 2 173
— Not yet past due — AR 1,019 - - - 1,019
Guarantees given to banks in connection ~ BERFALLEZEERET
with facilities granted to joint ventures RITZ R
— Not yet past due (note 34) — MRS (FE34) 4,874,729 - - - 4,874,729
5,056,475 - - 46,621 5,103,096
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2022

Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

8. HRREEEEREE®

&R @
RAEBR R F R R (D)

R-—ZE-_—_F#=A=+—H

12-month
ECLs
12 (A A Lifetime ECLs
FEER 2HRNEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEER1 PEEz2 REE3 07 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET THET TET THT
Trade receivables* EE 5T~ - - - 53,203 53,203
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ RIEIFUE « & REMEK
deposits and other receivables HERFE SREE
- Normal** =MEEw 44,790 - - - 44,790
Cash and bank balances B RFTETR
— Not yet past due — AR 151,309 - - - 151,309
Deposits with other financial institutions A A% RitE 2 73
— Not yet past due — AR 919 - - - 919
Guarantees given to banks in connection ~ BERFALLE ZEERET
with facilities granted to joint ventures RIT2ER
— Not yet past due (note 34) — WA B (Ff1E34) 5,548,815 - - - 5548815
5,745,833 - - 53203  5799,036
e For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for 3 AEBBREYL RN E S RREBBE - A

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements.

x* The credit quality of these financial assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R R EENE R BN GRS M B |RME
21°

> ZESREAENEREERNEREHERERIE
B BEEHRASREESVSHERENEE
REBAEEANEM - B8 REENEEERR
BARIRER] -

BRASEREKE ZRSK M ER 2 EERR

ZHE—FFEEDTTBURTIN R A TSR M i
2195 -
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38.

190

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and credit lines to meet
its liquidity requirements. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated from
operations and bank borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:

38.

B EREE B ZRBER @)

REE T E

AEENBEERARRASRMEEREE - B
RERBESTR - AREEBGEAKEEL
MESHERTERSEEEESRTRENE

AEEz BB ERREREGERFERITOR
BN BIHAERAT

2023
—EC-=F
More than
Within 1 year but
1 year or less than
on demand 2 years Total
—FR —F
REREE BORME a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEx FHET
Trade payables FERTE S8R 5,708 - 5,708
Deposits received Bz 1,260 - 1,260
Financial liabilities included in accrued ARG ERANERAE
expenses 11,281 - 11,281
Lease liabilities HEBE 362 154 516
Interest-bearing bank borrowings P BRI TIE X 19,618 - 19,618
Guarantees given to banks in connection B TFAEEZEE
with facilities granted RAETIRIT 2 BAR (3
to joint ventures (note 34) 34) 4,874,729 = 4,874,729
4,912,958 154 4,913,112
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

e RS ERAR MR
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38. IEREEEZERBE®

RENE Sk (@)

2022
—E-—F
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FR —FUE A L
RERER BLRME BLRREEF &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT TAT
Trade payables [ERTE SRR 4,277 = = 4,277
Deposits received Blizs 1,320 = = 1,320
Financial liabilities included in A ERANSRARE
accrued expenses 10,401 - - 10,401
Lease liabilities HEaE 742 460 64 1,266
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Bt BERTTIE RN 6,435 - = 6,435
Guarantees given to banks in BRTEECEZEER
connection with facilities granted R FERTT 2 R (HE34)
to joint ventures (note 34) 5,548,815 - - 5,548,815
5,571,990 460 64 5,572,514
Market price risk T E R

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price
risk arising from individual equity investments and key management
insurance contracts classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 19). Most of the Group’s listed equity investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange and were valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the close of business
of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and its respective highest and lowest points during the year are as
follows:

mERR SRR B RERE R EEKF &
BEYRABHFAFEE TR ZEAR - AEE
RAERIBRARE kD EREBRRRATER
IRz eREE T EBIEASRRE L (I
19) MEETERR - NEBABD EHRAE
BT R AT T - R s B R 4 R P
HzmEFTEME -

RERIBREPRERE ZFARS A LXK
RAERE R MIGRAEE - ARE
BEBEZFARDRREMHBAT

31 March High/low 31 March High/low

2023 2023 2022 2022

—EC-=F —EC=F T4 T4
=A=+—H BE /®BE& =A=+—H &=/ &K

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index &8 —1BAE# 20,309 22,689/14,687 22,232 29,468/18,415
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change
in the fair values of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and key management insurance contracts with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

38. IKEREEEERBE®

™ {8 E.B ()
TRINEMBEMEBES AR ZERT -
BHRENEERFZEESENE - BBRE
BAFEEIGZEMEERTRZEEABR
ez ATEESEES%  AEEBRH NG
M2 BURE -

Increase/
decrease
Carrying in profit
amount before tax
RRBE A= F
IRESE B, m
HK$'000 HK$000
FExT FHET
2023 —EC-=F
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZEBEFIEAFEETIEZ CREE 11,946 597
Key management insurance contracts classified D fEAFEBESEAFEETEZ
as financial assets at fair value through SHEELETEERAER
profit or loss RERE# 26,277 1,314
Increase/
decrease
Carrying in profit
amount before tax
R Al e A
T #hn, A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT
2022 —E-—4F
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & :BIBEIE A FEEIEZSREE 28,385 1,419
Key management insurance contracts classified 218 &EBERZZAFEENERZ
as financial assets at fair value through CHEEZFEBEASR
profit or loss REE K 25,482 1,274
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38.

39.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is required to comply and has complied with certain capital
requirements set out in the bank lending facilities. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio at less than 75%. Net debt includes trade payables, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
included in current assets. Capital represents total equity.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

38.

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

B EREE R ZERBER @

ExEE

AEBEAETE TEBRERERAEEFE
REZHEN  WHEFBRBBZERLE - UAXH
HEBRFBGEAZBIRERE

AEBRBLERN 2 BEEREERERE R
EHAE - AEENSEEAEMNRFIRE 2
IR S - MRE IR E AR EITHRAGRE
BENGEE - AEEAETWEBTRITER
BEEMBCETEARE - REBEE-Z-=F
—A=+—BEk=ZZE_=_F=A=+—HIHF
B AEBEEEREAZBE  BEIEFHE

=4
SE -

AEBFRAEAB B R (BRFEBUNEAR
BEREAR - ARBEZERRDBEAAEL
RERFNTS% AT - B FRRLERNEZ K
O HERERMERITENR B ARDE
ENREMERREEE MEBBRSERATE
BIRZ EREE - BRI ESRRE

RIBEMREERE 2 EARBLEMT

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E-_F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Trade payables FERTE SRR 5,708 4,277

Lease liabilities HEAE 482 1,188

Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BRI TE 3K 19,618 6,435

Less: Cash and cash equivalents o BekERREER (121,371) (152,228)
Less: Financial assets at fair value through B BRERIEATEEYERE

profit or loss included in current assets ERMEETARDEE (11,946) (28,385)

Net cash e FHE (107,509) (168,713)

Total capital B4 1,613,336 1,622,038

Gearing ratio BARBELE N/A N/A

TiEHA TEA

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has commitment of SGD1,824,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$10,776,000) to pay to an independent
third party for an acquisition of an investment property in Singapore.

39.
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BARESE

MN-ZTBE_=ZF=ZA=+—H8 AEEHKE
MR MEN —BREYEARAZR —LB
S =X 11,824,000 N3k T (B E R4
10,776,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Yt

31 March2023 —ZE==F=A=+—H

40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 June 2023, the Group entered an Option to Purchase with an
independent third party to purchase an investment property situated
in Singapore for a cash consideration of SGD1,100,000 (equivalent to

approximately HK$6,499,000).

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

40. HEHEREH

RZZE-_=FNANEB AEBE—FBI=
FEIM—IBREEIRIERE  UBEMRFINEA
—IBREWE - WEREE1,100,000F N TT

(}8E 71 #96,499,000/87T) °

A1, RDF 2R ER

BRARR RN RN S AR EREZE

BT -

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE KR - 668
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AT ZIRE 631,553 629,887
Total non-current assets IEmBEERE 631,553 630,555
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A R FIE - 982
Due from associates JE WS B &  RFOR 3 =
Prepayments TEfT /IR 338 314
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEIEE 744 1,340
Total current assets BB ELLE 1,085 2,636
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Accrued expenses FEETE A 3,786 6,834
Financial guarantee obligation MISHEREE 77,959 52,032
Total current liabilities BB EEE 81,745 58,866
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEFE (80,660) (56,230)
Net assets BEEFE 550,893 574,325
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITARAN 90,866 90,866
Reserves (note) it (PfRE) 460,027 483,459
Total equity BT 550,893 574,325
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

42,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

31 March2023 —E-=F=A=+—H

41. AR T Z B #EAR R R @)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: B -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RNAT 2 EER T
Share Capital
premium redemption Retained
account reserve profits Total
ROBER REEEGERE REBEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2021 RZZT=_—FmA—H 429,719 16,142 38,878 484,739
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 KA ERE - - 35,067 35,067
Dividend paid (note 10) BERAZ S (FizE10) - (36,347) (36,347)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R=F-_—F=A=+—HEK
—ET-_—_FWA—H 429,719 16,142 37,598 483,459
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 W A 458 - - 22,002 22,002
Dividend paid (note 10) IR S (Ff3E10) - - (45,434) (45,434)
At 31 March 2023 R=F=_=F=A=+—H 429,719 16,142 14,166 460,027

In accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Company’s share premium account is distributable in

certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 23 June 2023.

BEFAERESRAFNECTETEFEITAR) © A
REZBEEREETERATH FOIK

42. FEVBHRRZALE

AGEMBRRER_E_=F A =-1+=H
EEE ek NIRRT -
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List of Investment Properties and Buildings Included in Property, Plant and Equipment

REVFE

31 March2023 —ZE==F=A=+—H

Kt A% - BENRKREZBF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Approximate Effective equity
Address gross areas Lot number  Lease expiry interest to the Group Usage
rEEER
3k BHBER R RS HAZEA B Ag
HONG KONG
BB
Flat 302, 3/F, Block G, Telford Gardens, 603.00 sq.ft. NKI 5744 2047 100% Residential
No. 33 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENBEBRFEBFIBRIEECE3RZ02E 603.00F 7R NKI 5744 “TMtE 100% =
MAINLAND CHINA
HEIR
Units A-D, 25/F, Noble Center, 1006 Fu Zhong San Road, 1,000.77 sq.m. N/A 2053 100% Office
Futian District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province
ERE R IMiEHRET =5 10065% 1,00077F 5K NER “TH=F 100% YN
HERD2BAZDE
The whole of 28th Floor, Tower One, Neptune Center, 1,088.42 sq.m. N/A 2048 100% Services
Gaoxin District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province apartments
W) R T R RE T .0 — 8B 1,08842F 7k TR —ZmNE 100% g7 S WNES
SINGAPORE
HIK
2 Kallang Avenue, #06-24, CT Hub, Singapore 124.00 sg.m. N/A 2075 100% Office
124.00F 752K NEm “TthF 100% YN
2 Kallang Avenue, #06-25, CT Hub, Singapore 168.00 sg.m. N/A 2075 100% Office
168.00°F 752K Nam —TthF 100% YN
2 Kallang Avenue, #08-25, CT Hub, Singapore 168.00 sg.m. N/A 2075 100% Office
168.00°F 757K NER “TthF 100% WRAE

BUILDINGS INCLUDED IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT

The buildings included in property, plant and equipment mainly represented
the head office of the Group located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39
Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong and the office of a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company located at 33 Ubi Avenue 3, #07-72, Vertex,

Singapore.
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FFAME - BERREZET

SAME BERKEZEFIESAEEERS
B (IR BEABNIEERRE3GREHEES = H6iEL
EARBIZEWB AR ZHER - A1H33 Ubi Avenue
3, #07-72, Vertex,Singapore °






	Cover
	Contents
	Financial Highlights
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Profile of Directors and Senior Management
	Directors’ Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
	List of Investment Properties and Buildings Included in Property, Plant and Equipment
	Back cover

